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Citic Pacific’s profit for the year 2001 was Hk$2,110 million, or HK$0.96 per share. A
result 36% lower than the previous year is not welcome news, but shareholders should
be reassured the main reason is easily identifiable and understandable: the aviation
sector of our business was hit hard after September 11 at a time when the world and

regional economies were already deteriorating.

A key measure of the health of any business is the cash flow it generates, and [ am
delighted to report that our businesses generated a very healthy cashflow in 2001, and
the Group is well prepared to take up any good investment opportunities

going forward.

Recognizing Crmic Pacific’s continuing strong and stable cash flows, and substantial
financial resources, the Board is recommending a final dividend of nk$0.60 giving
shareholders a dividend of Hk$0.80 for 2001, only a little less than in 2000 reflecting
the reduced profit.

The major growth in Citic Pacific’s profic in 2001 came from the telecommunication

and property sectors.

The contribution from our telecommunications businesses was three times that of
last year reaching almost HK$ 300 million. Citic Telecom 1616, our fast-growth 1D
wholesaler, was the largest contributor to this result, but Citic Guoan and ¢y also

made significant contributions too.

The contribution from investment property grew 15% driven by increased rental from
the Festival Walk shopping mall.

In other sectors of our business ~ marketing and distribution had a challenging vear,
although at the operating level the result was satisfactory, and specialty steel

manufacturing tripled its profits.

Strategy
Crnic Pacific’s business is diversified but clearly focused in a limited number of sectors.
We believe that diversity builds strength, and that superior results come from focusing

on what we do best.
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Geographieally Ciric Pacific will continue to have its solid base in Hong Kong but
focusing increasingly on the vast market of the Mainland of China. Our knowledge and
contacts in China are wide and deep, and they have led to success particularly in Civil
Infrastructure and Power. Crmic Pacific will continue to focus on China. Even when
business is done around the world, we are always conscious that the overriding purpose

is to serve the Chinese market.
Let me review the future I see for each of our business sector:

In telecommunications, Citic Telecom 1616 has established itself as one of the major
telecommunication hub in Asia Pacific. The company has established strategic alliance
and cooperative relationship with 125 major international telecom carriers and
operators in over 80 countries. Leveraging on these relationships, Cimic 1616

continues to launch new value-added services.

cpenet, which Crric Pacific acquired late last year, will be our flagship for Internet
services. CPCNet is actively offering individual business users and companies with value-
added services such as corporate connectivity, Virtual Private Networks (vex), Internet

security solutions, data center servers hosting, etc.

Afiter two years of investment, the major part of the China Express Number 1 Backbone
Network has been completed. Because of the concern on telecommunication policies in
China, Cimic Pacific sold the network project to Crric Hong Kong (Holdings) but
retaining the right to buy it back. This transaction will reduce the Company’s
investment risk, and the necessary infrastructure for the development of Crric Pacific’s
telecommunication businesses is provided by Citic 1616°s high quality integrated

platform centered in Hong Kong and linking all over the world.

Cimic Pacific has contributed to aviation in Hong Kong and the tremendous progress
Cathay Pacific and Dragonair have made over the vears as two of the best airlines in the
world. The sharp drop in demand for air traffic heavily affected Cathay Pacific in
particular, but there are already early signs of improvement, and both Cathay Pacific
and Dragonair are sirategically located to take advantage of the Mainland China
market. The Mainland airline industry is being restructured. Citic Pacific sees great
potential and new business opportunities to expand. The Company is actively pursuing

these opportunities and the negotiations with relevant parties are making progress.
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Following China’s accession to the World Trade Organization, the financial service
and capital markets in China will expand and grow closér to those of Hong Kong, and
will have huge development potentials. Citic Pacific, together with Citic Beijing and
Crric Ka Wah Bank, have established a joint venture -~ “Ciric Capital Markets Holdings
Ltd.” - in which Citic Pacific will have 50% interest and participate directly in its
strategy formation and the day-to-day management. The joint venture business will be
built upon the existing broking and investment banking operations of Crric Group in
Hong Kong, and fully utilizes Ciric Group’s expertise and broad contacts in Hong
Kong, Mainland and all over the world. While based in Hong Kong, Citic Capital
Markets Holdings will focus on the China market. This new venture is aimed to develop
a leading brand name in the China-focused fund management business, as well as

developing the existing businesses of brokerage and corporate finance.

Citic Pacific recently reached an agreement with Shanghai Lansheng Guojian
Corporation to form a joint venture “Shanghai cp Guojian Pharmaceutical Company
Ltd”. Citic Pacific will invest up to RMe350 million and will have controlling interest of
51% in the joint venture. cp Guojian’s vision is to build its own research and
development, production and marketing capabilities. The venture will leverage on
Citic Pacific’s strong financial position, advanced management systems and broad
contacts in international markets. The venture begins with a team of leading biotech
researchers, and also a number of patents that are either registered or are under
registration in China and in other countries. cp Guojian’s immediate focus is the
development of new drugs related to genetic therapy. Biotech will be one of the fastest
growing industries in this century and has great development potential. We believe the

investment will contribute to the Company’s future growth in the coming vears.

Cimic Pacific’s team of power industry veterans has built and operates one of the
largest groups of power generation plants in China of any foreign organization with
total capacity of 3,000mw. The Ligang power station is one of the most profitable in
China. Late last year, the first unit of 200Mw at the Huhhot power plant in Inner
Mongolia became operational and the second unit is expected to commence operation
before the end of 2002. Construction work at the Jilin power plant is going smoothly.
As the power industry in China reforms, we will continue to seek new opportunities

investing in power plants.

Our civil infrastructure, consisting of Huangpu bridges and tunnels in Shanghai and

two cross harbour tunnels in Hong Kong, produces reliable long term cashflows.

=SV RS AN )

TEMALRZHABZE  RMTHHE
E-HHEN PEMBNERTEERTS
LEMEE  EARE - ARTMETER
ARMPERERTEERA [HEEALT
SEBARLE] FEFREMEHR 50% -
ERZEGAANEREELAEEE - 5
EARMU T ERBAEFRERR TR ERT
EBRER > ROFANREPEREEF
EWANERB ENERZRESRERERE
BEE - LR BRAE  RERER
LEME  BRFELBLEEREATHERZ
o EREEVERUPETERATLONES
EHEEB R MM

REREREIE T EWERBELARL
ASEEART LB ERERELRRAA -
HREARF=ZEATEL  #R51% - &
EEATIRENT  AERHELA—B R
ETEREGENESE N SENLEE
BEESURYENRRITIEES - A8
AEFEFWRFAS REBEASELR
BNBEENIAEERER  FEHE—
AR H TR - £ YR R A
REREM TERAMBEINGTEZ
— « R - EAENEEERREEH
BHRERERIHOEEERE -

TEREEE -UBRRNBEREESK
o MTRERNEEREREAENE=F
ETR - AWARARKREIEBIRERN
Z— o K FEEEHREEFEESLN
RAMBERZ — - BEPFHARTFMER
MREREG - TETRZRERACRESF
FEEFANES  ETABRATEN _TE
FREATALR - HAENEHAERLE
ERIER - BEERRENTHNLE - KM%
AETERIH B R ARE -

EREETH - LEREERTEIIREN
RBEE - MR E A M RIS R
o ALRARRTIENRARERE -




Marketing and distribution in Hong Kong and Mainland China is the business of Dah
Chong Hong and Sims Trading which serve the people of Hong Kong and China in
providing high quality products. Hong Kong is a mawre but profitable market, and we
are concentrating on delivering improved customer service at a reduced cost. The
Mainland is the opportunity, and a systematic 3-year plan is being implemented both
on the motor and food side of the business to position Dah Chong Hong and Sims
Trading as the premier supplier and distributor of motor vehicles and food products

in China.

In property, the center of cities in Mainland China presents opportunities today.
During the last twelve months Citic Pacific has invested in developing land in the
center of Shanghai, and bought two income-producing buildings in the same city.
There may be similar opportunities in Shanghai and in Beijing where CiTic Pacific
already owns a 50% interest in the Citic Building. In Hong Kong, the existing
properties are capable of generating significant development profits and stable rental

income in the coming years.

Fulure

Cimic Pacific moves into the future and the Chinese Year of the Horse with confidence
that our Company will grow and develop in the coming years in the direction [ have
already described.

Crric Pacific has the financial resources to take up new opportunities as they develop.
We are conscious thar really good business opportunities are few, and thus we are
disciplined to be partient to identify opportunities that will benefit shareholders in the

long term.

It is my pleasure to lead a team of businessmen and women with long, successful and
practical experience in so many disciplines that all work together to propel Citic
Pacific forward. To every one of them, and our directors, bankers and advisors, [ thank

you for all your fine work over the past year and your commitment to the future.

Larry Yung Chi Kin

Chairman

Hong Kong, 14 March 2002
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Crric Pacific remains focused on its core infrastructure businesses in Hong Kong,
Macau and Mainland China that embrace telecommunications, power generation,
aviation, and civil facilities. Complementing the infrastructure business is the

Company’s interest in property and marketing and distribution.

This Review is current ar 14 March 2002,

.
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Ciric Pacific is committed to building a telecommunications business that can offer
comprehensive services to customers in China and their trading partners around

the world.

Cimic Telecom 1816
Cimic Telecom 1616 (*1616”) (www.citic1616.com) is the market leader in Hong

Kong’s ibb wholesale market. Revenues rose significantly in 2001 as total monthly
10D traffic volume exceeded 150 million minutes, a 6.9 times Increase since 1616 was
acquired by Citic Pacific in May 2000.
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1616 also diversified into outsourcing business,"Calling Card Wholesaling and 1pLC ’
reselling to strengthen its business model and cash position. With the growtfl in
personal communications services, 1616 has built a Universal Mobile Operator
Exchange Platform to enable roaming and short message exchange services for mobile
operators worldwide. The service deployment of this is planned for the second quarter
of 2002. The management believes that the Company has both the experience and
expertise to capture the growth not only in the 1pp wholesale business, but also new

services to broaden its customer base and generate additional revenues.

1616 is one of the key platforms on which Ciric Pacific strives to build a comprehensive

telecommunications network.

CPCNet
cpeNet Hong Kong (www.cpenet-hk.com) was launched in February as the successor to

psinet Hong Kong which Citic Pacific acquired in September of 2001. cpeNet is a
prominent Internet Service Provider serving the corporate business sector of Hong
Kong and bridging opportunities for its customers between China and the rest of the
world through business co-operation, partnerships and franchises. cpenet has a solid
customer base of over 4,000 accounts covering services from connectivity solutions to
the Internet, managed and dedicated server hosting, security services such as Intrusion
Detection Services and Virtual Private Networking Solutions. cpCNet’s target
customers are husinesses with demand for 1 solutions and a majority of them already
have plans to expand their businesses in China. Since acquisition, there has been
significant improvement in cPCNet’s businesses with profits recorded since the month
of November. crenet is an important part of Citic Pacific’s strategy focusing on vatue-

added services in the Internet/telecommunications market sector.

China Express No. 1 Backbone Network

Cimic Pacific began building the 32,000 km fibre optic, nation-wide China Express
No. 1 Backbone Network in 2000. Since then work has progressed well with more than
25,000 km of cable already laid by the end of 2001.
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In order for the Network to become operational and to begin to generate revenue, a°
comprehensive set of relevant licenses is required. Crmic Pacific’s participation in the
PRC telecommunications business as a foreign investor complicates the application
process whereas CiTic Beijing has the opportunity to apply for the necessary licenses if

the Network is wholly owned.

In February 2002, shareholders approved the sale at cost of the Company’s 80%
interest in this fibre optic backbone to CiTiC HK, a wholly owned subsidiary of Citic
Beijing. To participate in this aspect of telecommunications business in China once the
regulatory environment allows, Ciric Pacific has the option if it chooses to buy the

Nerwork back at the then prevailing cost.

Cimec Guoan

Citic Guoan’s primary business is its 69.8% interest in Crric Guoan Information
Industry Co., Ltd. (“Guoan Information”), a Shenzhen Stock Exchange listed
company. Guoan Information operates cable television networks in 10 cities and
provinces in China serving approximately 4 million subscribers. Besides its carv
networks, Guoan Information also has investments in multi-media advertising, hotel

management, construction, system integration and software development.

Crtic Guoan owns 100% of Citic Building situated in the center of Beijing. This grade

A office building maintains an occupancy rate of over 90%.

CTM
20% owned by Citic Pacific since 1991, Companhia de Telecomunicacoes de Macau
{www.ctm.net) is the provider of fixed line, mobile telephone and Internet access

services to the people of Macau sar.

¢T™ continued its outstanding performance for the year 2001 with profits rising 18%
to HK$ 341 million. Its mobile phone user base increased 19% to 172,000 registered
users. Internet subscribers also increased by 25% to 37,800. In September 2001, ct™
launched wap services and it will continue to provide value-added services that have

relatively high profit margin.
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Crric Pacific’s power team is actively involved in all phases of the power business frém
identifying attractive investment opportunities to supervise construction process and

the actual operations of power plants.

In 2001, demand for electricity increased with total electricity generated from all the

operating units reach 11,398 million kwh, a 5.67% rise from the previous vear.

The Huhhot power plant in Inner Mongolia saw its first installed unit of 200
Megawatts (“Mw”) become operational in December. The second unit of 200 Mw is
expected to be operational by the third quarter of 2002. This co-generation power
plant has total designed capacity of 400 mw and capable of generating both power
and heat.

In June 2001, Crric Pacific entered into a joint venture agreement with local partners
1o participate in the operation of Jilin co-generation power station located in Jilin
province. This co-generation power plant has a design capacity of 200 Mw consists of
two 100 mw units. Construction of the first unit has begun and operations expected to
commence at the end of 2002. The second unit is expected to complete by the end

of 2003.

The Ligang coal-fired power station with a total installed capacity of 1,400 mw
continues to be one of the most efficient power plants in China. For 2001, a total of
7.103 million kwh of electricity was generated compared to 6,880 million kwh in
2000, an increase of 3.24% from the previous year. An application for phase IIl of
1,200 mw has been submitted to the relevant government authorities.

The Zhengzhou coal-fired power station has a designed capacity of 1,000 yw and
installed capacity of 600 Mw comprising a phase I (2x200 mMw) and a phase 1T (1x200
Mw). For the year 2001, a total of 3,397 million kwh of electricity was generated
compared to 3,062 million kwh, an increase of 10.9%. Application for phase III has

been submitted to the relevant government authorities to seek approval.
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Kaifeng power station, with an installed capacity of 125 wmw generated 638 million kwh

-

of electricity in 2001.

The Weihai co-generation power plant generated 76 million kwh of electricity and 2.2
million ¢J of heat in 2001.

Shouguang co-generation power plant generated 185 million kwh of electricity and

1,029,821 ronnes of high temperature/pressure steam in 2001.

Cimic Pacific is commirted to utilizing the Company’s experience and expertise in the
power sector to continue its expansion in the power generation area with specific focus

on acquiring existing stations and making them more efficient.
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Cimic Pacific’s interest in civil
facilities includes bridges, tunnels

and roads in Shanghai, and Hong Kong.

In the Mainland, Citic Pacific has
interests in all of the cross Huangpu
River facilities in Shanghai which

include two tunnels and three

FE R E R R
AR AER L
BREENER  BER
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bridges providing the necessary
connection between Pu Dong, the
government designated Special
Economic Development Area, and Pu
Xi, the old part of Shanghai. In May
2000, the Shanghai Municipal
Government eliminared toll
collection at all the cross Huangpu
River facilities to stimulate the
development of Pudong. Citic Pacific

has continued to receive its

contracted returns.
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The Hu }Jia Toll Road in which Ciric Pacific has a 45% interest has seen daily average

traffic increase of 17% over a year ago to 22,742 vehicles per day for 2001.

Ciric Pacific in December of 2001 sold its 50% interest in Chongqing Chang Jiang uyt
Bridge to the joint venture partner due to local authority’s potential plans of
constructing more bridges in the area which could divert traffic which in turn would

reduce the Company’s investment return. The original investment is fully recovered.

In Hong Kong, Cimic Pacific has a 35% interest in a 30-vear franchise that operates the
Western Harbour Crossing (“wnC”} (www.westernharbourtunnel.com), a key section
of the Route 3 highway which links Hong Kong, Mainland China and Chek Lap Kok

Airport. Following an increase in toll in late 2000, wHc registered its first profit. Daily

average traffic, however, experienced a slight drop of 7.2% to 39,702 vehicles per day
compared with 42,797 vehicles per day in 2000.

Crric Pacific is a controlling shareholder in the Eastern Harbour Crossing road tunnel

(www.easternharbourtunnel.com.hk) with a 70.8% shareholding. This was increased

in March 2002 from 69%. It continues to operate smoothly registering a profit of
HK$321 million a slight increase of 0.9% over 2000. Traffic throughput was 74,596
vehicles per day compared with 72,228 vehicles per day in 2000. Crric Pacific also

owns 50% of the rail unnel which contributed HKS 12 million.
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The global economic downturn that began in early 2001 was already impacting the
worldwide aviation industry when the operating environment was made worse by the
terrorist attacks in the u.s. International as well as regional air traffic demand declined
significantly in the second half of 2001 which severely affected Cathay Pacific and to a

certain extent Dragonair.

Cathay Pacific Airways (www.cathaypacific.com), an international passenger and

freight carrier based in Hong Kong, serves 62 destinations around the world. Citic

Pacific is the second largest shareholder and is actively involved in its management.

Revenues for 2001 were Hk$30.4 billion, a decline of 12%. Profits were down 87% to
HKS 657 million. The number of passengers reduced by 5% to 11.3 million. Passenger
load factor dropped by 5 points and passenger vield also decreased by 5%. Cargo
experienced similar results. Total tonnage carried was 704,000, an 8.5% drop from
the previous year. Cargo yield dropped sharply by 11% due 1o increased competition
and falling demand. Cathay Pacific management has taken a number of measures to
contain costs and improve operating efficiency which includes grounding planes and
suspending unprofitable routes. Cathay Pacific is well prepared to meet the challenging

environment; it operates one of the most fuel efficient fleets in the world.

14
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Dragonair (www.dragonair.com) is a regional carrier that operates {lights to 27

destinations in Asia out of which 18 are to Chinese cities. It also operates freighter
services to Shanghai, Furope and Osaka. The airline was less affected by the global
aviation downturn given its regional focus. Passenger carried and cargo uplifted
increased 13% and 29% respectively. Net revenue rose 18% to Hk$4.,885 million.
However, profits decreased 37% to nk$339 million primarily due to lower passenger

and cargo yield and the continued high cost of launching the freighter service.

HACTL (www.hactl.com), in which Cimic Pacific has a 10% interest, operates the largest
air cargo terminal in the world. In 2001, a total of 1.59 million tonnes of cargo was
handled, 9% down on last year. However, consolidated profits increased by 25% to

HK$391 million largely due to savings on interest charges and operational efficiencies.

Ciric Pacific considers aviation a major component of its infrastructure business and a
core area of development in the future. Both Cathay Pacific and Dragonair with Hong
Kong as their base and fast growing Mainland China as the neighbour are strategically

well positioned to capture greater opportunities in aviation.
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Environment
Ownership wERd
Location W% FER

South Fast\ 1 Landfill Yong Kong  Fil 30%  HEREBIMEE (TR LR
‘ (“Green Valley Landfill™)
- Chemical Waste Treatment Plant Hong Kong & 20% LEEERIER SO (TR

(“Enviropace™)

West Kowloon Transfer Station HongKong  FE 30%  7HJURE BEY B G
~ North Lantau Transfer Station TongKong SC% U AW A
* Airport Waste ZongXong  Fi 30% IR
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The Green Valley Landfill at Junk Bay, in the South East New Territories of Hong
Kong, is alandfill of 100 hectares. In 2001, over 2.6 million tonnes of waste was
processed, an average of 7,359 tonnes per day, slightly lower than last year due to a

reduction of construction waste.

Enviropace, located on Tsing Yi Island, is the only chemical waste treatment plant in

Hong Kong. In 2001, more than 62,000 tonnes of waste was treated.

The West Kowloon Transfer Station has a designed capacity of 2,500 tonnes per day.
Approximately 623,000 tonnes of waste was processed in 2001 an increase of 10%
from 2000.

The North Lantau Transfer Station in which Crric Pacific has a 50% interest has a daily
capacity of 1,200 tonnes. [t serves the Chek Lap Kok Airport, Discovery Bay and
nearby areas. In 2001, more than 45,500 tonnes of waste was processed, an increase
of 20% over 2000.

The Airport Waste is the waste collection facility of Chek Lap Kok Airport where more
than 13,000 tonnes was collected in 2001, same as in 2000.
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Crric Pacific’s interests in Marketing and Distribution consists mainly 100% owned

subsidiaries Dah Chong Hong, universally known as pDcH, and Sims Trading.

Dah Chong Hong (www.dch.com.hk), with substantial operations in Hong Kong and

Mainland China and businesses in Japan, Singapore and Canada, is a major distributor

of motor vehicles and consumer and food commodity products.

pcH Motor: pch Motor distributes a broad range of passenger and commercial vehicles
including Acura, Audi, Bentey, Dar, Honda, Isuzu, Man, Nissan, up Nissan Diesel,
Rolls Royce and Volkswagen. Its 23% market share in the Hong Kong motor market
makes it one of the largest distributors of motor vehicles in the territory. DCH also
provides after-sale services through its five conveniently located motor service centres.
Total vehicles sold in 2001 were 10,233, a 0.8% decrease from 2000, but sales in the
second half were only 73% of the first half due to reduced demand and keen

competition through the offering of purchase incentives which reduced profit margin.

In recent years, bcH has been rapidly expanding in Mainland China which the company
believes will become its main profit contributor in the coming years. Distribution, sales
and service networks have been expanded to complement the expansion including over
ten integrated sales outlets with after-sales service and spare part supports, regional
parts distribution centres and traditional service centres in major cities across China.
pcH currently has distributorship and dealership in the Mainland of both imported
brands such as Bentley, cm, Honda, Isuzu, Nissan, Renault, Rolls Royce and
Volkswagen and locally made vehicles such as Guangzhou Honda, Hainan Mazda and
Qingling. Amongst the imported brands, Nissan passenger cars and Isuzu trucks have
been the best sellers. Although the recent trade restrictions between China and Japan
had adversely affected the Japanese vehicle import into Mainland China in the second
half of 2001, total vehicles sold to the Mainland China market exceeded 4,000 in
2001. pcH will move full steam ahead on developing the China motor business with

additions of more integrated dealership outlets expected in the future.
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pcH Marketing and Distribution: bcH’s distribution of consumer and food
commodity products includes provisions, rice and cereal, edible oils, Chinese
foodstuffs, meat and produce, cosmetics, building materials, and home electrical
appliances. The Group sources globally and supplies food to retailers, wholesalers and
the catering industry in Hong Kong and Mainland China through efficient logistics
support. In 2001, Hong Kong businesses were directly affected by the economic
slowdown which resulted in weak demand for the products. In China, bcH concentrated
its effort on growing the distribution business as well as restructuring the chicken and
pig processing businesses by effective cost control and continued selective expansion.
DCH has established a network of 11 strategically located regional offices across China

to provide distribution and logistics services to both local and overseas suppliers.

Sims Trading: Sims Trading (www.simshk.com) specialises in the distribution of

branded food, household and healthcare products in Hong Kong, Macau, and Mainland
China. Ovaltine, Barilla, Pauls and Pocari Sweat are distributed in Hong Kong, and
Ferrero, Pauls, Ovaltine and Martell are distributed in China. Sims is also extensively
involved in providing third party logistics in Hong Kong to major companies such as
Heineken, Gilletre, Pizza Hut and Reckitt Benkeiser. Since its purchase by Citic
Pacific in 2001, Sims has been working on synergies between itself and Dah Chong
Hong. Examples are the transfer of Sims” meat commodity business to bcH and of bcH’s

Healthcare business to Sims Trading.
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Contribution to earnings
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Crric Pacific has an experienced property development and management team capable
of managing top quality, large-scale residential and commercial property projects. The
Company made a strategic decision in 2001 to enter the Mainland China property

market in Shanghai.

In July, Crmic Pacific signed an agreement with the Shanghai Government to develop a
major residential housing project in the Huang Pu District. The site is approximately
0.74 million sq.ft. and located adjacent to Xizang Nanlu and Jianguo Donglu within
walking distance from a future subway station. With a gross floor area of about

2.8 million sq.ft., this development (Westgate Garden) will comprise a number of
residential towers, a multi-storey commercial complex, retail shops and underground
carparks. The project will be developed in phases with the first phase planned for sale
in 2003/2004.

In December of 2001, Cimic Pacific entered into agreements to buy an approximately
80% interest in CiTic Square, a premier office tower in Nanjing Xi Lu in Shanghai, and
a 100% interest in Royal Pavilion, a luxury service apartment in Hua Shan Lu in the
centre of Shanghai, for a maximum consideration of HK$2,050 million and HK$ 720
million respectively. CiTic Square, has a current occupancy rate of 94%. The Royal

Pavilion is 2% occupied.

In Hong Kong, work on the Discovery Bay project is progressing on schedule. Yi Pak
Bay, located in the northern part of Discovery Bay, is being developed in phases to a
major residential area complete with a central park. a resort hotel and a shopping mall.
Total gross floor area is 2.3 million sq.ft. The sales of phase 11 (Siena One) with a
gross floor area of 0.34 million sq.ft. began in February 2002 and over 60% of the
298 units were sold up to the end of February 2002. The construction work for phase
12 with a gross floor area of 0.64 million sq.ft. is well underway. The development of
Disney Theme Park near Discovery Bay on Lantau Island and the opening of the tunnel
connecting Discovery Bay and the Airport road system boosted further the

development potential of Discovery Bay.

HFERENYERRIEERGERIE
HREEEEAKRUEZEERFAYEE
H e RLARZFT-FEHRBERE -
EHRERPBEARE > LHEELBHYE
i e

TERERCAGRLETBNES B -
EERBERRE—EREETEE - flg{5i
At TIETITR - BT R b R R
B BEEAEAMBEERERRZE > &
HEE - FIEE (REPIH MEEEES
BTEATEFIR  EFfLSEEE - —E
ZRBERES  MRARTERE - BET
BMATHEST E-MEER_FE=
S ZEERNERREE -

PERER_FE-FETTAETHE 2
IR SR - LT ETLERLE
ZTELETEFEEAREREES (L
LB SEE A A K £ 80%
B FELAE (R EETHOELRDN
FERHALE) B100%EE - BilPESR
EEGNERRE 04% - MELABNES
A 92%

FEWELE > WREHE CRETERS
T fREtan _—nER s eRRs
—EREGERE - RETFRLE - —HER
BWER—EFS  AREERS _A=1E
FHR « Ht—H (EEHM—B) NEEE
BAZSTEEFFR  ERZFEZ_-E_A
LTS ERE  REE-FEF_HE
EMHEATNAEECFEZR 0% T HE -
o HREEEAAS AT REE
TAREMERIBM - 72 KU L HAE 0 57 e [ 3
Rt T EARE RSN R ERES A
BAMEEE - SHRENRREIASE -




REVIGW O wlivie FaGlllE's RUSINGSSEGS

% The Victoria Towers, a residential and commercial complex with gross floor area of

the 988 units were sold by the end of February 2002.
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1.04M sq.ft. joined developed with the Cheung Kong Group is scheduled for
completion at the end of 2002. Sales began in November of 2001 and almost half of
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Ciric Tower, the Company’s headquarters is a landmark on the Hong Kong waterfront

comprising of 562,000 sq.ft. of offices, retail shops and restaurants and a footbridge ARRERFENFERERFEBEZE
linking it to the Admiralty M1k station. The building is currently 92% occupied. W ARTTAEZTEIRNEFRE - &
Festival Walk | datthe 1 of the Kowloon €. Rail M BERERE d-BOARBERREEE
estival Walk, located at the intersection of the Kowloon Canton Railway and Mass » . L ‘
o ca e , e 3 o {5 K E B ETRIRLFI B 92% -
Transit Railway Station in Kowloon Tong was developed with the Swire Group. The
1.2 million sq.ft. shopping and office complex has provided Crric Pacific with strong {37 7% U B LA M BB S TR R A X
and stable cash flow. The demand for space has been very good with current occupancy  —#HHLHFEREEREEBSEERE -
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Contribution to earnings
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Jiangsu cp Xingcheng Special Steel produces many grades of carbon and alloy steel.
Profits for the year 2001 registered a gain of 32% from 2000.

Jiangyin Xingcheng Special Steel Works specializes in the production of special steels
using the most modern production facilities. For the vear 2001, profits increased 84%

from the previous vear.

Wuxi Huada Motors Company produces low noise, low vibration, proper torque and
smooth turn electrical motors for the domestic and European market. For the year
2001, sales increased 18% to Hk$ 131 million compared to 2000.

Pirelli Telecom Cables produces mainly optical cables for the telecommunications

industry. Profits for the year grew significantly compared to 2000.

Developing Businesses

In March 2002, Citic Pacific formed a joint venture with Crric Beijing and Citic Ka
Wah Bank - Crtic Capital Markets Holdings Limited in which Ciric Pacific will hold a
50% interest. The jv will focus on fund management business as well as developing the

brokerage and corporate finance business.

Crric Pacific, in January 2002, formed a joint venture with Lansheng Guojian
Corporation in Shanghai to develop a bio-pharmaceutical business in Mainland China.
The jv will focus on conducting research and development in bio-technology pharmacy,

especially in the area of cancer therapy.

In 2001, Civic Pacific formed a joint venture with Fudan University to develop
distance learning in Mainland China. The jv engages in e-learning, distance education
and executive training businesses by leveraging of the academic resources

of Fudan University.
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Review of 2001 Censelidated Financial Results

The historical figures in this Financial Review and Analysis have been adjusted to
follow the new or revised Hong Kong Statements of Standard Accounting Practices
implemented in 2001 and described in Note 1 to the accounts on page 69. These
adjustments are merely book entries and have no implication for the actual value of the

Company’s assets, or its cashflow in any year.

These new accounting policies reduced dividend income in 2001 by Hk$ 10 million
and increased the amortisation of goodwill by Hk$ 186 million, a total decrease in net
profit of HK$ 196 million. Had they been applied in 2000, dividend income would have
increased by HK$ 36 million and the amortisation of goodwill by HK$ 175 million, a net

decrease in net profit of HK$ 139 million.

For ease of year to year comparison and appreciation of the underlying trend in the
charts of Attributable Profit and Contribution, the profit made on the sale of shares in
Hong Kong Telecom in 1997 of Hk$ 3,236 million are excluded.

Attributable Profit
ukdmillion HEEEETT

1997 [ 13,965
1998 i 1 2,628

1999 l 12,735

2000 [ ] 3.291

2001 ! }2.110

The netprofit atributable to shareholders for 2001 was Hk$2,110 million, a decrease
of 36% compared with HKS$ 3,291 million achieved in 2000.
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Gentribution
The following chart shows the after tax contribution each business made to corporate
interest expense of debt raised by Ciric Pacific, overhead expenses and amortisation of

goodwill. The percentage is the proportion of contribution amongst the businesses in

the table. B ER LFIFE -
1997 1998 1999 2000 2001
HKS 72 e HKS f HKS 7 ’ HKS 7 00 HKS y
Bz Infrastructure
ERE Civil Infrastructure 1,099 20 1,382 " 1,292 o 1.320 % 1,362 2
BT Power Generation 1,166 % 1865 6 1,143 o8 584 " 419 3
% Aviation 702 3 (11) o 659 6 1.475 % 324 0
R Communications 322 6 65 39 2l 1 92 9 295 9
At Others
1,587 270 740 422 633
e Property ; 30 6 18 10 19
HERDH Marketing & Distribution 360 7 330 8 230 5 226 5 119 4
WiE Manufacturing 2 0 18 0 22 1 29 1 95 3
HEEA Consumer Credit 84 9 167 4 0 0 9 0 Y 0
2000
HEAER
Infrastructure
84%
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Compared with the contribution for the year 2000: HOFRTE LG FIERMLE -

O ERESEEHRANFMEN > dRE
ENRESERENAESMERE
V9 [ i R B A Bk AR A

= O Increased profit at the Eastern Harbour Crossing and the first profitable year at

the Western Harbour Crossing, both in Hong Kong, was responsible for the

increased contribution from Civil Infrastructure.

U MEZFBANTE8Y TEHRE

U Aviation decreased by 78% mainly due to a decline in both the load factor and REBEANELTHEENHEY
yields for Cathay Pacific’s passengers and cargo business, particularly in the BETH LUZFF-FTLER
second half of 2001. Dragonair’s passengers business performed as well as 2000, BoBRZBERERRE  RZF
but the new cargo business suffered from a 25% reduction in cargo yield. FEERE BREANOIXZE

EIT R RE T 25% -

O Property sales in 2001 were mainly sales of The Victoria Towers at Canton Road,

U ZZFZT-FYEHELIERALE

. »._,.u.__‘.»..‘-___;.ﬂ.‘ i..” ‘__!,“,__}»__!, S S SO S,

but they were much smaller than the sales of La Serene and Neo Horizon at EREEEE BRER-ZETE
Discovery Bay in 2000. The contribution from property leasing increased with R i TR A R A BT R A5 ik
particular strong growth at Festival Walk. The 2000 result was distorted by a - BRESUARN X ZH

EHELHTE - —EZETEEHH
BRAA R SR E R A E

O Power Generation decreased mainly due to a reduced shareholding in cLp, and the B_EETHEETTETHE . O
FROMEGHER T -

HK$244 million write-off of newly completed infrastructure in Discovery Bay.

timing of dividends declared by the operating companies in the Mainland.

O BEEHEMNEE TR  TEHAH
HPEERRERRANEEL A E K
R B A RRFF R BTEL -

0O Communications increased significantly mainly due to the full year contribution
of the acquisition of Citic Guoan and significant growth in the sales of Citic

Telecom 1616 since it joined the Group in 2000.
O EERHEAREEN . TERRE

3 Marketing and Distribution decreased 47% mainly due to contribution from the BHEEEE HEfERnBHE
i motor business whose profits reported a decrease of 13% for the year and further EAMR kAR EER 1616 R2F
’ FEEMAFERE » HEFH A A

reduced by losses of other trading business especially the pre food business where o
W KEER -

an impairment loss of HK$ 75 million for fixed assets was recorded.
O HERSHEBBATRE4™ I2
0O Manufacturing increased due to increased sales of specialty steel. MREAEEMRFTRE (3% Lk
i E 5 EB IR GEE - LT
MEMAGHEEEETHRBER
TTREEETZHE -

U RUESER MG > iy f 45 50 B 4
gLt

|
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Geographical Distribution of Contribution and Assets

asat 3 December 2001 CEE—FE+ZHA=ET—HEE

43% 47%

2%

5% 51%

Contribution%  #FIE& AssersatBook Value %  EREEEE

Net Interest Expenses
The Group’s net interest expenses before capitalisation decreased from HKS 729

million to HK$659 million mainly due to the decrease of the average cost of borrowing.

Overhead Expenses
The Group’s general and administration expenses increased mainly due to expansion of

communications segment and the expenses for business development.

Amortization and Revaluation

Accounting standards require two major adjustments that are unrelated to the cashflow
of our business. Goodwill - the amount paid for buving a business that exceeds the
value of its physical and identifiable assets — must be amortised to the profit and loss
account over its useful life not exceeding 20 years. In 2001 1x$ 186 million of goodwill
was amortised to the profit and loss account. Before 2001, goodwill was written off to
reserves and as at 31 December 2001 nk$2,476 million of goodwill is included in
reserves. As at 2001 year end, Citic Pacific had a total of unamortised goodwill of

HK$2,549 million carried as an asset in the balance sheet.

BHERMREEZRERH

(] HongKongssk HERTHIE

L1 Mainland rrc #EE

(] Japan B4
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In certain defined circumstances accounting standards require listed investments to be
revalued to market value at the end of each accounting period. This revaluation caused
Crric Pacific to record an unrealised loss of Hk$ 166 million in 2001 compared with an
unrealised gain of HK$225 million in 2000, a change of HK$391 million between the
two years. But the market value of the investments held at 31 December 2001

exceeded their original cost.

Taxation
The effective rate of tax increased from 6% to 12% in 2001 mainly due to increase in
the share of profits from Guoan which is subject to PrC tax rate and over provision for

prior years written back in 2000 by Cathay Pacific.

Shareholders’ Returns

Cimie Pacific’s primary objective is to increase shareholder value for which it has used
earnings per share as a proxy. The Company expects its businesses to provide returns
on investment over their lives that will provide shareholders with an adequate return

on equity.

Earnings Per Share

Earnings per share were HK$0.96 for the year 2001, a decrease of 36% compared with
HK$1.49 for the vear 2000.

HKS T
1.86 1.52
1997 ! | 3.38
1998 [ ] 1.24
1999 L 11.29
2000 L 1 1.49

2001 09

26

FVL N bl iR 4 0 U

EETFHERZT GBI HE EHRE
BREEHENGRETHMERRZT
f - KEEHERHERENR_FZT—FR
BEREHEEAY—EATAEET
M-_EZFFARERERGAEF _EZ
THHEL MEZEEABE=HFELT—
BEL  BREEAN_ZZ-F+ZA=
+— B Z AT (AR R A

HIE
CEF-FZEBBERAEEILN  IE
FHEEIGEEZmFIEN (EEPERE
HER) RERMER_ZEZFEEEE
RS -

IRERER
FEREZEZRREMBREE -
BRAMERES] - ARFHABHEBERE
B BT R R B REE A R R EH
ZRARE -

SiE5
TETEZERRMEER096 T BT
FREBEZEE 149 THD 36%

(] Regulareps
BENEBZERER

] epsfrom Sale of HK Telecom shares
HEFETREMNY EREFH



Cash Flow Per Share SRIRERE

The cash flow per share was Hk$2.4 for the year 2001. “EE-EZERRENEAEY 24T -
Wk § AT
2.3 3.8

1997 | 1 6.1
1998 \ 139 [ Regular Cash Flow per Share

L7 71 BEEWAZERELTE
1999 | 18.8

20 0.7 ‘ ,
2000 | 197 [ Cash Flow per Share from
the Sale of Business Interests

000 L 7124 i b T SRR S HE
Shareheolders’ Equity RRERiER

Shareholders’ equity defined as shareholders” funds, plus HK$2.5 billion of unimpaired AR R ARG S0 L7E AHRKE7E 4 #

goodwill written off to reserves for accounting purposes, was Hk$44.1 billionasat 31 $HZ RKEREER —tRETZEM > i

December 2001, an increase of 1% as compared to 31 December 2000. CERE-F+_R=t-HZeBERERN
BRt—@ET _FEFEE+ A=+~
B3 1% -

ukSbillion HEBHEETT

40.5 1.0
1997 l 1415 L] Shareholders’ Funds

420 0.7 BHRES
1998 I 1427

38.2 0.7

1999 | - 1389 L] Unimpaired Goodwil

41.3 2.5 written off to Reserves
2000 l 1438 PR A BEZ H B

41.6 2.5
2001 | — 14441
Shareholders’ Equity Per Share SRREES
Shareholders’ equity per share at 31 December 2001 was Hk$20.1 as compared to “ER-FE+_AEt-HZEBRBRESR
HK$19.9 at 31 December 2000. Bi%01T MoEEEE+-F=+—

BRIRER 199 T -

119.5

120.1

1183

119.9

]20.1

27




‘
i
i
i
i
i
H

U ldualilislall s W YW alllsd Allcil)y ol

Dividend Per Share
Tt is proposed to pay a final dividend for 2001 of Hk$0.6 per share on 15 May 2002.

xS BT
020 0.50 0.30
1997 [ ] 1.00
0.20 0.50
1998 170w
020 0.55 2.00
1999 | 1275
0.20 0.65
2000 { 1085
0.20 0.60
2001 L - 1080
Turnover

Motor trading turnover decreased 4% in the year of 2001 compared with the year of
2000, and general trading turnover increased by 19 % mainly due to the acquisition of
Sims Trading Group on 28 February 2001. Manufacturing turnover increased 22%
due to increased sales of steel while communications turnover increased by 2.5 times
due to the growth of business of Citic Telecom 1616 Group and acquisition of CPCNet
Hong Kong (formerly known as psivet Hong Kong). Other turnover in 2001

represented mainly sales of listed investments.

ukSbillion HEREEET

? 3 ik b 2 % 3P
1997 [ : I l
1998 [ ]
1999 C L 1
2000 | ] ]
2001 [ . _
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(1 Interim Dividend #4312
(] Final Dividend REI8& £

] Special Dividend #5128

B
CEE-FREEHIEEER_TETE
B 4% M—RESZEEBNAR_F
F-FZAZTANBWREEE R 5 EEE
M19% - WEXEB 2 ELFERSEASNE
LN 22% - TifE B2 EEEREF
SEN 1616 £ EHZ ZHRERRBEA crovet
Hong Kong (%% psivet Hong Kong) T340
254 - CEE-FHMEFZELELE
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Motor Trading IREE 5

General Trading —#& ¥ 5

]

" Power #&
[] CivilInfrastructure ZEp#5216
Property #%
Manufacturing & Others #i& & HAts
Communications {5 5%

[ Salesof Investments &R E




Capital Expenditure BXHX

Capital expenditure for year of 2001 was incurred mainly on the China Express “EF-FZEAMLEERARTRER—
Backbone Network (which Ciic Pacific disposal all 80% interest subsequent to the REBH (TERIEN-FT-ELEH
year end 2001) in communication projects, the property development at Discovery Bay ~ #HH &2 80% %) 2EEEE -
and Shanghai, the acquisition of Sims Trading Group and crcnet Hong Kong. FELLEZYEBERER  (ERERS

£ B X creevet Hong Kong ©

HKSmillion  HEWE BT

1997 I 120,544

1998 C  Ta941
1999 11635

2000 l 15,959

2001 L 19.762

1997 1998 1999 2000 2001

HkS 7 HKS Iz 7 HKS 772 % HKS 172 7 HKS 77t %
E=E Communications 0 0 0 0 0 o | H0e2_—) LI f
SHE iR Marketing & Distribution 0 0 246 8 168 10 292 5 612 5
BELR Property Development 1728 3 2170 2 634 3 | 9% 5 84 Y
W Manufacturing oll 3 218 7 183 i 271 | 206 7
BE Power Generation 16,283 7 0 0 164 " 161 ) 139 !
HBER Civil Infrastructure 1864 9 255 9 427 9% 97 ) 91 1
i Orthers L 0 % S| B 8 !
iz Aviation 58 L 6 ] o i ;
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Group Liguidity and Capital Resources

General Policies

Crmic Pacific aims to finance its business with liabilities appropriate to their cash flows,
employing limited or non-recourse project finance when it is available. The financing
and cash management activities of the Group are centralized except where operating
businesses such as Dah Chong Hong or Sims Trading are delegated with authority to
manage their own short term banking facilities, mainly for trade finance and short term

working capital purposes.

Ciric Pacific aims to diversify its funding sources through utilization of both the
banking and capital markets. In addition to the bond holders in Asia, Europe and North
America, the Company maintains borrowing relationships with over 70 financial

institutions based all over the world.

Currency risks are managed by financing non Hong Kong dollar assets as far as
possible with matching debt. For instance the us$ cash flow arising from most

infrastructure projects in Mainland China are matched against us$ debt.

The continued development of both rMB debt and equity markets is very important to
Cimic Pacific as the focus of our businesses are increasingly towards Mainland China
and projects generating RvB cashflow. Whenever possible, yB financing will be

arranged for these investments.

In dealing with derivative products, the Company’s policy only permits transactions for
hedging purposes, speculative dealings are strictly prohibited. Counterparties” credit
risks are also carefully reviewed, in general, the Company only deals with those

financial institutions whose credit ratings are no less than single A.

Cash Floew From Operations

Cash contribution from operations in 2001 from all businesses in the Group was
approximately Hk$3.4 billion. The infrastructure sector contributed approximately
HK$2.4 billion mainly from power generation, civil facilities and dividends received
from Cathay Pacific. The property sector contributed cash flow of over HK$ 580 million
mainly from the rental income. The cash contribution from Marketing & Distribution

was approximately Hk$ 320 million.

Cash received from selling marketable securities also contributed approximately
HK$ 1.2 billion in 2001.
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Group Debt and Ligquidity

Taking advantage of favorable market conditions, CiTic Pacific completed several large
fund raising transactions in 2001. In April, an agreement was signed with a major PrC
bank to provide Crric Pacific with large sum of long term ruB financing for the
Company’s future investment in Mainland China. In May, Ciric Pacific issued a us$450
million 7.625% 10-year bond, establishing the Company’s name in the international
debt capital market. In August, a HK$3.8 billion 5.5/7 year syndicated loan facility was
signed with 23 banks. During the year, the Company also raised new funds, or
extended the maturity, of approximately HK$800 million through bilateral loans

arrangements.

As of 31 December 2001, the Group’s total outstanding debt was Hk$14.6 billion,
cash and deposit with banks were Hk$4.6 billion to give net debt of Hx$ 10 billion. Net
debt divided by total capital (total capital is defined as the aggregate of net debt,

shareholders’ funds and unimpaired goodwill written off to reserves) was 18%.

Save for the regulatory constraints (for RMB borrowings in the mainland for example)
and operational considerations, the Group’s borrowings are centralised at the parent
company level according to Group policy. As of 31 December 2001, the Company’s

borrowing structure is summarised in the following table:

GERERRDES

LEANZ GG - FTERERZTE
FEXRLBAUELEE - SENA > £
SEATE-MIRRTEIGE > APE
REHEETERENREREAERAA
REHME - RIA > TREFET HLE
WERTEETEE 7.625 B2 10 FHHE
% B T AR RERREFEEATS L
Mz o AEEPBAARBHERTEET —
RER=T/METZ S FER TEHREE
oo FRALAIE R SRR I
LA BT -

W_FE—FE+_AZ=Z+—H KEHZE
SRELHEY-FETAET MEEAR
RREFALERETAET  FREAEY
—HET - BREIEERER 18% (E454
HZEERBRE  BREAERREPRE
BEZ BB M) -

REERSD (FlIEEAEZ ARSES) &
BEEEN  AEOZ ESEERAEEY
—BERE P BT -

#ok FoE FZERIE LF#
Within Second Third to Over =i

in vk$ million First Year Year Fifihh Vears 5 Years Towal Lt T E LA
Parent Company!” 701 338 7,713 3,510 12,262 /@
Sub-toral: 701 338 7,713 3,310 12,262 Nt
Subsidiaries bt & 2 A

Marketing and Distribution 410 15 20 0 445 #HE Ko i

China Express No.1 Backbone PR

Network? 541 176 283 189 1.189 BEHEY

Manufacturing 471 31 80 26 608 R

Others 107 28 0 0 135 HAitr
Sub-total: 1,529 250 383 215 2,377 N ig
Total: 2,230 588 8,096 3,725 14,639 Bar

() GE-BEEELTEETZTFHRE %
FR$a M2 EER  EAREMELZHE
FIBFT - (Al P IR B R B -

(1) Including a us§450 million 10-year bond which was issued by a wholly owned special purposes vehicle

and i filly guaranteed by Crric Pacific.

2

These borrowings were transferred with the project when it was sold in February 2002.
2) HERETFHEN _FEF_HE_ALE
PP (R E H K -
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Undrawn facilities available to the Group totalled Hk$8.8 billion of which
approximately HK$5.9 billion were long term committed facilities, HK$ 1.7 billion were
money market lines and the balance were trade facilities. These undrawn facilities,
combined with the strong recurrent cash flow generated from operations, provided

ample financial resources to the Group to implement its investment strategies.

Employment of Derivative Products
In the normal course of its business, Citic Pacific employs a combination of financial
instruments, including derivative products, to manage its exposure to fluctuations in

interest and currency rates.

The Company uses interest rate swaps, forward rate agreements and interest rate
option contracts to hedge exposures or to modify the interest rate characteristics of its
borrowings. These derivative contracts are linked to specific liabilities and are not for

speculative purposes.

As of 31 December 2001, the Company had interest rate swap agreements outstanding
with a notional amount of approximately Hk$ 1.6 billion. Under these agreements,
Crric Pacific is to exchange either fixed or floating rate or interest with its
counterparties, without the exchange of the underlying notional amounts. The

objective is to stabilise the overall cost of borrowings over time.

As at 31 December 2001, approximately 67% of the Group’s total borrowings after
swap bear interest at floating rates and the remaining 33% are at fixed rates. The

average cost of debt in 2001 was 6% compared with 7% a year before.

Crric Pacific enters into cross currency swap contracts to change the denomination of
its borrowings as part of its management to limit foreign currency exposures. The
Company does not engage in foreign currency speculation. At 31 December 2001, the
Company had total cross currency swap contracts outstanding with a notional amount

of approximately HKS 2.3 billion.
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The denomination of the Group’s borrowings after currency swaps and denomination

of the cash and deposits with banks at 31 December 2001 were:

“EEF-F+-AZT-RERWEEEL
EEBELEH RS RBTERNT

HK$ million Equivalent

EYROBL%E
s — B s]wm] 5] m|
BE Borrowings 5235 6,772 2,122 455 55 14,639
BeREX Cash and Deposits 1,066 3.068 325 157 15 4631
BEEH Net Borrowings 4,169 3,704 1,797 298 40 10,008
BB EETFA R Percentage 42% 3% 18% 3% 0% 100%

Financial Guarantees and Pledged Assetls VBRRREREE

The aggregate outstanding amount of guarantees issued by Citic Pacific not included
in consolidated borrowings was approximately HK$2,200 million as of 31 December
2001. These are mainly the guarantee to us Exim Bank export credit facility for
Ligang Power Station, and a guarantee to an associated company, Treasure Trove
Limited, for a Hk$2,400 million syndicated loan facility of which Crtic Pacific’s 62%
share of the borrowing is lent to Crtic Pacific. This is included as a liability in the

balance sheet as “loans due to associated companies” (see note 14 to the accounts on

page 90).

Other than the guarantees as described above, the Group has not provided any other
guarantees for borrowing facilities granted to associated companies. Festival Walk
and Discovery Bay are financed by their shareholders and do not have external
borrowings; other associated companies and co-operative joint ventures such as
Cathay Pacific, Dragonair, Western Harbour tunnel and power stations have raised

debts to finance their activities without recourse to their shareholders.

As at 31 December 2001, assets of Hk$ 164 million (2000: Hk$2,005 million) were
pledged to secure loan facilities utilised by subsidiaries. The amount of the pledged
assets were substantially reduced following the full repayment of the project finance

loan at the subsidiary company, New Hong Kong Tunnel Company Ltd., in July 2001.

RIEZE—F+ZFE=+—H0: PEREE
WA RBEGEREZBRELNER
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Total Debt
Total debt decreased due to the repayment of bank borrowings.
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Contingent Liabilities

Asat 31 December 2001, the Group’s contingent liabilities have no significant change

from the last year end date.

Leverage

Net debt divided by total capital was 18% at 31 December 2001 compared with 19% at

the end of 2000.
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Interest Cover

EBITDA divided by interest expense for the year ended 31 December 2001 was 5.5
compared to 4.5 in 2000, mainly due to a decrease in interest expense from Hk$1,157
million in 2000 to HK$690 million in 2001.
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Credit Ratings

The Company was assigned investment grade long term credit rating of Baa2 and
BBB- by Moody’s Investor Service and Standard & Poor’s respectively. The credit
outlook for both ratings are stable, reflecting Crric Pacific’s strong financial profile

including low leverage, diversified business and strong cashflow.
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Crric Pacific is committed to excellent standards of corporate governance and first
class business practices extending beyond compliance with the mandatory

requirements such as that of the Companies Ordinance, accounting standards and the
Stock Exchange.

The Board

The Board currently comprises twelve executive and seven non-executive directors of
whom six are “independent” under the Stock Exchange Listing Rules. In 2001 the
Board met four times to review the financial and operating performance of the Group
and each business, and approve future strategy. Attendance at the meeting was over
84%. The Board has established an Executive Committee of executive directors and
senior managers who meet monthly to review and make decisions on financial and

operational matters.

System of Internal Contreol
The Board recognizes its responsibility for ensuring prompt and transparent reporting

and full disclosure of information to the public and investors at large.

The accounting system and internal controls of the Group are designed to provide
reasonable assurance that assets are safeguarded against losses from unauthorized use
or disposition, that transactions are executed in accordance with management
authorization, the financial records are reliable and financial statements show a true

and fair view of the business.

The Audit Commitiee

An Audit Committee of the Board was established in 1995 comprising three
independent non-executive directors. It met four times in 2001, together with
management and auditors, both internal and external, to review audit reports and
assure the completeness and accuracy of the Group’s interim and final financial
statements. The Audit Committee reviews the system of internal controls throughout

the Group, including adherence to various Codes described below.
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External Auditors

PricewaterhouseCoopers has been appointed by the shareholders as the Citic Pacific’s
statutory auditor and their report is on pages 124 to 125. Hk$5 million was charged to
the account for their statutory audit and tax services. Another Hk$ 1 million was also
charged for special review, fund raising documentation and completion audits in

connection with acquisitions during the financial year.

Internal Audit

The Group Internal Audit Department supports management by carrying out a
systematic review of all business operations over a period that is determined after an
assessment of the risks involved. The audit plan is endorsed by the Audit Committee
annually. The Group Internal Auditor has unrestricted access to all parts of the
business, and direct access to any level of management including the Chairman, or the

Chairman of the Audit Committee as he considers necessary.

Codes

To ensure the highest standard of integrity in our businesses, in 1995 the Group
adopted a Code of Conduct defining the ethical standards expected of all employees,
and the Group’s non-discriminatory employment practices. Training courses on the
Code are held regularly for employees and the Audit Committee receives a report on

the operation of the Code every year.

The Group has issued its own Code for Securities Transactions by Directors that
follows the Stock Exchange of Hong Kong’s Model Code for Securities Transactions by
Directors of Listed Companies contained in Appendix 10 of the Exchange’s Listing
Rules. Throughout 2001 the Group has complied with the Code of Best Practice
contained in Appendix 14 of the Listing Rules.

The Group has endorsed the guide to good employment practices issued by the
Employers’ Federation of Hong Kong to promote good and responsible

employment standards.

Connected Transactions

Crmic Pacific Lid entered into two transactions which required independent
sharcholders’ approval with China International Trust & Investment Corporation
Hong Kong (Holdings) Limited - a connected person under the Stock Exchange
Listing Rules - in 2001 and January 2002. Full details are contained in the circulars
issued at that time and the related press announcements can be retrieved on

www.citicpacific.com. In each case a committee consisting of
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independent non-executive directors was appointed to advise shareholders - advised by
an independent financial adviser - on the merits of the transactions. The two
transactions were approved by shareholders after receiving the report of the

independent board committee and independent financial adviser.

Fair Disclosure

Crmic Pacific uses its best endeavors 1o distribute material information about the Group
simultaneously to all interested parties as widely as possible. When announcements are
made through the Hong Kong Stock Exchange the same information will be on its way
to shareholders, journalists and investment analysts where an e-mail address or fax

number is known.

Crric Pacific recognizes its responsibility to explain its activities to those with a
legitimate interest and to respond to their questions. Investors are regularly received
and visited to explain the Group’s business. Questions on the company and its
products and services are received from the general public, individual shareholders and
investment analysts and these are answered promptly. In all cases great care is taken to

ensure that no price sensitive information is disclosed.

Information about Ciric Pacific can be found on www.citicpacific.com including

descriptions of each business, copies of all announcements made and Annual Reports

for last three historical years.

Transparency & Disclosure

In November 2001, rating agency Standard & Poor objectively surveyed the level of
transparency and disclosure of companies in Asia Pacific. Ciric Pacific was assessed at
level 7 (out of 10) - the highest level achieved by Hong Kong listed companies, which

was also achieved by six other companies.
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Financial Reporting

Ciric Pacific prepares its financial statements in accordance with generally accepted
accounting standards published by the Hong Kong Society of Accountants. Hong
Kong accounting standards broadly follow international accounting standards. The
Group adopted new and revised SSAPs which became effective for the current financial
year and has chosen to adopt early Statement of Changes in Equity required in SSAP
No.1 (revised) “Presentation of Financial Statements” and SSAP No.15 (revised)
“Cash Flow Statements”. The changes to the accounting policies and their financial

impacts are set out in notes 1(c) and 1(j) to the account on pages 69 and 73.

American Depeositary Receipt
As a further service to investors a United States American Depositary Receipt (ADR)
program was established in January 2002 providing an additional method of investing

in the ordinary shares of Crtic Pacific. The stock code is cTpCY.
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Executive Directors

Larry Yung Chi Kin, aged 60, has been the Chairman of Crric Pacific Limited (*Citic
Pacific”) since 1990. Mr Yung is also the Vice Chairman and Managing Director of
China International Trust & Investment Corporation Hong Kong (Holdings) Limited
(“Citic HK”) and an Executive Director of China International Trust and Investment
Corporation (“Citic”). He worked for 14 years with the Ministry of Electric Power in
the People’s Republic of China (“Prc”) before coming to Hong Kong in 1978, and had
extensive management experience before establishing Citic K in 1987. Mr Yung is a

Steward of the Hong Kong Jockey Club (“Jockey Club”).

Henry Fan Hung Ling, aged 53, is the Managing Director of Crtic Pacific. He is a
Deputy Chairman of Cathay Pacific Airways Limited (“Cathay”), a director of Hong
Kong Dragon Airlines Limited (“Dragonair”) as well as a Deputy Managing Director
of Cimic vx. He is also a non-executive director of the Securities and Furures
Commission. Before joining Citic 1K in 1987, Mr Fan has held senior management

positions and also practised law as a barrister. He joined Crnic Pacific in 1990,

Vernon Francis Moore, aged 55, is a Deputy Managing Director and the Group Chief
Financial Officer of Citic Pacific. He is a director of Cathay and crp Holdings Limited
(“cLp Holdings”) and the Chairman of the New Hong Kong Tunnel Company Limited
(“nHkrc”), Hong Kong Tunnels and Highways Management Company Limited
(“nkTHMC”) and the Western Harbour Tunnel Company Limited (“wHT™). Mr Moore is
an Executive Director of Citic HK which he joined in 1987 after holding senior

management positions with a number of financial institutions. He joined Citic Pacific
in 1990.

Peter Lee Chung Hing, aged 48, is a Deputy Managing Director of Citic Pacific and
the Vice Chairman of Citic Guoan Co., Ltd. (“Citic Guoan™). He is also a director of
other Group companies concerned with industrial and communications projects and
trading businesses in Hong Kong and the prc. Before joining CiTic HK in 1988, Mr Lee
was with major banking and shipping groups in Hong Kong. He joined Crtic Pacific in
1990 and joined the Board in 1991.
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Norman Yuen Kee Tong, aged 53, joined Cimic Pacific as a Deputy Managing
Director in April 2001. Mr Yuen is the Chairman of Citic Pacific Communications
Limited (“cpc”). He is also the corporate representative of CiTic Pacific on the Board
of Companhia de Telecomunicacoes de Macau $.a.R.L., a director of Hong Kong Resort
Company Limited (“HK Resort”) and other Group companies concerned with
communications projects. Prior to joining Citic Pacific, Mr Yuen was the deputy chief
executive officer of Pacific Century CyberWorks Limited and had extensive experience
in the telecommunications business. He serves on several public bodies and advisory
committees, including the Immigration Tribunal, Registration of Persons Tribunal,
Hong Kong Industrial Technology Centre Corporation and the Trade

Development Council.

Robert Ernest Adams, aged 58, has been an Executive Director of Citic Pacific since
1992. He is a director of Cathay, Dragonair, Hong Kong Air Cargo Terminals Limited
and Ls¢ Lufthansa Service Hong Kong Limited. Before joining Citic Pacific in 1992,
Mr Adams worked in Hong Kong in the management consulting and banking
industries, and is a past Chairman of the American Chamber of Commerce in

Hong Kong.

Zhang Yichen, aged 38, joined Citic Pacific as Executive Director in March 2000. He
is also the President of cpc and a director of Citic Guoan. Prior to joining CiTic Pacific,
Mr Zhang was a Managing Director at Merrill Lynch, and had extensive experience in
the investment banking industry in both the United States and the Greater China
Region.

Yao Jinrong, aged 62, has been an Executive Director of Citic Pacific since March
2000. He is the Managing Director of Citic Pacific China Holdings Limited. He had
served in China’s non-governmental friendship organizations for more than 20 years
before he joined Citic in early 1985. Having joined Citic Group, he once served as
executive secretary to CiTic’s former Chairman Mr Rong Yiren and concurrently
director of Ciic’s general office. From 1992 to 2000, he was President of China
International Economic Consultants Co., Lid. (*ciec”), a wholly owned subsidiary of
Crtic. He is now Chairman of ciec. Since 1995 to 2000, he was an Executive Director

and Vice President of CiTic, and is now a director of CITIC.
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Chang Zhenming, aged 45, has been an Executive Director of Citic Pacific since
March 2000. He joined Citic in 1983 and had extensive experience in finance,
banking and securities business. Mr Chang is also an Executive Director and Vice
President of Crric, President and Chief Executive Officer of Crric Ka Wah Bank
Limited, the Chairman of Crric Securities Co., Lid. and a director of CiTic HK. He is
also the Chairman of The Securities Association of China. Formerly, he was a Vice
President of Citic Industrial Bank.

Li Shilin, aged 52, has been an Executive Director of Citic Pacific since March 2000.
He is also an Executive Director and a Vice President of Cimic. He took the position of
Chairman of Ciric Guoan Group in 1997. Mr Li’s current posts also include director of
China United Telecommunications Corporation, Chairman of Crtic Guoan, Chairman
of Xin De Telecom International Ventures Co., Ltd., Chairman of Citic Guoan
Information Industry Co.. Ltd., Chairman of Citic Ocean Helicopters Co., Ltd., Vice
Chairman of the Beijing Football Association and Vice Chairman of the Beijing Golf
Association.

Carl Yung Ming Jie, aged 33. has been an Executive Director of Ciric Pacific since
March 2000. He is a director of Cathay and other Group companies concerned with
infrastructure and industrial projects in the prc. He joined Citic Pacific in 1993. He is
the son of Mr Larry Yung Chi Kin.

Liu Jifu, aged 58, joined Crric Pacific as Executive Director in April 2001. He is also
adirector of Citic HK. Before joining Cimic 1K in 2000, Mr Liu had worked with the
Financial and Economics Research Institute in the China Academy of Social Sciences
for 5 years. After 1983, he served as an FExecutive Director of China Everbright Group
Limited, the Chairman of China Everbright Travel Inc and China PINCHE Import &
Export Co., Ltd.

Non-Executive Directors

Willie Chang, aged 58, has been a director of Citic Pacific since 1987. He is the
senior partner of Willie Chang & Co., Solicitors, with over 32 years’ experience in
legal practice, including as a partner of Johnson, Stokes and Master. Mr Chang is a

member of the Board’s Audit Committee.
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Hamilton Ho Hau Hay, aged 51, joined the Board of Citic Pacific in 1992. He is a
director of Dah Chong Hong Holdings Limited, an Executive Director of Honorway
Investments Limited (*Honorway”) and Tak Hung (Holding) Company Limited (“Tak
Hung”). He is the brother of Mr Norman Ho Han Chong.

Alexander Reid Hamilton, aged 60, has been a director of Ciric Pacific since May
1994. He was a partner of Price Waterhouse with which he practised for 16 years. He
is a Non-Executive Director of a number of Hong Kong companies including cosco
Pacific Limited, Shangri-La Asia Limited, Esprit Holdings Limited and pss Kwong On
Bank Ltd. Mr Hamilton is Chairman of the Board’s Audit Committee.

Hansen Loh Chung Hen, aged 64, joined the Board of Citic Pacific in May 1994. He
is the Managing Director of Wyler Textiles, Limited, Chairman of Farrington
American Express Travel Services Limited and a non-executive director of The
Hongkong and Shanghai Banking Corporation Limited and cLp Holdings. Mr Loh is a

member of the Board’s Audit Committee.

Norman He Hau Chong, aged 46, has been a director of Citic Pacific since May
1994. He is an Executive Director of Honorway and Tak Hung. He is also a director of
Hong Kong Ferry (Holdings) Company Limited, Lee Hing Development Company
Limited, and a number of other quoted companies. He is the brother of Mr Hamilton
Ho Hau Hay.

Chau Cham Sen, aged 69, joined the Board of Citic Pacific in June 1995. He isa
director of China Overseas Land & Investment Limited and other Hong Kong
companies. He has 30 years’ experience in the field of town planning, building and
land development in Hong Kong including being the first Director of Buildings and
Lands with the Hong Kong Government. He is a Steward of Jockey Club.

André Desmarais, aged 45, joined the Board of Ciric Pacific in December 1997. He
is the President and Co-Chief Execurive Officer of Power Corporation of Canada. He is
also 2 member of the Chief Executive’s Council of International Advisers of The

Government of the Hong Kong Special Administrative Region and member of the Ciric

International Advisory Council.
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Senior Managers

Bi Yupu, aged 60, is the General Manager of the Power Project Department of Citic
Pacific. He is a Deputy Managing Director of CiTic HK and has been the chief
representative of Crtic Pacific’s Beijing Office since 7 December 1993. Before joining
the Crmic Group in 1987, he worked for 20 years with the Ministry of Electric Power in
the PRC as a senior engineer and deputy director of North China Electric Power
Research Institute. He joined Ciric Pacific in 1993.

Chau Chi Yin, aged 46, is Director, Group Financial Control of the Civic Pacific
Group. He is a director of Hk Resort and other Group companies concerned with
industrial projects in the prc. He joined CiTic HK in 1987 after experience in public
accounting and in financial management with a major Hong Kong listed company. He
joined Citic Pacific in March 1990.

Leslie Chang LLi Hsien, aged 47, is Director, Group Finance. He is a director of Citic
Guoan, HKTHMC and WHT. Before joining Citic Pacific in 1994, he was a partner at KPMG
Peat Marwick specializing in the financial services industry. He was also the Director

of Chinese Practice of the firm in the United States.

Frances Yung Ming Fong, aged 30, is Director, Technology Development of Citic
Pacific and Executive Vice-President, Project Development of cpc. She joined Citic
Pacific in 1995 and is responsible for the development of technology-based projects.
She is a director of NHKTC and other Group companies concerned with communications
projects. She is the daughter of Mr Larry Yung Chi Kin.

Milton Law Ming Te, aged 38, is Director, Business Development. He is a director of
Dragonair, NHKTC, WHT, HKTHMC and other Group companies concerned with
infrastructure, environment, trading and industrial projects in Hong Kong and the prc.

Before joining Crtic Pacific in 1992, he worked in the banking industry.

Polly Lawrence, aged 55, is Director, Group Human Resources and Administration of
the Citic Pacific Group, responsible for those functions in the Group. She was head of
human resources and communications of a Hong Kong listed company before she
joined Citic Pacific in 1893.
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Chu Hen Fai, aged 56, is Chief Exccutive — Trading of the Dah Chong Hong Group.
He has extensive experience in global trading and distribution and is responsible for
the Dah Chong Hong Group’s trading business in Hong Kong, the prc, Singapore,
Japan, and Canada. He joined Dah Chong Hong in 1964 and was Deputy Chief

Executive before his present appointment.

Hui Ying Bun, aged 55, is Chief Executive - Motor of the Dah Chong Hong Group.
His career spans several decades of motor dealership experience and is responsible for
the Dah Chong Hong Group’s motor franchises and ancillary businesses in Hong
Kong, the prc, Singapore, Japan, and Canada. He joined Dah Chong Hong in 1966
and was Deputy Chief Executive before his present appointment.

Alexander Chan Sing Cheung, aged 57, is an Executive Director and the General
Manager of NHKTC. He joined NHKTC in June 1991 having had extensive experience

previously in the shipping and transportation industries.

Peter Chan Kwong Choi, aged 38, is a director of Citic Telecom 1616 Limited and its
group companies. Before joining Citic Pacific in May 2000, he was a director of

Telecom 1616 Limited with extensive experience in the telecommunications industry.

Glenn Robert Sturrock Smith, aged 49, is the Chief Executive of Sims Trading
Company Limited and Chairman of the Guangdong Jing Yun Distribution Co., Ltd. He
has had many years of experience in the marketing and distribution of consumer

products with a listed company in Hong Kong before joining Citic Pacific in 2001.

Aaron Wong Ha Hang, aged 43, is General Manager, Projects of the Property
Department of Crric Pacific. He is an Executive Director of HK Resort, a director of
NHKTC and other Group companies concerned with property and environmental
projects in Hong Kong. He worked for an international consulting firm in the United

Kingdom and in Hong Kong for many years before he joined the Group in 1996.

Cindy Kwan Kit Ying, aged 39, is General Manager — Sales & Marketing of the
Property Department of Citic Pacific. She had broad experience in property sales,

marketing, and leasing before joining the Group in 1996.

Sttephcﬁn Ho Wai Chung, aged 43. is the Chief Executive Officer of ceenet Hong
Kong Limited and Executive Vice-President, Operations of cpc. He joined Citic Pacific

in 2001 after 19 years of experience in the telecommunications industry.
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As at the end of December 2001, the Group employed 11,733 people (2000:11,354)
in its headquarters in Hong Kong and its principal subsidiary companies worldwide.
The two main areas of concentration are in Hong Kong employing 4,379 (2000:
4,236) and in the prC employing 7,126 (2000: 6,877). Another 228 (2000: 241) are
employed in subsidiaries in Japan, Singapore and Canada. The Group’s headcount

increased due to acquisitions during the year.

Human Resources Management

The Group recognizes and respects each individual’s rights and adopts non-
discriminatory employment policies giving equal opportunities to qualified candidates.
Ciric Pacific strives to be consistent and fair in administering its human resources
management practices to the mutual benefit of its employees and the Group. Cur Code
of Conduct covers many aspects of business ethics, including relations with suppliers
and customers and employees in terms of employment practices. Everyone working on
the affairs of the Group is required to follow this Code and heads of business units are
charged with the responsibility of disseminating the Group’s requirements to the
people concerned. An explanation of the contents of the Code is included in the
induction of new employees and refresher courses conducted by internal or external
speakers are arranged for employees from time to time. Any violation or non-
compliance of the Code is subject to established disciplinary procedure or actions as
appropriate.

Employee Compensation

The Group aims to attract, retain and motivate employees who have the relevant skills,
knowledge and abilities to develop, support and sustain the continued success of the
Group. On an annual basis, CITIC Pacific reviews the cash compensation and benefits
programme provided for its employees to ensure that the overall compensation is
internally equitable and in line with local norms and industry practice. Employees of
the Group gave consent at the end of 2001 to revise the bonus arrangement from a
fixed sum to a performance based bonus award dependent on Group results and
individual employee performance. Shareholders approved a share option scheme for
the Group’s employees in May 2000 and details are given on page 60. Financial

information on Directors’ emoluments can be found on page 84.
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Retirement Benefits

The Crric Group Retirement Plan (“orso Plan”) provides retirement benefits for
employees of the Group and its subsidiaries and associates. The Plan is a defined
contribution scheme registered under the Occupational Retirement Schemes
Ordinance and has obrained an exemption certificate having satisfied the requirements
of the Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes Ordinance. nssc Trustee (Hong Kong)
Limited is Trustee of the 0rso Plan, who in turn appointed the investment manager and
plan administrator to manage the Plan in accordance with the Trust Deed and Rules.
Employees are offered a choice of investments and the Trustee issues statements 1o

members of the Plan twice a year.

A Cimic Group Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme (“Mpr Scheme™) offers a choice to
employees who opt not to join the orso Plan. The Hang Seng Bank is the service

provider of the MpF Scheme.

Further details on these principal schemes are given in the Notes to the Accounts on

page 85.

Training & Development

Ciric Pacific is committed to providing a healthy organizational environment conducive
to each individual’s development. Employees are encouraged to commit to continuous
improvement by taking responsibility for their own learning and self-development.
Seminars and courses organized by professional institutions are sponsored by the
Group to assist employees to improve their current job performance. In-house training
for all levels of employees is organized regularly on product knowledge and skills
training. Where applicable, the Group arranges external service providers to conduct
customized training programmes on specific subjects such as managerial development

and updates on new technology.

Cimic Pacific also believes in investing in our future generation. The Group has putin
place various management trainee and apprentice training programmes to foster

growth and provide opportunities for the younger members of society.
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The Group and its employees support the local communities it operates in. As in the
past many years, the Group supports charitable work and the promotion of education,
environmental protection, sports, culture and the arts by sponsoring many activities in
Hong Kong, China, and overseas. The Salvation Army, Mother’s Choice, and the
Worldwide Fund for Nature are some of the organizations the Group associated with.
Most notably is the Community Chest of Hong Kong to which Citic Pacific and its
subsidiary companies have been long term supporters by making donations and
participating in the fund raising activities. As a regular donor to the Red Cross, the
Group continues to encourage its employees to respond to its appeals and campaigns.
Employees of the Group have also expressed interest in the Volunteer Movement
organized by the Social Welfare Department of the Hong Kong sar Government to

contribute their free time and service to society.
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The Directors have pleasure in presenting to shareholders their report for the year
ended 31 December 2001.

Principal Activities

The principal activity of the Company is holding its subsidiary companies and the
principal activities of its subsidiary companies and associated companies and their
major areas of operation are set out in the Review of Ciric Pacific’s Businesses on

pages 6 to 21.

Rividends

The Directors declared an interim dividend of Hk$0.20 per share in respect of the year
ended 31 December 2001 which was paid on 21 September 2001. The Directors
recommended, subject to the approval of the shareholders at the forthcoming Annual
General Meeting, the payment of a final dividend of Hk$0.60 per share in respect of
the vear ended 31 December 2001 payable on 15 May 2002 to shareholders on the
Register of Members at the close of business on 9 May 2002.

Reserves
The amounts and particulars of transfer to and from reserves during the vear are set out

in note 22 to the accounts.

Donations

Donations made by the Group during the year amounted to Hk$ 11 million.

Fixed Assels

Movements of fixed assets are set out in note 12 to the accounts.
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Major Custemers and Suppliers

The percentage of purchases and sales with the Group’s suppliers and customers are as

TRERRRER
FERHERREF ZBIEHEREEY

follows: GrHELT
2001 2000
% %
Purchases BE
- the largest supplier 7 12 - B
— five largest suppliers combined 20 27 - EREER SR

The aggregate percentage of sales to the Group’s five largest customers is less than

30%.

No Directors, their associates or shareholders {(which to the knowledge of the
Directors own more than 5% of the Company’s share capital) were interesied at any

time in the year in the above suppliers or customers.

Subsidiary Companies
The names of the principal subsidiary companies, their principal places of operation,
their countries of incorporation and particulars of their issued share capital are set out

innote 32 to the accounts.

Issue of Debt Securities

On 15 February 1996, the Company issued and sold us$ 100 million aggregate
principal amount of its 7.37% Senior Notes due 2006 (“Senior Notes”) to financial
institutions pursuant to note purchase agreements dated 15 February 1996. All of the

Senior Notes remained outstanding at the end of the year.

On 20 August 1997, the Company issued and sold Japanese Yen 9.5 billion floating
rate bond due 2002 (“Yen Bond”). for general working capital purposes, to an investor
pursuant to the subseription agreement dated 15 August 1997. All of the Yen Bond

remained outstanding at the end of the year.
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Cn 1 June 2001, Crric Pacific Finance (2001) Limited, a wholly owned subsidiary of
the Company, issued and sold a total of us$4:50 million principal amount of 7.625%
guaranteed notes due 2011 (“Guaranteed Notes”) for refinancing the indebtedness of
the Company and for general corporate purposes, to investors pursuant to the
purchase agreements dated 24 May 2001 and 1 June 2001. All of the Guaranteed

Notes remained outstanding at the end of the vear.

Save as aforesaid, neither the Company nor its subsidiary companies have issued any

debt securities.

Borrowings

Particulars of borrowings of the Group are set out in note 23 to the accounts.

Directors

The Directors in office during the financial year ended 31 December 2001 were:

Mr Larry Yung Chi Kin

Mr Henry Fan Hung Ling
Mr Vernon Irancis Moore
Mr Peter Lee Chung Hing
Mr Norman Yuen Kee Tong
Mr Robert Ernest Adams
Mr Zhang Yichen

Mr Yao Jinrong

(appointed on 1 April 2001)

Mr Chang Zhenming

Mr Li Shilin

Mr Carl Yung Ming Jie

Mr Liu Jifu

Mr Willie Chang

Mr Hamilton Ho Hau Hay
Mr Alexander Reid Hamilton
Mr Hansen Loh Chung Hon
Mr Norman Ho Hau Chong
Mr Chau Cham Son

Mr André Desmarais

(appointed on 1 April 2001)
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Pursuant to Article 104(A) of the New Articles of Association of the Company, Messrs
Vernon Francis Moore, Robert Ernest Adams, Zhang Yichen, Yao Jinrong, Chang
Zhenming and Norman Ho Hau Chong shall retire by rotation in the forthcoming

Annual General Meeting and all, being eligible, offer themselves for re-election.

Biographical details of directors may be found on pages 40 to 43.

Management Gontract

The Company entered into a management agreement with China International Trust &
Investment Corporation Hong Kong (Holdings) Limited (“Cimic HK™) on 11 April
1991 but with retrospelctive effect from 1 March 1990 in which Citic nk agreed to
provide management services to the Company and its subsidiary companies for a
management fee calculated on a cost basis to CITiC HK payable quarterly in arrears. The
management agreement is terminable by two months’ notice by either party. Messrs
Larry Yung Chi Kin, Henry Fan Hung Ling. Vernon Francis Moore, Chang Zhenming
and Liu Jifu had indirect interests in the management agreement as they are directors
of CITic HK. A copy of the management agreement will be available for inspection at the
Annual General Meeting of the Company to be held on 9 May 2002.

Directors’ Interests in Contracts of Significance

On 12 June 2001, an agreement (“Lucky Zone Agreement”) which was subsisting as
at 31 December 2001 was entered into between Citic Pacific Communications
Limited (“cpc”), a wholly owned subsidiary of the Company, as the purchaser and Mr
Larry Yung Chi Kin (“Mr Yung”), a director of the Company, as the seller pursuant to
which the Group agreed to purchase from Mr Yung his 20% interest in Lucky Zone
Enterprises Inc. (“Lucky Zone”) at the consideration of Hk$319,003,573.11. Lucky

Zone is the developer of a fixed optical fibre network in the Pre.

Save as aforesaid, none of the Directors of the Company has or at any time during the
vear had, an interest which is or was material, either directly or indirectly, in any
contract with the Company or any of its subsidiary companies, which was significantin
relation to the business of the Company, and which was subsisting at the end of the

vear or which had subsisted at any time during the vear.
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Connected Transactions
Connected transactions disclosed in accordance with Chapter 14 of the Rules
Governing the Listing of Securities on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited

(“Stock Exchange™) are as follows:

1. Pursuant to the agreement dated 9 October 1996 made between the Company,
Ciric v, Kerry Trading Co. Limited, The Development Bank of Singapore Limited
(collectively “the Parties”) and Cheer First Limited (“Cheer First”), the Parties being
the shareholders of Cheer First agreed to make loans to Cheer First for providing loan
finance to Goldon Investment Limited which holds Citic Tower. CiTic HK being a
substantial shareholder of the Company and regarded as its connected person holds
25% interest in Cheer First. The loan was made on normal commercial terms and in
proportion to each party’s shareholding in Cheer First. It was with no fixed repayment
date and was interest bearing at the rate per annum equivalent to Hong Kong Inter-
Bank Offered Rate. As at 31 December 2001, the amount of shareholders” loan due by
Cheer First to the Company was Hk$2,187 million.

2. Pursuant to the agreements dated 8 November 2000 entered into between China
International Trust and Investment Corporation (“Citic Beijing”) and Glamorous Way
Enterprises Ltd. (“Glamorous Way”), a wholly owned subsidiary of the Company,
Glamorous Way agreed to acquire from CiTic Beijing a 50% interest in Ciric Guoan
Co., Ltd. (*Guoan”) for a total investment amount of RMB1,800 million {(equivalent to
approximately HK$ 1,692 million). Out of the total investment amount, kMB1,200
million was for acquiring the existing assets of Guoan whereas RMp600 million was in
the form of an interest-bearing loan from Glamorous Way to Crtic Beijing. Citic
Beijing agreed that within 360 days of the date of completion of the investment,
Glamorous Way would have the priority to select telecommunications projects and
Citic Beijing would inject such selected projects into Guoan. Any capital contribution
required from Glamorous Way as a result of the injection of such selected projects
would be set off against the loan amount. As no projects were injected into Guoan
during the aforesaid period, Citic Beijing had repaid the loan with accrued interest to
the Company on 18 December 2001.

54

BEXR 5

REFERSZHMERAE (B &
FEMHUE FNEMARE 2 BETS
LN

1. RER—-JIIASETALBHEL
o REEE ERERERAT  FMK
BRFTHERAT BB (871 R Cheer
First Limited ([ Cheer First)) 5132 W3 -
& F1E % Cheer First Z FRORE B & 3F Cheer
First MEMFEHEREZ SEREARL
ARMERRE ANRZ FERRIHH
BEBEALZ FEFEERE Cheer First Z
25% HE4s o ZEER IR —MAEERK IR
&AM Cheer First #H 2 IRHE L BIME
g TEEATERAY  SFEERHERE
ERATFRZRE - BREZFFE—F+ZA=
+—H 1L+ Cheer First XA LR ZRRE
HEHEER AT LEET

2. WMEPEEBEHERRELE ([HEL
) BALRZ2EMBAREHLERR
nE (1F8]) RZEZZF+—EAHFL
2 BERAEUAREFAET (494
SR RELT EET) ZE%EHE
MAEELR B EREARAR ([H
T Z50%HEE o FIAREEEFZ AR
BTErARERRZZHEEE  AA
R ABTHARES THELRZFES
e hEIERBEREREEREE R
360 BN - BT EREREFIEE - M
FlELTHZEEZEEEARY - BiEA
BEZEEMEREHREZ EEHEE
TS o BRI AT AR E A
H%Z FELRER_ZEZE-F+_2H
TABEARLEERERLETHE -




3. On 12 June 2001, cpc entered into the Lucky Zone Agreement with Mr Yung.
The consideration was arrived at after arm’s length negotiations and was based on the
investment cost of Mr Yung in First Honour Investments Lid., being the company
holding the 20% interest in Lucky Zone. Mr Yung is a connected person of the
Company by virtue of his being a substantial shareholder and director of the Company.
Lucky Zone and its subsidiaries were initially owned by the Company, Citic Beijing
and Mr Yung in the proportions 60/20/20. Crtic Beijing is a substantial shareholder
of the Company. After the aforesaid acquisition, Lucky Zone and its subsidiaries were
owned by the Company and Crric Beijing in the proportions 80/20. From time to time
during the year, the Company provided finance to Lucky Zone and its subsidiaries by
way of shareholders’ loan or corporate guarantee. The shareholders’ loan was made in
proportion to the Company’s shareholdings in such companies, with no fixed
repayment date and was non-interest bearing. The guarantee given by the Company
was a several guarantee proportional to the Company’s shareholdings in such
companies. As at 31 December 2001, the amount of shareholders’ loan due by Lucky
Zone and its subsidiaries to the Company was HK$ 1,491 million whereas the
guarantees executed by the Company to secure the banking facilities granted to the
subsidiaries of Lucky Zone were rMB424 million and us$48.4 million. In connection
with the aforesaid acquisition, the Company has also executed a guarantee up to 80%
of the liability of one of the subsidiaries of Lucky Zone under a lease agreement for

leasing certain equipment at the contract sum of approximately us$15.5 million.

4. From time to time during the year, the Group executed guarantees to banks to
secure the facilities granted to Shanghai pcH Jiangnanfeng Co., Lid. (*Jiangnanfeng”™),
a company engaged in the production and selling of chickens and related food
products, as its general working capital. Jiangnanfeng is 76.77% owned by Regal
Heights Limited (“Regal Heights”, a 60% subsidiary of Dah Chong Hong Holdings
Limited) with the remaining interest held by individual third parties which are
connected to the Group by virtue only of their substantial shareholding in
Jiangnanfeng. As at 31 December 2001, total facilities granted to Jiangnanfeng was
rMB72 million secured by corporate guarantees given by Dah Chong Hong Group, in
turn the 40% partner in Regal Heights shared 40% of such liabilities by giving

irrevocable letters of credit issued by a bank in favour of Dah Chong Hong Group.

3. MIEZ—HEAA+TZH "ERE
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D& AT TR ER - BRREE
A% First Honour Investments Ltd. 22 1% & B A
BE > BARREEERY 20% R - R
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EAFZHEAL - EWAENELR 2
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5. During the year ended 31 December 2001, T {5 E&ER AR A (“ P
& ), a wholly owned subsidiary of Ciric Beijing, provided management services (“the
Services”) to certain PrC subsidiaries of the Company which were engaged in the
optical fibre network investment. The PrC subsidiaries paid for the reasonable costs and
expenses incurred by F 15 # #& in relation to the provision of the Services. Such
payment was calculated on the actual cost basis. For the year ended 31 December
2001, the total amount of the Services provided by F115 #5 % 1o the Pre subsidiaries
was RMB17.3 million.

An independent committee of the board of Directors (comprising only of independent
non-executive Directors) had reviewed the transactions made during the vear ended 31

December 2001 and confirmed that:

- the Services had been entered into by the prc subsidiaries in the ordinary and

usual course of their business;

—  the Services had been entered into on terms that were fair and reasonable so far as

the shareholders of the Company were concerned;

- the Services had been entered into in accordance with the terms of the agreement

governing such transactions; and

- the Services had been entered into such that the aggregate amount for the year
ended 31 December 2001 did not exceed 3% of the net tangible asset value of the

Group as disclosed in the Company’s 2000 annual report (“the Services Cap”).

The auditors of the Company had also confirmed to the board of Directors that (a) the
Services had received the approval of the Directors: (b) the Services had been entered
into in accordance with the terms of the agreement relating to the transactions: and (c)

the Services had been entered into such that the Services Cap had not been exceeded.
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Directors’ Interests in Securities of the Company BEERFLTES2ED

As at 31 December 2001, the following were the interests in shares of the Companyor ~ RZFE—F+-A=+—H : REEE
WERES) Wl ([HEEERE ) H29%
AT RIFZEMAM NS - EERALF
BOAAIERE M AR T

associated corporations as recorded in the register required to be kept under section

NS

\

29 of the Securities (Disclosure of Interests) Ordinance (the “sp1 Ordinance”):

STATUTORY REPORTS

Number of Shares g
RHHE g
Personal Corporate Family Other »
interests interests interests interests Towal
AR EEEL Kkt A B
Crmic Pacific Limited REREERLE
Larry Yung Chi Kin 400,381,000 400,381,000 = E
Henry Fan Hung Ling 43,000,000 43.000.000 @i
Vernon Francis Moore 3,200,000 3,200,000 HEEHE
(Note 1)(fft & 1)
Peter Lee Chung Hing 500,000 500,000 ZFHHE
Norman Yuen Kee Tong 33,000 33,000 mEE
Robert Ernest Adams 550,000 550,000 &=
Liu Jifu 40,000 40,000 B EaE
Hansen Loh Chung Hon 1,050.000 500,000 500,000 1,550,000 HE#EE
{(Note 2)(FfF 5 2)  (Note 2)(Hff 3 2)
André Desmarais 88.800  100.230,000 100,318,600 #EE
(Note 3)(Fff 2£ 3)
Cathay Pacific Airways Limited EMZERAT
Hansen Loh Chung Hon 450,000 450,000 FEsEE
Note 1. Deemed interests ield by the relevant Director and hés famdly as contingent beneficiaries of a Mt BHEERARGIER—2EEAZAHBE
discretionary trust. B A TTEBR PR 2 4 -
Note 2: The corporate interests and the famuly interests of the relevant Director duplicate each other as the M2 AHEFHEZ BB AR GEREE
500,000 shares are held through a company in which the relevant Director and his family are interested. & F500000 B HBEB—HEZEFRARE

FEHZ L E -

Note 3: In addition to the aforesaid, the relevant Director is also one of the trustees of a Canadian discretionary ‘

irust which controls Canadian companies which owns 24,000 shares of the Company. W3 B LAETES  EHEETH—EAWNEXE
BEHZZIAANL — - EEEAHENETELF
24,000 AR Z B LN A] -
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As at 31 December 2001, none of the Directors has any other interests in the equityor  AZEE—F+-A=+—H  EHEHENE
debt securities of the Company or any associated corporations (within the meaning of AR S MMEEE (FRFHEELEK

the sp1 Ordinance) which have been entered in the register kept by the Company i) Z BRASERE ST SRR KRR
pursuant to section 29 of the sp1 Ordinance or as otherwise notified to the Company A ROE 29 BRRALE TUREFZE
and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model Code for Securities Transactions by LA M AR > BRRE LT AR ERET
: Directors of Listed Companies. HHZ 5 HRESF B E B R AL 7 KB
| ZAETEM A -

Substantial Sharehelders

f As at 31 December 2001, the interests of substantial shareholders, other than the it

; Directors of the Company, in the equity securities of the Company as recorded in the REFF-F+ZA=Z1—H  REEEE
%, register required to be kept under section 16(1) of the spi Ordinance are as follows: BB 16WVRETREZ B s NG
i SEBMR RATEBRIN RAATRA
i BELEBMT -

$

T Number of Shares

i of the Compary

} Name FLAZEBEE £8

i Crmc Beijing 632,066,285 H{Ed T

| Coc 632066285 H{EFiE

Heedon Corporation 498,424,285  Heedon Corporation

‘ Honpville Corporation 310,988,221 Honpville Corporation

i Rockhampton Investments Limited 292,000.000  Rockhampion [nvestments Limited

% Bloomfield Enterprises Corp 292,000,000  Bloomficld Enterprises Corp

: Earnplex Corporation 292,000,000  Earnplex Corporation

|

ji;_: CiTiC HK is a substantial shareholder of the Company indirectly through the HPBERREISE 8 PEFEEET
| following wholly owned subsidiary companies by virtue of section 8(2) of the spi NEEMBARMERAANEZTE
E* Crdinance as follows: FBOR

Number of Shares of k80,40 each :

Nasme of Subsidiary Companies of Crric 1ig BREBEFOOTZRIBE FEEEZHBRAAER

Affluence Limited 43.266.000  Affluence Limited

Winton Corp 30,718,000  Winton Corp

Westminster Investment Inc 101,960,000  Wesuninster Investment Inc

2 Jetway Corp 22,500,000  Jetway Corp

‘ Cordia Corporation 32,258,064  Cordia Corporation

‘ Honpville Corporation 310,988,221  Honpville Corporation

; Hainsworth Limited 80,376,000  Hainsworth Limited

: Southpoint Enterprises Inc 10,000,000  Southpoint Enterprises Inc
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Each of Affluence Limited, Winton Corp, Westminster Investment Inc, Jetway Corp,
Cordia Corporation, Honpville Corporation, Hainsworth Limited and Southpoint
Enterprises Inc holds the shares of the Company beneficially. Accordingly, Honpville

Corporation is a substantial shareholder of the Company.

Crric Beijing is the direct holding company of Citic Hk. CiTiC HK is the direct holding
company of Heedon Corporation, Hainsworth Limited, Affluence Limited and
Barnsley Investments Limited. Heedon Corporation is the direct holding company of
Winton Corp, Westminster Investment Inc, Jetway Corp, Kotron Company Lid and
Honpville Corporation and Kotron Company Ltd is the direct holding company of
Cordia Corporation. Barnsley Investments Limited is the direct holding company of
Southpoint Enterprises Inc. Accordingly, the interests of Citic Beijing in the Company
duplicate the interests of CiTic HK in the Company. The interests of CiTic K in the
Company duplicate the interests in the Company of all its direct and indirect subsidiary
companies as described above. The interests of Heedon Corporation in the Company
duplicate the interests in the Company of all its direct and indirect subsidiary
companies as described above. The interests of Barnsley Investments Limited in the
Company duplicate the interests in the Company of its direct subsidiary company as
described above and the interests of Kotron Company Lid in the Company duplicate

the interests in the Company of its direct subsidiary company as described above.

Rockhampton Investments Limited is a wholly owned subsidiary company of
Bloomfield Enterprises Corp, which in turn is a wholly owned subsidiary company of
Earnplex Corporation. Accordingly, the interests of Earnplex Corporation duplicate
the interests in the Company of its direct and indirect subsidiary companies as
described above. Mr Larry Yung Chi Kin is the owner of the entire issued share capital
of Earnplex Corporation. The interests in the Company of Rockhampton Investments
Limited represent part of the corporate interests of Mr Larry Yung Chi Kin as

mentioned in the above section of “Directors’ Interests in Securities of the Company”.

Affluence Limited * Winton Corp ~ Westminster
Investment. Inc - jetway Corp ~ Cordia
Corporation * Honpville Corporation »
Hainsworth Limited & Southpoint Enterprises Inc
SHEEREALAZ KM - Bt -
Honpville  Corporation MARREZ E&
R -

FELEATERELHEERAHT - $F
FHW 5 Heedon  Corporation * Hainsworth
Limited * Affluence  Limited X Barnsley
Investments Limited Z B ## XA 7 > Heedon
Corporation £ Winton  Corp * Westminster
Investment Inc * Jeoway Corp ~ Kotron Company
Ltd & Honpville CorporationZ E##E R A A »

il Kotron Company Lid £ Cordia Corporation
ZEELMAF - Barnsley  lnvestments
Limited 2 Southpoint Enterprises Inc Z E &%
FRAE o Bt PEIEERALF ZEG R
FEEEMALFAZELEEE - PETER
ARRZ R PR B R REEE
ZHBARRARAZHLEESR - Heedon
Corporation FAAAR Z E#BE F T HE
ERHEEE L MBLAANALAZERE
& o Barnsley Investments Limited FRAAE Z
WA AEE PR ERER MR ARARELR
ZHEZHEE T Kotron Company Ld FAZA
Al BIEE P E R A AR
ANFZERER - '

Rockhampron Investments Limited /3 Bloomfield
Enterprises Corp Z ZEHB AR - EHMIAZ
Earnplex Corporation Z 2 &M B A
It > Earnplex Corporation FA7s 73 & 2 # 42 52
H Pl R A B AT RALE
ZHEESR o RE %L Earnplex
Corporation 2 FF BT A ZHF A -
Rockhampton Investments Limited /2422 7] 2
ey bt [EERALFAEE L]
TR A (R T R R H A — B
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‘ Purchase; Sale or Redemption of Shares BE - HesEmiks

i During the year ended 31 December 2001, the Company made the following RBE-ZE-F+A=Z+—-HLEE
L repurchases of its own shares on the Stock Exchange for the purpose of enhancing its ALFIG BRI G 2 Bly > FLR
i‘ earnings per share: BERE . FEWT

i

n

1] Price Per Share Agaregate

1 GRIEE Price faid

4 Number of Shares Highest Lowest EfffEfsAHE

4 Repurchased BE =i HKS million

Ji.. Month/Year SEERGEE kS E BT uks EHT BEEHT  F8

{ September 2001 6,220,000 15.90 13.15 88 —ZT—4NA

}

; These repurchased shares were cancelled upon repurchase and accordingly the issued  Z3FFHEE 2 IR MTE B ER BEED T LAGESH » B
share capital of the Company was reduced by the nominal value of these shares. The WARFZEBTRACHEREZSRE
. premium payable on repurchase was charged against retained profit. An amount B2 EE - REEFENZ@ER R
3 equivalent to the nominal value of the shares cancelled of Hx$2 million was transferred  REGF P - MABER _EH&5T - A
from retained profit to capital redemption reserve. SR E SR A EZ SED R E R
% . , , . , T GAT  -

Save as disclosed above. neither the Company nor its subsidiary companies has

purchased or sold any of the Company’s shares during the vear ended 31 December BREXFTKBEES  RBE-TT—F+=
2001 and the Company has not redeemed any of its shares during the year ended 31 A=Zt—BLEFE  AAASHENEL RS
I December 2001 ERES L EARALEMRE  TRBE
§ “EFE-FE+ZAZT—HILEE > AL
i B B AT T R 6

Service Contracts

As at 31 December 2001, there were no service contracts which were not determinable

; by the employer within one year without payment of compensation (other than RIS &4

g statutory compensation) between any company in the Group and any Director RIZFF—FE+TA=Z+t—H  AREET
i proposed for re-election at the forthcoming Annual General Meeting. {720 R MLAR SR AL B A 3 B 2 AR BB AR K
3 @ bR 2 A AT IR R AR —
+ N ERRfRE (EEBER MTUKLEY
4‘; Arrangements for Acquisitien of Shares or Debentures AL -

; The Company adopted the Cric Pacific Share Incentive Plan 2000 (“the Plan”) on 31

f May 2000, pursuant to which the Board may invite selected Emplovees (as defined in

X; the rules of the Plan) to subscribe for options over the Company’s shares on paymentof  BARBHEEHF 2 THE

f Hk$ 1 per acceptance of such invitation. The subscription price is to be determined by ~ FARRZZRZZERL =+ —BRADE
L the Board and will not be lower than 100% of the average of the closing prices of the RERMERFE _FET ([E) - &
Company’s shares on the Stock Exchange as stated in the Stock Exchange’s daily b EEETVHFENREZEE (FEREZ
; quotations sheets for the five trading days immediately preceding the date of grant FHEVAAD) RREEAL R WA DL
%: (which is deemed to be the date of the offer) on which there were dealings in the SEAGEBRAZESFEINEY—T - B
; Company’s shares on the Stock Exchange. No such invitation has been made as at 31 BHEEEENmEEEREE - 2ESEER
l December 2001 RATRBHREEL A (DEHR) ZHE
4 AR TR R E R AR BELS
1 H 2P (AR 225 2 1 B R
A EFRAL) 2100% - BESEEF4
! AZ+—H1k > AL R M F B -




Save as aforesaid. at no time during the year was the Company or any of its subsidiary
companies a party or parties to any arrangement to enable the Directors of the
Company to acquire benefits by means of the acquisition of shares in or debentures of

the Company or any other body corporate.

Other Matters
The “Subsequent Events™ as set out in note 29 to the accounts on pages 105 to 106
may be material for the appreciation of the state of the Company’s affairs by its

members.

Auditors
The accounts for the year have been audited by PricewaterhouseCoopers who shall

retire and, being eligible, shall offer themselves for re-appointment.

Corporate Governance
During the vear, the Company was in compliance with the Code of Best Practice as set

out in the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on the Stock Exchange.

By Order of the Board,
Larry Yung Chi Kin
Chatrman

Hong Kong, 14 March 2002

BrEESN > ALFHHEEMEBLRA
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[ Censelidated Rrafh and Loss ACeouil o e

Jor the year ended 31 December 2001 BEZFF—FFAZ+—HLFE
Note

in vik$ million Pt 2001 2000 LB E BT E

TUrnover 2 17,251 16,044 B

Profit from Consclidated Activities 3 2,132 2,481 HSUBERN

Share of Profits less Losses of

o T TSI A AL S S S S

Associated Companies 5 947 1,764 FREEBEATRMRRE

Net Finance Charges 4 (504) (614) MIBEHTH
Profit before Taxation 2,575 3,631 B
Tanation 6 (306) (229) BE
Profit for the Year 2,269 3,402 EREF
Minority lnterests (159) (111)  DeasiEn
Profit Attributable to Shareholders 7 2,110 3,291 RSRRE(EEER
Dividends 8 (1,753) (1.871) BE
i
|
{ Transfer to Reserves 22 (6) (4) BAEE
i
i’:
iE Earnings per Share (xx$) 9 0.96 1.49 HBREREN (BRI
1
e
nu

i
i
H
i
i
i
H
i
t
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[Eon=ciiaatealBaianceIsheet

EREEE SR

as at 3 December 200/

SFE— TR AR

Note
in UK S million Bt 2001 2000 U EETTE
Fixed Assels 12 14,702 13,433 ETEE
Associated Companies 14 25,027 25,434 BEAT
Investments 16 8,449 9,479 #E
Goodwill 15 353 - B8
Current Assels mBEE
Amount due from a substantial shareholder 17 - 567 FERRRESH
Properties held for sale 12 345 341 HEY=
Inventories 18 1,799 1,521 HE
Listed investment 2,189 3,144 NS
Debrors, accounts receivable, FEUTHETE » FERBERR »
deposits and prepayments 19 3,330 2,613 HEREMNHE
Cash and bank deposits 4,631 5.201 B RBITHR
________ 12,294 13387
Current Liabilities REBE
Bank loans, other loans and overdrafts BITER - HMOERREY
- secured 72 261 —
- unsecured 2,158 2,491 —EHEH
Creditors, accounts payable, FETHETE ~ BEATIRSR -
deposits and accruals 20 2,423 2,487 He RENHE
Provision for taxation 141 119 Film e
________ 4794 9398
Net Gurrent Assels 7,500 8,020 BREDHEE
Total Assets less Current Liabilities 56,031 56,375 HBEERRHEE
Long Term Borrowings 23 (12,409) (12,957) EHER
Deferred Taxaltion 24 (215) (237) BEHIE
25 43,407 43,181
Financed by: i S
Share Capital 21 876 878 KX
Reserves 29 39,447 38,999 &
Proposed Dividend 1,314 1,427 EBERE
Shareholders’ Funds 41,637 41,304 HFES
Minerity Interests 1,770 1,877 LHIRSEIER
43,407 43,181
Larry Yung Chi Kin Director HBER FH
Henry Fan Hung Ling Diecor TR 2F
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EEEER

as atr 31 December.?OO]- TRE—EF A — AT
Note
in WK$ million B 2001 2000 LERFHETHE
Fized Assels 12 58 54 BEEE
Subsidiary Companies 13 40,995 42.384 MEAT
Associated Companies 14 2,801 3,452 HEEAT
Current Assels RBEE
Debtors, accounts receivable, FEITHRTE - REUREREN -
deposits and prepayments 19 118 140 e R HIE
Cash and bank deposits 2,926 3.596 B REATHR
3,044 3,736
Current Liabilities RBEE
Bank loans, other loans and overdrafts S|frew - Ragsmrs
— unsecured 701 - — BIEAF
Creditors, accounts payable, JERTERIA - REAT AR -
deposits and accruals 20 68 143 e REFEUR
769 143
Net Current Assels 2,275 3,593 BhRDHEE
Total Assets less Current Liabilities 46,129 49,483 BEERRHER
Long Term Borrowings 23 (8,051) (11,633) REA#®R
38,078 37,850
Financed by: HERE
Share Capital 21 876 878 &%
Reserves 22 35.888 35,545 #iE
Proposed Dividend 1,314 1,427 EEkRE
Sharcholders® Funds 38,078 37.850 REES
Larry Yung Chi Kin Director HEE %

Henry Fan Hung Ling Direcor

B4




| Conselicaizd Cash Flow SEiemad

- e

Jor the year ended 3 December 2001

BREZFF—FFTAZA+—ALFE

in WK million 2001 2000 poEwmEECHE
Cash Flows from Operating Activities QREBZRERE
Profit from Gonsolidated Activities after BRRARS 3 A
Net Finance Charges 1,628 1,867 ZEEEBRT
Net interest expense 449 568 PSR FE
Income from investments (1,509) (1,700) A G
Depreciation and amortisation 493 452 I8 R ks
Amortisation of goodwill 11 - ]
Loss on disposal of fixed assets 36 3 HEREEEZER
Tmpairment loss of fixed assets 75 - [ E G 2 B {EER
Profit on disposal of investment properties (2) - HEREYEZEF
Net loss/(gain) from investments 154 (111) REBE BER/ E)
Provision for diminution in value of unlisted investments - 1 ARG BEER
Operating Profit before Working Capital Changes 1,335 1,080 RetBEESBEHZEERN
Increase in inventories (33) (96) FEYEm
Decrease/(increase) in debtors, FEURIE - FEUCRSK -
accounts receivable, Ha KB HOE
deposits and prepayments 311 (290) wp/ Em)
(Decrease)/increase in creditors, EAIRE - BATERY - %2Rk
accounts payable, deposits and accruals (443) 326 FERTEE (B0)
Effect of foreign exchange rates (40) 28 IMEERRE
Cash Generated from Operations 1,130 1,048 REEERELZHRS
Interest received 248 617 T HE
Interest paid (973) (1,380) EHE
Income taxes paid (154) (120) BT EH
Net Cash from Operating Activities 251 165 EEHBZHSTE
Cash Flows from Investing Activities REEB2RERE
Purchase of subsidiary companies (net of cash and BAWBAR (NERAEHR
cash equivalents acquired) (note a) (594) (1,611) & RERES) (HEta)
Purchase of additional interests in a subsidiary company (319) (61) B AW BN B2 Z
Purchase of fixed assets (1,839) (1,639) BEAETEE
Investment in associated companies - (1.131) REEARZETE
Increase in investments (152) (248) Bz sm
Proceeds on disposal of fixed assets 41 34 HEREEENE
Proceeds on disposal of interest in an associated company 2 20 HEBE AR ERNTE
Proceeds on disposal of investments 1,246 1,770 B EREE
Decrease/(increase) in amount due from a ITEREREEEZ WY/
substantial shareholder 567 (567) ()
Decrease in amount due to a previous shareholder of
a subsidiary company - (45) KMEARRIRESEZHD
EFHE ATz ERED
Decrease/(increase) in loans to associated companies 261 (685) (H#E7m)
Dividend income from associated companies 762 738 wemE AR ZRBIA
Income from investments 1,507 1,562 RERREHBIE
RE/(BR) BEEEZ
Net Cash from/(used in) Investing Activities 2,182 (1,863) H&FH
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in WKS mitlion 2001 2000 LB EETEE
Cash Flows from Financing Activities REREZAERHD
Repurchase of shares (88) (1,004) g o1 A1y
Issue of shares - 4,038 BATRLM
Expenses on issue of shares - (97) BT EM
New borrowings 6,784 626 FHEIE
Repayment of loans (8,271) (4.053) HBEK
Increase in minority interests 28 443 B R AE 5 2 S
Dividends paid (1,866) (1,668) EIRKE
Net Cash used in Financing Astivities (3,413) (1,715) FRBEZRETHE
Net Decrease in Cash and Cash Equivalents (980) (3,413) RERERREZRELTH
Gash and Cash Equivalents at { January 4,127 7,543 R—F—EZB&RZEFRE
Effect of Foreign Exchange Rate Changes (7) (3) NMBEREH2HE
R+ZA=+—-B2ZHR&
Cash and Cash Equivalents at 391 December 3,140 4,127 RERRS
Analysis of the Balances of Cash and
Cash Equivalents ReRERRELSTZaN
Cash and bank deposits 4,631 5,201 B & RRATEK
WITER > BAERREL
Bank loans, other loans and overdrafts (note b) (1,491) (1,074) (fzEDb)
3,140 4,127




[NCiesltolconsolidatealcashiElowjstatement

a Purchase of subsidiary companies

a BAKBAT

invKS million 2001 2000 bR EETHE
Net assels acquired WEEREE
Fixed assets 52 59 EEHEE
Investments 1 - ®&
[nventories 242 118 A&
Accounts receivable and prepayments 372 143 MEUURSEM R
Cash and bank deposits 16 17 Ba LR
Bank overdrafis (9) (7) #ETEX
Creditors and accrued charges (359) (202) BEFTREXESZUE
Deferred taxation (4) (1) EEFIA
Minority interests (1 (2) DEAREES
310 125
Less: Interest in associated companies - (4) B BERFZESR
Goodwill 364 1,500 ®E&E
674 1,621
Satisfied by: TR
Cash 601 1,621  H&
Accounts payable 73 - AR
674 1,621
Analysis of the net outflow of cash and cash equivalents FRABAMBLRAZE S KER
in respect of the purchase of subsidiary companies Re R EE 4
vk million 2001 2000 UBETETLHE
Cash consideration 601 1621 B&fEE
Cash and bank deposits acquired (16) (17) BAZRERBITHER
Bank overdrafts acquired 9 7T BAZRTEXL
394 1,611

b Reconciliation of the balance of cash and cash equivalents in respect

b ERBITER  HRERRE

of bank loans, other loans and overdrafts YT rHESHEEESEE T HE
inHKS milion 2001 2000 UBwEETHE
Bank loans, other loans and overdrafts 2,230 2,752 SHITEI - Ha SR RES
Bank loans, other loans and overdrafis ={H AR RITER
over three months to marurity (739) (1.678)  HUEFIEX
Bank loans, other loans and overdrafts within =@ AR H/TER
three months to maturity 1,491 1,074 HittERRET
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Jor the year ended 31 December 2001

BEZLE—FFIAZ+—HIEFE

Not
in HKS million M?%Ie 2001 2000 U E BT E
At 1 January 41,178 38,178 —p-—H
Brior Year Adjustments 22 126 02 LEEHASE
As restated 41,304 38,240 E3|
Goodwill en Consolidation FEREELE
Written O - (1,779) ZEBEE
Share of Reserves of Associated
Companies 339 528 FiiaHEATIRE
(Ceficil)/Surplus on Revaluation
of Properties (157) 211 HEEFELEZ (BY) /B8
Exchange Transiation Differences (3) 4 SHEREZH
Reserves Released (2) (460) AR
Net Gains/(Losses) Not Recognised ,
in the Consolidated Profit and RRGeERRBERI WS
Loss Account 177 (1,496) (E5%8) B8
Profit Attributable to Sharcholders 2,110 3,201 ESRRE(AEN
PDividends 8 (1,866) (1,668) [R&B
Issues of Shares, Net of Expenses - 3.941 BITEHEER
Repurchase of Shares (88) (1,004) EEEIRRS
At 31 December 41,637 41,304 +=RA=4+-B
Representing: &
At 831 December after Proposed +ZB=+—-BEitA
Final Dividend 40,323 39,877 EERORE
Proposed Final Dividend 8 1,314 1,427 EERBEER
41,637 41,304

&8
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Jor the year ended 31 December 2001

1 Significant Accounting Pelicies

a BASIS OF PREPARATION

The accounts have been prepared in accordance with accounting principles generally
accepted in Hong Kong and comply with accounting standards issued by the Hong
Kong Society of Accountants. The recognition of exchange differences on certain long-
term liabilities in Cimic Pacific’s associated company Cathay Pacific Airways Limited
(“Cathay Pacific”) does not comply with Hong Kong Statement of Standard
Accounting Practice (“ssap”) No. 11 but does comply with International Accounting
Standards (“1as”) and Cathay Pacific’s policy is explained in accounting policy

Note 1p below.

The accounts are prepared under the historical cost convention as modified by the
revaluation of investment properties and listed investments not held for long term as

explained in the accounting policies set out below.

The Group adopted new or revised ssaps which became effective for the current
financial year and has chosen to adopt early Statement of Changes in Equity required in
ssaP No. 1 (revised) “Presentation of Financial Statements”™ and ssap No. 15 (revised)
“Cash Flow Statements”. The changes to the accounting policies and their financial

impacts are set out in the respective accounting policy below.

b  BASIS OF CONSOLIDATION

The consolidated accounts incorporate the accounts of the Company and all its
subsidiary companies made up to the balance sheet date. The results of subsidiary
companies acquired or disposed of during the year are included as from the effective

dates of acquisition or up to the effective dates of disposal respectively.

¢ GOODWILL
Positive goodwill arising on acquisition of subsidiary companies and associated
companies represents the excess of the cost of the acquisition over the Group’s

share of the fair value of the identifiable assets and liabilities acquired.

- for acquisitions before 1 January 2001, positive goodwill is written off to reserves in
the year of acquisition or amortised over a period no longer than its useful life to the

Group.

— for acquisitions on or after 1 January 2001, positive goodwill is amortised on a

straight line basis over its estimated useful life not exceeding 20 years.
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1 Significant Accounting Peolicies convnued
Negative goodwill arising on acquisition of subsidiary companies and associated
companies represents the excess of the Group’s share of the fair value of the

identifiable assets and liabilities acquired over the cost of the acquisition.

— for acquisitions before 1 January 2001, negative goodwill is credited to the capital

reserve.

~ for acquisitions on or after 1 January 2001, to the extent that negartive goodwill
relates to an expectation of future losses and expenses that are identified in the plan of
acquisition and can be measured reliably, itis recognised in the consolidated profit and
loss account when the future Josses and expenses are recognised. Any remaining
negative goodwill, but not exceeding the fair values of the non-monetary assets
acquired, is recognised in the consolidated profit and loss account over the weighted
average uscful life of those non-monetary assets that are depreciable or amortisable.
Negative goodwill in excess of the fair value of the non-monetary assets acquired is

recognised immediately in the consolidated profit and loss account.

Positive goodwill is stated in the consolidated balance sheet as a separate asset or
included within associated companies at cost less accumulated amortisation and
impairment losses (see Note 1n). Negative goodwill not vet recognised in the

consolidated profit and loss account is shown as a deduction from positive goodwill.

The Group has adopted the transitional provision of ssap No. 30 that goodwill
previously included in reserves need not be restated.

The transitional provision of ssap No. 29 requires intangible assets of Hk$3,610 million
previously included in the investment in associated companies, which do not meet the
new definition and recognition criteria of intangible assets. to be re-classified as
goodwill subject to amortisation over a maximum of 20 years. As a result, the Group’s
opening retained profits as at 1 January 2000 and 2001 are reduced by k$1,064
million and HK$ 1,239 million respectively (see Note 22a), and the Group’s profit for
the year ended 31 December 2000 is reduced by HK$ 175 million.

Furthermore, goodwill of Hk$ 1,457 million (see Note 22a) previously written off to
reserves is now reclassified to retained profits under the transitional provision of ssap
No. 30 as the amount is considered impaired because it has no unexpired useful lile.

This has no effect on the shareholders’ funds.
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d SUBSIDIARY COMPANIES

Investments in subsidiary companies are carried at cost less impairment losses.

e ASSOCIATED COMPANIES
Associated companies are companies, other than subsidiary companies, in which the
Group holds not more than 50 per cent of their equity share capital for the long term

and can exercise significant influence in their management.

The consolidated profit and loss account includes the Group’s share of the results of
associated companies for the year adjusted by amortisation and impairment losses of
goodwill, if any. The consolidated balance sheet includes the Group’s share of net

assets of the associated companies, after attributing fair values to the net assets at the

date of acquisition.

In the Company’s balance sheet the investments in associated companies are stated at
cost less impairment losses. The results of associated companies are accounted for by

the Company on the basis of dividends received and receivable.

f DEPRECIATICN
All fixed assets except investment properties, properties held for development and
construction in progress are carried at cost less accumulated depreciation and

accumulated impairment losses.

Changes in the value of investment properties reflecting market conditions,
depreciation and other factors are incorporated in the annual accounts on the basis set

outinnote 1g.

Frechold land is not amortised. Leaschold land is depreciated over the remaining

portion of the relevant lease.

Amortisation of vehicular tunnel (including land and buildings) is provided for over the
franchise period on the basis of a sinking fund calculation whereby annual amounts

compounded at the rate of 7% per annum will equal the net cost of the tannel.
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1 Significant accounting policies coninued
Other fixed assets are depreciated at rates sufficient to write off their cost or valuation,
less impairment losses, if any, over their estimated useful lives on a straight line basis at

the following annual rates:

- Buildings 2%-4% or the remaining lease

period of the land

~ Other fixed assets, comprising
telecommunications equipment,
traffic equipment, cargo lighters,
computer installations, motor vehicles,
plant and machinery, furniture,

fixtures and equipment 10%-25%

g INVESTMENT PROPERTIES
Investment properties are interests in land and buildings in respect of which
construction work and development have been completed and which are held for their

investment potential.

Investment properties held on leases with unexpired periods greater than twenty years
are valued at intervals of not more than three years by independent valuers; in each of
the intervening vears, valuations are undertaken by professionally qualified personnel.
The valuations are on an open market value basis related to individual properties and
separate values are not attributed to land and buildings. The valuations are
incorporated in the annual accounts. Increases in valuation are credited to the
investment property revaluation reserve; decreases are first set off against increases on

earlier valuations on a portfolio basis and thereafter are charged to operating profit.

Investment properties held on leases with unexpired periods of twenty years or less are

depreciated over the remaining portion of the leases.

Upon the disposal of an investment property, the relevant portion of the revaluation
reserve realised in respect of previous valuations is released from the investment

property revaluation reserve to the profit and loss account.

h  PROPERTIES HELD FOR DEVELOPMENT

Properties held for development consist of investments in land for future development
and buildings under construction and properties under development pending any
positive intention either to retain them for investment purposes or to sell them for

proceeds. The investments are stated at cost less any accumulated impairment losses.
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i CAPITALISATION OF DEVELOPMENT COSTS

Property development expenditure, inclusive of interest and professional fees, is

capitalised as cost of development.

Borrowing costs incurred on assets under development that take a substantial period of

time to get ready for their intended use or sale are capitalised into the carrying value of

the assets under development.

The capitalisation rate applied to funds borrowed for the development of the assets is

based on the attributable cost of funds to the Group.

All other borrowing costs are charged to the profit and loss account in the period in

which they are incurred.

j  REVENUE RECOGNITION

(1)

(1ii)

Motor vehicles

Revenue arising from the sale of motor vehicles is recognised when the
registration document is issued or on delivery of motor vehicles, whichever is
earlier, which are taken to be the point in time when the customer has
accepted the goods and the related risks and rewards of ownership. Revenue

excludes any government taxes and is after deduction of any trade discounts.

Sales of properties under development and properties held for sale

Income from sales of properties under development is recognised when the

properties developed for sale are sold in advance of completion and the
outcome of projects can be ascertained with reasonable certainty by
reference to the construction progress. Profit is recognised over the course
of the development and is computed in each year as a proportion of the total
estimated profit of the development. The proportion used is calculated by
reference to the proportion of construction costs incurred to date to the
estimated total construction costs to completion of the development and the
extent of the sales proceeds received, after taking into account due allowance

for contingencies.

Income from properties held for sale is recognised at the date when sale

agreement is signed.

Income from co-operative joint venture

Where the Group has been guaranteed a minimum rate of rerurn on its
investment in co-operative joint ventures, income is accrued at the minimum
rate of return, and any return in excess of the minimum is recognised in the

year in which it is received, or becomes receivable.
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Significant accounting pelicies cninued

(iv)

(vi)

Other income or dividend from co-operative joint venture is recognised

when the right to receive is established.

Income from disposal of co-operative joint venture is recognised at the date

when sale agreement is signed.

Other goods

Revenue arising from the sale of other goods is recognised on the delivery of
g g gn y

goods to customers. Revenue is determined after deduction of any

trade discounts.

Rendering of services
Commission income and revenue arising from the rendering of repairing
services are recognised when the goods concerned are sold to customers and

when the relevant work is completed respectively.

Revenue from the provision of telecommunications services is recognised

upon delivery of the services.

(vii} Dividend income

Dividend income is recognised when the right to receive the dividend

1s established.

Dividends proposed or declared after their balance sheet date by companies
in which the Group has an investment are no longer recognised as revenue at
the balance sheet date but on the date when the right to receive is
established. As aresult, the Group’s opening retained profits as at 1 January
2000 and 2001 are reduced by #HK$98 million and HK$62 million
respectively, the Group’s profit for the vear ended 31 December 2000 is
increased by HK$36 million and accounts receivable as at 31 December
2000 is reduced by Hk$62 million (see note 22a). The investment in
associated companies as at 31 December 2000 is increased and accounts

receivable is decreased by HK$ 387 million.

The Company’s opening retained profits as at 1 January 2000 and 2001 are
reduced by HK$ 19 million and HK$32 million respectively. The Company’s
profit for the year ended 31 December 2000 and accounts receivables as at
31 December 2000 are reduced by HK$ 13 million (see note 22b).

HR = PR

1

EEEHEG &

)

(vii)

HMRESEEEAFAIEZ
AZRE > AR BRI E
FFAMR o

HEERGELFZ iR REE
BEEAHNASRAR-

HA R
KERRHEZWEIRZET
B FF AR o WA B MR T
EOEIEE

R AR

M R R EEERE 2 WA
TIARIRERENETHERE
B LAESE AR -

A B BB 2 ik TR R AR
BFEERAR -

R ERA
R BB A T A OB B 2 R
ERAR

AEESRERZ ARARELE
AEEERNERZ REHAER
BERERBZWRA - HBTTE
MU ERERER 2 BT LU
W Bl AEERZFFRE
B-ZF-F—-A—-HZRBERE
Mol gL E¥ T ABETLR
EEATZEET - 2 EBEE
“EERE+TTAZT—HIEF
EZmAEmMER=T A E&
o MRZFFFELZA=T
— B Z RSB D R T
—HET (AR 2 - RZF
FEEFT_AZ+—HZBER
B I R e iR e B
ZEATLEET -

ERRAR_FEFER-EE—~
F— R —HZHAYRE i F 5 Al
BOEE—TLEETREYE=
FZEER - ARRAEE_ZZE
EEVYZAZT-HIEEEZE
FER _ZEZEFT_A=+—
HZ BUERF S BE—F=
HETL (RME 220 -




k PROPERTIES HELD FOR SALE
Properties held for sale are classified under current assets and are stated at the lower of

cost and net realisable value.

I INVESTMENTS
Co-operative joint ventures in the People’s Republic of China are stated at cost (net of
capital repayment) less impairment losses or where appropriate, amortised over a

period no longer than its estimated useful life to the Group.

Interest in other listed and unlisted investments held for the long term are stated at cost
less impairment losses. The carrying amounts of individual listed investments are
reviewed at each balance sheet date to assess whether the fair values have declined
below the carrying amounts. When a decline other than temporary has occurred, the
carrying amount of such securities should be reduced to its fair value. The amount of

the reduction is recognised as an expense in the profit and loss account.

Interest in other listed investments not held for the long term are carried at fair value.
At each balance sheet date, the net unrealised gains or losses arising from the changes
in fair value of such investments are recognised in the profit and loss account. Profits
or losses on disposal of such investments, representing the difference between the net
sales proceeds and the carrying amounts, are recognised in the profit and loss account

as they arise.

m OPERATING LEASES

Leases where substantially all the rewards and risks of ownership of assets remain with
the leasing company are accounted for as operating leases. Rentals payable and
receivable under operating leases are accounted for on a straight line basis over the

respective periods of the leases.

n IMPAIRMENT OF ASSETS

The Group reviews the carryiﬁg amounts of assets including goodwill for impairment
whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying amount of an
asset may not be recoverable. If such assets are considered to be impaired, the
impairment to be recognised is measured by the amount by which the carrying amount

of the assets exceeds the recoverable amount.
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1 Significant accounlting pelicies cwnrunved

o [INVENTORIES

Inventories comprising mainly motor vehicles, spare parts, electrical appliances, food,
trading items and steels are valued at the lower of cost and net realisable value. Cost
represents the actual cost of purchase and is calculated on the first-in first-out, specific
identification or weighted average basis as appropriate. Net realisable value is
determined by reference to the sale proceeds of items sold in the ordinary course of
business after the balance sheet date, and in other cases, 10 management’s estimates

based on prevailing market conditions and net replacement costs.

p FOREIGN CURRENCIES
The accounts of subsidiary companies and associated companies expressed in foreign
currencies are translated at the rates of exchange ruling at the balance sheet date.

Exchange differences arising are dealt with as a movement in reserves.

Transactions arising in foreign currencics during the year are translated into Hong
Kong dollars at rates ruling at the transaction dates. Monetary assets and liabilities in
foreign currencies are translated into Hong Kong dollars at market rates ruling at the
balance sheet date. Exchange differences arising in these cases are dealt with in the

profit and loss account with the following exception:

Cathay Pacific prepares its accounts on the basis that borrowings and leasing
obligations relating to aircraft and related equipment are so arranged that repayments
are covered by the anticipated future operating cash flows in the related currencies in
order to reduce exposure to exchange rate fluctuations. Any unrealised exchange
differences on these borrowings, leasing obligations and currency derivatives, and on
related security deposits in Cathay Pacific’s balance sheet, are recognised directly in
equity via the Statement of Recognised Gains and Losses. These exchange differences
are included in the profit and loss account as an adjustment to revenue in the same
period or periods during which the hedged transaction affects the net profit and loss.
As mentioned in note 1a this complies with 1as but does not comply with ssap No. 11
which would have required the exchange differences to pass through the profit and loss
account. The directors of Cathay Pacific consider the adopted treatment gives the

accounts a true and fair view and the auditors of Cathay Pacific agree.

q DEFERRED TAXATION

Deferred taxation is accounted for at the current tax rate in respect of material timing
differences between profit as computed for taxation purposes and profit as stated in the
accounts to the extent that a liability and/or asset is expected to be payable or

receivable in the foreseeable future.
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:
2 Turnover 2 ERE °
The principal activity of the Company is holding its subsidiary companies and the AATZ TESRABEANBAT WK | 2
principal activities of its principal subsidiary companies are set out in note 32 to WE ARz EEEHENARAME 32 >
®
the accourts. FEBZ BEROEOREEELS (08 | 5
Turnover of the Group comprises the total invoiced value of goods supplied net of F o BAIRBUNRIE) RBMRE A |
government taxes where applicable, and services rendered to customers, gross - HERERYEBLE  fREE | ©
proceeds from sale of investments and properties, amounts received and receivable in B2 3R - REGERELFZRA ;,‘“2
tespect of dividends, income from co-operative joint ventures, toll income, gross BREIE - RS UAEARREE | ®
property rental and godown and cold storage income, analysed as follows: BT #
Group %8
insSmilion 2001 2000  LsETETHE
Sales of goods 11,738 10,535 ER#HE
Sale of investment HERE
- interest in power generation in Hong Kong - 1,552 - NEERREF ER
Services rendered to customers 1,253 679 RIETEEZRH
Dividend income and income from
co-operative joint ventures 1,509 L1700 BEWRARASESELFNE
Toll income 520 508 BEEIE
Others 2,231 1,070 Hfl

17,251 16,044
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2 TUrnever contnued 2 BEf@g

Segment information is presented in respect of the Group’s business and geographical PEERHEAEEZ EH R

segments. Business segment information is chosen as the primary reporting format 1 B Sy o AR LIEE

because this is more relevant to the Group’s internal financial reporting. BEERIEZEZHAA Bl
BB A K B Z B

An analysis of the Group’s turnover by business is as follows:

HEF -
UTRERHHr 2 EREE

LT
Group Segment allocations Segment turnover
-1 S EEEHIE Vg v v ¢ v
inHKS million 2001 2000 2001 2000 2001 2000 LpBEHETHE
Marketing & Distribution & By 8
Motor vehicles and related
services 4,469 4,642 - - 4,469 4,642 TR R B
Trading 5,072 4,281 - - 5,072 4,281 45

Power and Civil Infrastructure 2,657 3,762 - - 2,657 3,762 BEREETE

Property 266 266 125 122 391 388 W
; Industrial Manufacturing 2,859 2,339 - - 2,859 2339 LN
Communications 806 232 - - 806 232 fEE¥%
Others 1,122 522 - - 1122 522 Eft
17,251 16,044 125 122 17,376 16,166
An analysis of the Group’s turnover by geographical area is as follows: DIFAMERREN»ZEE
BEHELT
' Group EH
ik millon 2001 2000 upBEHLHE
: Hong Kong 8,598 8,399 FiE
Mainland China 7,373 5896  FEKRE
; Japan 443 471 BAE
T Others : 837 1278 Eft
T
1

17.251

e
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3 Profit from Censolidated Activities 3 HEHEGRN e
An analysis of the Group’s profit from consolidated activities by business is as follows: DT ALK 28 | =
FeERBEAN =
Group Segment allocations Segment profit g
%8 preyy. S =
inecSmiln 2001 2000 2601 2000 2000 2000 pUEHEHEHE o
Marketing & Distribution SHE R f
Motor vehicles and related services 255 270 (96) (96) 159 174 HELEERE é
Trading (62) 12 (29) (26) (91) (14 5 #
Power and Civil Infrastructure 1,698 1,981 - - 1,698 1,981 BERERDLE
Property 206 189 125 122 331 31 P
Industrial Manufacturing 221 124 - - 221 124 T¥#E
Communications 155 39 - - 155 39 FE#
Others 8 167 - - 8 167 Hft

Less: General & Administration Expenses (349) (301) (349) (301) ®:—BEFTEER

2,132 2,481 - - 2,132 2,481
Croup EH
kS million 2001 2000 upEEETHE
The profit from consolidated activiies is arrived at after crediting: GaEBREADHA
Dividend income from listed investments 151 288 g LHREZBRIMEA
REkEHRE
Dividend income from unlisted investments 308 347 ZIRBUIA
Rental income from HaA
— investment properties —REY=
Gross income 210 212 Ay A
Less: Direct outgoings (36) (63) B EESH
174, 149
- other operating leases 101 95 - HiEEEA
Unrealised net (loss)/gain from FHRE Y REEF
listed investments (166) 225 (E18) g7
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3 Profit from Consolidated Activities continued

FUN Ll 1712 Rl

3 GeuBEN g

Croup %8
itk S million 2001 2000 LENEETHE
and after charging: T2 #ks
Cost of sales (note) 12,602 11,877 $ERAK ()

- including cost of inventories of —AEFERAER LR E
HK$9,626 million “FAREEG (ZEETE
(2000: Hx$8.,762 million) EEALERT SHET

Distribution costs (note) 686 449  SERAE (D
Other operating costs (note) 1,665 1,462 HtEERAE (M)

Auditors’ remuneration 12 10 i

Contributions to staff retirement schemes 55 34 B 2R (kg # K

Depreciation and amortisation 493 452 I R

Amortisation of goodwill It - ik

Impairment loss on other fixed assets 75 - HiwE 2 EEZ BEEE

Management fee payable to China
International Trust & Investment X FHEEEEERE
Corporation Hong Kong (Holdings) Limited 2 2 (FREH) FRAFZEER

Operating lease rentals EEMNHES
- land and buildings 124 86 — L RETF

note: ﬁfj‘;}'. .

Included in cost of sales, distribution costs and other operating costs are staff coses of W$1.250 mitlbon (2000:

HK$ 7,078 million)

The Group’s total future minimum lease pavments receivable under non-cancellable

operating leases are as follows:

EFEHERE  FHRERAEERERZ TR
FEHEUT A TFEE (CEERE GRETELT
NEHET)

T AASE B RREA TR B
P RENOR 2 F B AR AT AR A -

Group %8
invKk$ million 2001 2000 UBNEELHE
Within 1 vear 174 173 —%R&
After 1 year but within 5 years 184 166 —FRERIFER
After 5 vears 7 14 HEH
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=
4 Net Finance Charges 4 HMBZWTEH ©
Group %5 g
inwx$million 2001 2000 LEEEETHE =
®
Interest expense FIBCH 3
Bank loans and overdrafts wholly repayable DD@:
within five years 588 984 ARLFERNERERZBITETREL @
Bank loans not wholly repayable within five years 13 64 AERLFENEMEEZBITEN &
Other loans wholly repayable within five vears 143 212 AR HERETREEZ Kt EH &
Other loans not wholly repayable within five years 156 58 AAREENZAER 2 EMBER ke
900 1,318
Less: Amount capitalised (210) (161) W EBRTEAZHIE
690 1,157
Interest income (241) (589) FIEULA
449 568
Other finance charges 55 46  HEbHFHZH
504 614
8 Share of Profits less Losses of Associated Companies 5 FMEHELTRNESE
Group %8
intx S million 2001 2000 LIENEETHE
By business: HRBAT -
Marketing & Distribution HE R e
Motor vehicles and related services 25 29 R LR B R
Trading 23 21 B5
Power and Civil Infrastructure 120 87 HENERRE
Aviation 223 1,371 MW=
Property 381 196 ¥
Communications 175 60 EE¥
947 1,764
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6 Taxation & BHE

i ) g e g o

; Hong Kong profits tax has been calculated at the rate of 16% (2000: 16%) on the B ENBBTI LA R T R B M 1%
| estimated assessable profit for the year. Overseas taxation has been calculated on the 16% ZBE (ZFFFE : 16%) #E - &
% estimated assessable profit for the vear at the rates of taxation prevailing in the SAEETI LR Z MRt BRI R A
i countries in which the Group operates. BEBZ BRI RITRENE -

T Group £

nixSmilion 2001 2000 HEEEETHE

i Company and subsidiary companies: AuAI REME LA

| Hong Kong profits tax 108 97 FEANED

1 Overseas taxation 74 49 BIELIE

f Deferred taxation (Note 24) {16) (8) PEIHIE (HisE 24)

166 138

Associated compantes: BELA

Hong Kong profits tax 44 36 EEME

4 Overseas taxation 81 62 BIMR

§ Deferred taxation 15 (7) RIEFLE

|

¥ 140 91

? ____________________________

1 306 229

,1}_

: 7 Profit Atributable to Shareholders 7 IREUREEER

% The Group’s profit attributable to shareholders is dealt with in the accounts of the RERPEIL G A E AR EIRE AR 1
2 Company to the extent of Hk$2,182 million (2000: HK$ 3,634 million). —BATZEET (ZEEEZF ¥+
i AMEZFHEET) -

|

i

i
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8 Dividends 8 RBE
inWkSmillion 2001 2000 ¥ EEITHE
CRE-_ZEEEFERBRE
2000 Final dividend paid: Hk$0.65 BERLHER 0.65 T
(1999: HK$0.55) per share 1,427 1,224 (—RJUE - @8 0.55 7T
DRE-FZE—FHERE
2001 Interim dividend paid: Hk$0.20 BRER 020 T
(2000: HK$0.20) per share 439 444 (ZFETE B 0.207T)
ER_TTFREMRE
2001 Final dividend proposed: HK$0.60 BREN 0.60 7T
(2000: 1K$0.65) per share 1,314 1.427 (CEEEE B 0.65 7T)
1,753 1,871
Dividend per share (HK$) 0.80 0.85 EREE 8%r)

The Group has adopted ssap No. 9 (revised) “Events after the Balance Sheet Date”

which requires that dividends proposed after the balance sheet date should not be

recognised as a liability at the balance sheet date. As a result, the proposed final
dividend of the Company for the year 1999 and 2000 of nk$1,224 million and

HK$ 1,427 million respectively which was recorded as a current liability in the accounts

is now re-stated as a separate component of the shareholders’ funds.

9 Earnings per Share

The calculation of earnings per share is based on profit attributable to shareholders of

HK$2,110 million (2000: Hk$ 3,291 million) and on the weighted average number of
2,194,242 004 shares for the year (2000: 2,204,468,971 shares).

AEFCRATEEHERME NS (B8
i) (EEABREERAZER] BHER
EAAGERREZ REREERE—ER
HEAZARE - Al RAFR—IIUILE
ROFEZFZRERPRE (287 A
R B TNEE TR TEEST
tEET) RURBEELAAR, REE
SIERRESE 2 —8 -

o BREN

BREAERREG GRS+ —E—
TELT (ZZZEF  B¥=T-%
NF—EEBET) RERZBRGNE
T #2.194,242,004 i (ZEFEF
2,204,468,971 fx) #HE -
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NeLEs W@ L AGCOUNID R =PI E
10 Directors’ Emoluments 10 HBL&
Croup %8
inHR$ mitlion 2001 2000 wpEHETiHE
Fees 2.0 1.8 ##
Salaries 15.4 11.2 %%
Bonuses 66.6 67.3 T4
84.0 80.3
The Directors’ emoluments are analysed as follows: EEHE TN
Number of directors
EEAY
2001 2000
Emoluments Bands B @ E
HKSO - HK$1,000,000 7 8 #B%0 7t % %% 1,000,000 7T
Hk$1,000,001 - Hk$1,500.000 2 2 #E% 1,000,001 JT E E% 1,500,000 T
Hk$1,500,001 - 1x$2,000,000 3 2 #% 1,500,001 5T E & 2,000,000 7T
HK$3,000,001 - HK$3,500,000 1 - #%3,000000 JTZE E¥ 3,500,000 7T
HK$3,500,001 -~ Hk$4,000,000 - 1 % 3,500,001 7t E #% 4,000,000 T
Hk$4,500,001 - Hk$5,000,000 1 1 #% 4,500,001 7T E #% 5,000,000 T
HK$7,000,001 - nk$7,500,000 - 1 #¥ 7000001 7T FE E¥ 7,500,000 T
HK$9,000,001 - Hx$9,500,000 1 - #%9,000,001 T E #% 9,500,000 T
Hx$11,000,001 - uk$11,500,000 - 1 % 11,000,001 T £ %% 11,500,000 T
HK$ 11,500,001 - 1k$12,000,000 L - % 11,500,001 5T £ %W 12,000,000 T
Hk$13,000,001 - 5x$13.500,000 1 1 #% 13.000001 & £ %% 13,500,000 7T
1k$ 15,000,001 - 1k$15,500,000 1 1 #% 15,000,001 7T & %% 15,500,000 T
HK$ 18,000,001 - Hk$18,500,000 1 1 % 18,000,001 & £ % 18,500,000 7T

Emoluments paid to independent non-executive directors during the year amounted to

HK$0.8 million (2000: HK$0.8 million).

The five highest paid individuals of the Group during the year were also directors and

their emoluments ate reflected in the analysis presented above.

AEN - BUFUTEF M HER A
Ex (CEFTTE ERATED -

AEERAEEERSTHZALALE R
B MMM e S 8RNI o -




11 Retirement Benefits
Crmic Pacific Limited operates two principal schemes to provide retirement benefits for

employees of the Group as well as its subsidiary companies and associated companies.

The Crtic Group Retirement Plan (“the Plan”) is a defined contribution scheme
governed by a Trust Deed. The plan is registered under the Cccupational Retirement
Schemes Ordinance and is exempted under the Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes
Ordinance. The Group has appointed an independent trustee who in turn appoints the
investment manager and plan administrator to manage the Plan in accordance with the
Trust Deed and Rules. Emplovees are offered a choice of investments and the trustee

" issues statements to members of the Plan twice a year.

A Crmic Group Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme (“mPF Scheme™) has also been setup
in accordance with the stipulations of the Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes
Ordinance 1o offer a choice to employees who opt not to join the Plan. Eligibility of
membership of the mpF Scheme is identical to that of the Plan and new employees are
offered the choice of joining either the Plan or the mpr Scheme. The MpF Scheme is

managed through a master trust offered by an independent service provider.

Contributions to the Plan are in accordance with the Trust Deed and Rules whilst
contributions to the MPF Scheme are at rates specified in the terms of the master trust
scheme. Assets of the Plan and the MpF Scheme are held separately in funds managed
and administered by the respective trustees. Forfeited contributions under the Plan are
credited to the accounts of the remaining members of the Plan in proportion to their

account balances.
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12 Fixed Assets 12 BESE
a  GROUP a £H
Properties
Investment Self-used held for Vehicular Orhers
properties  properties  development tunnel (note it) Total
FHE Eft
i HK$ million REWE BHEYE ZY¥E  TEBE (Fizti) BE  LBEEEETHE
Cost or valuation HAR B AGE
At 1 January 2001 3,531 3,328 270 1,983 4,543 13,655 —FFZ—E—F—H
Exchange adjustments (32) (8) - - (5) (45) RIAEE
Additions 6 12 217 - 1,754 1,989 #HE
Disposals (3) (27) - - (135)  (167) H%&
Revaluation deficit (Note 22a) (157) - - - - (157) EFEEZBEM (i 22)
Reclassification 14 (12) - - (2) - EHnE
Acquisition of subsidiary companies - - - - 120 120 UeBEMRE A F
TETF
Au31 December 2001 T 3293 48T 1988 62T 135 oAt
Accunudared depreciation BRTE
At1 January 2001 - 490 - 436 1,296 2,222 Z—FEF—E—-F—H
Exchange adjustments - (2) - - (3) (5) HBEE
Charge for the year - 59 - 58 306 423 AEERE
Impairment loss - - - - 75 73 BEBE
Written back on disposals - (7) - - (83) (90) HEEE
Acquisition of subsidiary companies - - - - 68 68  ULRRMIE A E
“EFE
At31 December2001 .~ . - 40 - 494 1,659 2,693 t+ZH=+—H
Net book value FRE FE
TEEE
At 31 December 2001 5,357 2,753 487 1,489 4,616 14,702 +-H=+—H
EREE
At 31 December 2000 5,531 2,838 270 1,547 3,247 13,433 +ZB=+—H
The analysis of cost or valuation of the above asseis is as follows: LI ERZ ARG
ST
At cost - 3,293 487 1,983 6,275 12,038 A&
Atprofessional valuation - 2001 5,357 - - - - 5,337 HEME-_ZFET-F
3,357 3,293 487 1,983 6,275 17,395
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note:
(1) Interest captialised in fixed assets other than investment properties amounts (o WK$ 106 million (2000:
HKS2S mitlion).

(ii)  Other fived assets comprise rraffic equipment, cargo lighters, computer inslallations, telecommunications
equipment, optical fibre network under construction, motor vehicles, plant and machinery; furnitre, fixtures

and equipment.

(i)  QOptical fibre network under construction is stated at cost, including borrowing cost capitalised.

i

0 BREYES EEERENEBRELRZ
FIERBERBY—EATET (ZREEF  #H=
FEEET) -

G EUMEEEEGEXERE BERY - E
MR THRE FHEABBHTEEIRE M
B R KERTE

(i) BEABBHEEZTIEDLURAAECERL
BRAZERREANE -

Group %8
inHkS mallion 2001 2000 LB TLTE
Analysis of additions by business: BEHEZRE
Marketing & Distribution $HE R e
Motor vehicles and related services 96 86 RE R H B R
Trading 127 132 25
Power and Civil Infrastructure 3 2 BE AW
Property 223 17 ZES
Industrial Manufacturing 206 273 THRRE
Communications 1,436 1,321 BEES
Others 2 - Hit
Corporate 16 5 hEEE
2,109 1,836
Analysis of addiions by geographical area: T IR B 0 Z IR
Hong Kong 374 242 Eik
Mainland China 1,709 1,572 E AR
Japan & Others 26 22 H A Je HoAth
2,109 1,836
Analysis of depreciation by business: LEBH 2 ITERHT -
Marketing & Distribution HE R 8
Motor vehicles and related services 63 61 RE A BRE
Trading 48 41 85
Power and Civil Infrastructure 61 57 BERERTG
Property 35 34 S
Industrial Manufacturing 175 174 TERE
Communications 29 7 SR%
Others 2 - =iy
Corporate 10 PERE
423 381
Analysis of impairment loss by business: HERE G2 MEEE T
Marketing & Distribution HE LA
Trading 73 - g5
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12 Fixed AsSselS condinued 12 BEEE 4
b COMPANY b af

Motor vehicles, equipment,

Surniture and fiveures

in kS million HE R BERKEE  LENEETHE
Cost A
At 1 January 2001 84 Z—FLXZ—E—-F—H
Additions 14 HE
Disposals (2) HE
At31 December2001 96 “EE—-F+_A=+—H
Accumulated depreciation ZREIE
At 1 January 2001 30 —“EE—F—A—8
Charge for the year 10 AEEHE
Written back on disposals (2) BEHEHRE
At31 December2001 38 “FEF-FtA=t—H
Net book value SREEE
1 At 31 December 2001 58 “FE—4£+ZA=+—H
i
i At 31 December 2000 : 54 “EERFET_A=+—H
f
;.7 ¢ The tenure of the properties of the Group is as follows: ¢ AEEYEIFEHOT
i Properties
E: Investment Self-used held for
f properties properties development Total
in WK$ million BREYH ERYE FRREZIYE B LEHEErEE
Leasehold properties
held in Hong Kong FEANYE
- Long term lease 642 19 - 661 —REEA
- Medium term lease 4,502 2,116 278 6,896 —FHHA
— Short term lease - 76 - 76 —HHEHA
1 Properties held overseas 2N E
L — Freehold 213 225 - 438 KA
i
T - Long term lease - - 209 209 —RAEY
s - Medium term lease - 857 - 857 —FHEY

"
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d  Property valuation d WxfhiE ®
The Group’s investment properties have been independently revalued on an open REBZRENECHBIGENR -EE | &
market value basis as at 31 December 2001. The details of the independent qualified —F+ZAZ - BRAMTEREENRMG | 2
valuers are as follows: E - BUANEEMZEF0T 2
S
Properties located in Valuers 1&{8HF HELR E
@
Hong Kong Knight Frank %18 #8247 EiE
Japan Tekko Building Co., Limited ERS g
i)
%
e  Fixed assets and properties held for sale under current assets of the Group let e AEERFEXEOARUELES
under operating leases to generate rental income are as follows: WAZEERERRABEERE TZHE
PEMT
Other Fived Properties
Investment Self-used Sired assets held for
properties properties assels wtal sale
Hiy  HEEE
in v million REY¥E BFY¥E HxBE B HEYE  URFEETHE
Cost or valuation 5,357 27 173 5,557 316 WABHE
Accumulated depreciation ‘ - (3) (88) (91) - EEWE
Net book value at AR FE
31 December 2001 5,357 24 85 5,466 316 —EE-E+-H=+—8

Depreciation charges

for the year - - 22 22 - KEEE

13 Subsidiary companies 12 HWEBAT
Company 4]

i HKS mllion 2001 2000 ppHEETHE
Unlisted shares, at cost less F LA

impairment losses 169 169 BRAEE BESR
Amounts due by subsidiary companies 47,776 47963 WEARKEEE
Amounts due to subsidiary companies (6,950) (5,748) XMBAFEHE

40,995 42,384

Particulars of the principal subsidiary companies are shown in Note 32. TENB LR EHEINIRE 32
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NOUeS Lo e ALACCOURLS WR =P e
14 Associated Companies 14 BELNT
Croup %#8

inHKS million 2001 2000 LppEEETHE

Share of net assets 16,309 16,136 FRAGEERE

Goodwill (Note 15) 2,196 2,371 B (HEE15)
18,505 18,507

Loans due from associated companies (note b) 8,137 7477 BEATRAZER (MEb)

Loans due 1o associated companies (note b) (1,615) (550) REBEATZER (M
25,027 95,434

Investment at coSt: HENA

Unlisted shares 6,592 6,594  F ERTRRMR

Shares listed in Hong Kong 8,591 8,501 & LG
15,183 15,185

Market value of listed shares 8,594 12,375 LR mz A

Company £¥¥]

inHKSmillion 2001 2000 UEYEE L

Investment at cost: BE WA

Unlisted shares 337 337 ELTWRG

Shares listed in Hong Kong 931 931 FERLWRG

1,268 1,268
Loans due from associated companies 3,128 2,720 BELRRAZE
Loans due to associated companies (1.595) (536) XREBEARAZE
2,801 3,452
Marker value of listed shares 716 1,031  LWRMHziE
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Dividend income from associated companies during the vear is as follows: FRERELAERZRELAWT - ©
L]
@8
Group B
roup -
invS milion 2001 2000  UEEFEEHE 2
- =
. . . 5 —= S
Listed associated companies 494, 404  ETTHERF =
Unlisted associated companies 395 258 FETECELF o
i
889 662 &
2y
#
note: it
(a)  Included in associated companies are Hong Kong Resort Company Limited ("HK® ) and Western Harbour @) BELFATEAFERRELTRAT ([FHAE
Tunnel Company Limited (“wirrc.”) whose vear ends are 31 March and 31 July respectively which are not K REHVEBEFRGA (TR - SR
coterminous with the Group. The results of Hkr and waTcL have been equity accounted for based on their FAZHBFEFEAAPIRZAZT—HRLA=
management accounts for the period from 1 January 2001 to 31 December 2001. 1—H HAEEZEE AT o BEEERTEH

CHAEHAS FE A HE FF—#
FoAS+— A2 EERRE U -

(6)  Loans due from associated companies and foans due to associated companies are interest bearing ar ) BEECHREAFXEZESAZER=T

market rates except for an amount of approximately WK $37 million (2000: ux$31 million) loans to associared TEAT (ZFEREF Y =F-FHT) BEE

companies, which are non-interest bearing. These loans have no fived repayment terms. B ABRBELARRRREBELAZEN
HETBHEGFHEZAERS - UEAHUREA
EZ B -

(e)  Particulars of the principal associated companies are shown in Note 33. () FEBESNGEHMBREINZEIS-
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18 Goodwill 15 H8
Subsidiary companies Associated companies
in HK$ milhion o] NI 4 i
Cost S
At 1 January 2001 - - “ZLT-H—-H—H
Prior year adjustments (note 1c) - 3,610  LEEEE (1)
As restated - 3,610 E3I
Addition arising on acquisitions B A BEELT
during the year 364 - Y RE T
At31 December2001 . 364 3,610 ZEZ—FF_A=ZT—H
Accumulated amoreisation ZrRlEs
At 1 January 2001 - - "EE-H5-A—H
Prior year adjustments (note 1c) - 1,239  CEEFE (5 o)
As restated - 1,239 &7
Amortisation for the year 11 175 AEEHSH
A1 31 December 2001 I 1,414 ZZF—HFF+_A=+—H
Net book value REFE
At 31 December 2001 353 2,196 —EF—F+-A=+—H
At 31 December 2000, as restated - 2,371 ZEEXFEET-_A=t+—H EF
Analysis of goodwill amortisation by business: ERBF 52 RS T
Marketing & Distribution SHE R 8
Trading 9 -
Communications 2 9
Aviation - 166
11 175
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16 Investments 16 #RE
Group £H
inuk$ milion 2001 2000 wEHTETHE
Co-operative joint ventures G LA
Unlisted investments, at cost 6,629 7,298 EEWEERAE
Amounts due by co-operative joint ventures 2,043 2,148  AfEEEARRHK
8,672 9,446
Less: Amortisation (461) (391) i #H
________ 8211 9055
Listed investments, at cost EHRERTF
Shares listed in Hong Kong 186 199 & LW
Shares listed outside Hong Kong - 210  FHiEUUSE ARG
186 409
Less: Impairment - (43) W BEBE
__________ 186 366
Unlisted investments FLHRE
Shares, at cost 64 64  BHERA
Add: Advances made 27 35 0 ETERE
21 99
Less: Impairment (36) (38) & : WEER
35 61
Less: Advances received (3) (3) W EdgskA
___________ 52 o8
8,449 9,479
Market value of listed shares 133 321 LRz EE

Amortisation represents amortisation of investment in Power and Civil Infrastructure.

Particulars of the principal co-operative joint ventures are shown in Note 34.

BHELBERERBC L A -
TEREGELTEHEIREME 34 -
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17 Amount due from a Substantial Shareholder 17 ZBRREREEH
% This unsecured and interest bearing amount due from China International Trust and WHIEATHEEFERELAA (THEL
3 Investment Corporation (“Citic Beijing™) has been fully repaid during the year. ") REZEEHARELER  CREE
g BEREBEE -
1 18 [nventories 18 FE
T At 31 December 2001, the carrying amount of inventories that are carried at net RIFE—F+_A=+—H KSR F
-+ realisable value amounted to Hk$736 million (2000: uk$437 million). EYRZ FERTEAERLE=T EE
H %CRELE  BREEZTLE
i- BT
Af_,
'i,
1
: 19 Debtors, Accounts Recelvable, Deposits and Prepayments 19 FEUWERIR - BUWRE - BREREH
#IE
i Group £H Company 2 H]

in vk million 2001 2000 2001 2000 LIBETETHE

Trade debtors FEWE 5 WRIE

~ Within 1 year 1,370 1,137 - - -—ER

- Over 1 year 34 53 - i

1,404 1,190 - -
Accounts receivable, deposits
and prepayments 1,926 1,423 118 140 BUGR - HEREMNHE
3.330 2,613 118 1490
note: Hra
(t)  Trade debtors are net of provision and the ageing is classified based on invoice dute. () RBUEBRBEANMBEBHEEZ AERLBE
HHIAEEERZFIBH S -

(ir)  The Group has a defined credit policy for the respective business units.

(i) FHRECHEEXECTIEEEE -
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20 Creditors, Accounts Payable, Deposits and Accruals

20 BHRE  BERR - HEREM
HIE

Group £8 Company 7]
invkSmillion 2001 2000 2001 2000 ypHEETHE
Trade creditors FEfTE 5 BRI
~ Within 1 year 1,136 892 - - -—%@
~ Over 1 vear 18 9 - - -—#LE
1,154 901 - -
Accounts payable, deposits
and accruals 1,269 1,586 68 143 MR e MEMHIR
2,423 2,487 68 143
21 Share Capital 219 B&
Number of
shares of
HKS$0.40 each Hk$ million
BREEER 040 T
ZRHEE BYEET
Authorised: WE
At 31 December 2000 and 2001 3.000,000,000 1,200 ~“EZEERTEER_FE-F+_A=1+—H
Issued and fully paid- EFTURE -
At 1 January 2001 2,196,000,160 878 _—ZEFX—-H§—H—H
Repurchase during the year (6,220,000) (2) FENEE
At 31 December 2001 2,189,780,160 876 —“ZEX—-F+A=+—8H

Changes during the year:

(i) During the year, the Company repurchased a total of 6,220,000 of its own shares

on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited, all of which have been cancelled,

FR2ZEY
() RAER AARREER LS
AR BB 2 5 2 B4 36 6,220,000

as follows: B ZERBCRUEE > EHOT
Purchase price per share
Number of shares  Total purchase price Heghest Lowest
Month/Year repurchased HKS million HKS HKS
EREEIE
Vegigk B g1
£ A ERGEE R E T BT ki
September 2001 6,220,000 88 15.90 13.15 ZZFZF—FHA
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INWLsD W LIS A WEULLD AR D)1 Bl
22 Reserves 22 s
a GROUP 2 £
Tnzestment
Capital property  Exchange
Share  redemption Capital revaluation  fluctuation General  Retained
premium reserve reserve  Gooduwill reserve reserve reserve profits Totad
Ex REYE EFXHY
i Hk$ million ROEE HERE SERE R EHREE wE  LERE  REBF BE  LENEETHA
At 1 January 2000 20,861 304070 (2154) 710 6 128 13,683 37327 C“EZEHE—-F—H
Prior year adjustments TEXER
Goodwill written off - - - 1457 - - - (145T) - EEik
Amortisation of goodwill - - - - - - - (1.064)  (1,064)  THEEH
Dividend income - - - - - - - (98) (98) REIA
Dividend paid - - - - - - - 124 12U BREE
As restated 20,881 3 4,070 (697) 710 6 126 12288 37389 EJI
Premium on issue of shares,
net of expenses 3,901 - - - - - - - 3901 BRRhEESER
Goodwill on consolidation GeRHEE
written off - - - (L779) - - - - {L779) 2 HBHE
Share of reserves of
associated companies - - 4 - 33 491 - - 528 FriSEERFIRE
Reserve written off - - (12) - - - - - (19) REHRE
Surplus on revaluation of properties - - - - 211 - - - A1 VEEGELZES
Exchange translation differences - - - - (7) 11 - - 4 AEHMEEE
Reserves released - - (448) - - - - - (448)  fEiEEE
Repurchase of shares - - - - - - - (991) (991)  EEMEAA
Transfer to capital
redemption reserve - 13 - - - - - (13) - EREEAEERE
Transfer from profits - - - - - - 4 (4) - BBREN
Profit attributable to shareholders - - - - - - - 3290 3291 FRREREA
Dividends (Note 8) - - - - - - - (L668)  (1.668) FLE (HfE8)
“FLTEE
At 31 December 2000 24,782 16 3,614 (2,476) 947 508 132 12903 40426 TZA=Z1—H
Representing: %
“EEFETTA
At 31 December 2000 after Z+—HEFA
proposed final dividend 38,999 FERBRE
BE_ETEE
2000 Final dividend proposed 1,427 RERE
40,426
Retained by: BTFFILAIREZFHE
Company and subsidiary companies 24,782 16 3605  (2476) 377 24 127 9808 36263 ANREMELAE
Associated companies - - 9 - 570 484 5 3,005 4163 BELH
24,782 16 3,614 (2.476) 947 508 132 12,903 40426

6}




@
=
@
Intestment g
Capital property  Eachange i
Stare  redempuion Capiral revaluation  fluctuation General  Retained ®
premiuim reseree reserve Goodwill reserve reserve reserve profies Jotal E
-3 BEYE EXKE . g
in vk $ mllion RtrigE  WERE  HEEEE HE  EARH R LERE  RERA BE  LEFEETHE g
At 1 January 2001 24,782 16 3,614 (3,933 947 508 132 14234 40,300 _—FEF—F—FA—H 2
Prior vear adjustments TEERE ®
Gooduill written off - - - 1457 - - - (1457) - HENE i
Amortisation of goodwill - - - - - - - (1,239)  (1.239)  EEMEH B
Dividend income - - - - - - - (62) (62) B A I
Dividend paid . ; ; - . ; - 1427 1427 ERBA #
As restated 24,782 16 3,614  (2,476) 947 508 132 12,93 40426 EJ
Share of reserves of
associated companies - - - - 181 175 - (1n* 330 FriGHELARE
Deficit on revaluation of WEEHEEZES
properties {Note 12 a) - - - - (157) - - - (157) (1T 120)
Exchange translation differences - - - - (9) 6 - - (3) INEREER
Reserves realised - - - - (2) - - - (2) GEEHER
Repurchase of shares - - - - - - - (86) (86) FEME i
Transfer to captial redemption reserve - 2 - - - - - (2) - EEBEFEREDER
Transfer from profits - - - - - - 6 (6) - HEEA
Profit attributable to shareholders - - - - - - - 2,110 2,110 BERELEF
Dividends (Note 8) - - - - - - - (L866) (1.8665) [MRE (#8)
TEEE
At 31 December 2001 24,782 18 3614 (2.476) 960 689 138 13,036 40,761 +ZA=+—H
Representing: 5
ZEEEE R
At31 December 2000 after =t—HEFA
proposed final dividend 39,447 ERABEE
BE_TT-F
2001 Final dividend proposed 1,314 FEIRE
49,761
Retained by: B ARE ZHE
Company and subsidiary companies 24,782 18 3,605  (2,476) 209 30 133 10,123 36,424  ERAAKHEAR
Associated companies - - 9 - 751 639 5 2,913 4,337 BELHE
24,782 18 3.614  (2,476) 960 689 138 13,036 40,761
note: oy

LB EEF LB AR EZE A -
IEFEHER Ip BT - BAERECERATES
FHEQE -3t #EBEE-FF-F+2A=
T WL FEZ R REE R — - TER
BT (ZFRFTE  FRIMENTREET) -

The exchange fluctuarion reserve included the Group s share of the exchange reserve of Cathay Pacific. As set out
in accounting policies No.Ip, the Group s profit and loss account for the year ended 31 December 2001 woutd
have increased by wk$.175 million (2000: vk §444 mullion) had ssap No.11 been adopied by Cathay Pacific.

* It relates 1o the repurchase of shares at Cathay Pacific

© W REE R 2 R
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22 Reserves contnued 22 W 7
b  COMPANY e
Capiral
redemption Share Retained
reserve premuium profits Total
EAET

in vWk$ million G B R E i F HEE UBYEEILHE
At 1 January 2000 3 20,881 10,007 30,891 —EEFZE—H—H
Prior year adjustments LEEHR

Dividend income - - (19) (19) BEE A

Dividend paid - - 1,224 1,224 EIRE
As restated 3 20,881 11,212 32,096 E75
Premium on issue of shares,

net of expenses - 3.901 - 3,901 BARHznESER
Repurchase of shares - - (991) (991) BEERRG
Transfer to capital

redemption reserve 13 - (13) - HEBEEAEEEE
Profit for the year available

for distribution (Note 7) - - 3,634 3.634 FREESERRERN T
Dividends (Note 8) - - (1,668) (1.668) BB (Hfts)
At 31 December 2000 16 24,782 12,174 36972 ZEEFZHE+_A=1+—H
Representing: & -
At 31 December 2000 after ZEZTEL+TR

proposed final dividend 35,545 Z=t—HERARERHRE
2000 Final dividend proposed 1427 BEE_ZTTEREBRE
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Capital
redempiion Share Retained
reserve premium profits Total
B

in HKS mitlion it Bbriss 18 1R B it ] HE LB T E e
At 1 January 2001 16 24,782 10,779 35,577 _EEZE—-F—Ff—H
Prior year adjustments LEEHE

Dividend income - - (32) (32) HEMWA

Dividend paid - - 1,427 1,427 BIRARE
As restated 16 24,782 12,174 36,972 EF
Repurchase of shares - - (86) (86) HEMIAMA
Transfer to capital

redemption reserve 2 - (2) - EEYEEAEEFEE
Profit for the year available

for distribution (Note 7) - - 2,182 2,182  FRTHEASIRER (FEE T
Dividends (Note 8) - - (1,866) (1,866) HEE (HfiE8)
At 31 December 2001 18 24,782 12,402 37,202 Z—ZFEZ—H+-H=t+—B
Representing: %
At 31 December 2001 after ZEFE+HA

proposed final dividend 35,888 ST —EEFRARBRBRE
2001 Final dividend proposed 1,314 HRZEF-FERBIKE

37,202

Distributable reserves of the Company at 31 December 2001, calculated under section
79B of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, amounted to Hk$ 12,402 million

(2000: 1k$12,174 million).

REF BN FGEHE T9B BHE 2 A F
WREEER BT FT-A=ZT—HA
ERE-TOTNE_FET (ZEFTE:
ER-E-TELTEEEL -
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23 Long Term Boerrowlings

AR P mAs

23 RHEH

a a
Group EH Company 7]
WK S million 2001 2000 2001 2000 oY = ki)
Bank loans BITEX
- unsecured 8,187 12.792 7,351 10,231 — B
- secured 38 314 - - - BH
8225 13106 7351 10.231
Other loans HiER
— unsecured 4,923 1,429 1,401 1,402 — i
- secured - 160 - - - B
A9 1529 1400 1,402
13,148 14,635 8,752 11,633
Amounts repayable within one
year included under current —EREZ K
liabilities (739) (1,678) (701) - FARBEER
12,409 12,957 8,051 11,633
note: o

(i)} Bank loans and other loans of the Group and the Company not wholly repayable within five years
amounsed to WS4, 142 mitlon (2000- Kk $ 1,686 million) and vk $nil million (2000: ik $1,480 million) respectively:

(i) The Company has issued a Us$ 100,000,000 Senior Note dice 2006 (the “Notes”). The Notes will rank; in
right of payment pari passu to all other indebredness of the Company. Interest on the Notes is payable semi-
annually in arrear at 737 % per annium. The Notes will mature on 15 February 2006 unfess previowsly prepatd by

the Company.

(itr)  The Company has issued a Japanese Yen 9,500,000.000 Floating Rate Bond due 2002 (the “Bondis”).
Interest on the Bonds is payable semi-annually in arrears at six-month London Inter-Bank Offered Rare for

Japanese Yen minus 0.35% per annum.

(tv) Onl June 2001 Crric Pacific finance (2001) Limited, a wholly owned subsidiary of the Company; issued
and sold a total of us§450 million principal amount of 7.625% guaranieed notes due 2011 (“Guaranteed Notes”)
Jor refinancing the indebtedness of the Company and for general corporate purposes, 1o investors pursuant to the

purchase agreements dated 24 May 2001 and 1 June 2001. All of the Guaranteed Notes remained outstanding at

the end of the vear.

(6)  Bank loans and other loans, other than the Notes, the Bonds and the Cuaranteed Notes are fully repayable

up to 2007 and bear interest at the prevailing market rate.

100

) FEBRFLFTEARLENTLHRZE
TEXREMEFD A BEED—EEF_8
T (ZEEEE EWSAE TABEL) RE (Z
BREE  BEHEEATEL) -

(i) ELABETEETR FENEEHZE
B (IR BRBEFHFEFLTREEERASZ
WHHER BERFIEHERFEEERIN F85
737% o BEMRZEERE_AFEEHY &
KERREEFRL -

(i) FREFEFTATHEEABR -EE-FEEH
ZERBEE ([FH))  BHEFERAEFFERFSE
ft > ELHEAGNEHEGHRITEAFERER 035%
FE-

(v) W_BF—FEXNF—H FLAZZ2ENE
23 8] Crrre Pacific Finance (2001) Limived BiE—FE—
FRAAZAWAR-FEF-FAR—HZEEBHH
BIIROEFSHAETNELTEETZ 7.625% R
BN ((RFERE) TREE  UEAEAFAZE
BETERBERBIF—REEES - HEREEH
MR ZFE——FE . 2IRE BRI ERER
P33 Do

) BEF GEFREEERS  FUEHAE
WHAHER —EFLFLZ 2R R
GREE -
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@
b The maturity of the Group’s and the Company’s long term liabilities is as follows: b ARERAAFAZ RHAEIHER | O
T =
>
Group %5 Company 2\8] g
S millin 2001 2000 2001 2000  uigHEELHE 5
=
<
Bank loans are repayable BOEHEEN o
- in the first year 110 1,645 80 - —-—FRK @
- in the second year 584 5,950 338 5717 - THFN &
— in the third to fifth years -ZERER g
inclusive 7,316 4,858 6,933 3,914 (RHEEMT)
- after the fifth year 215 653 - 600 - HEE
8225 13006 735l 10231
Other loans are repayable HittEHz HES
— in the first year 629 33 621 - -—ER
- in the second year 4 662 - 622 -ZHNK
- in the third to fifth -ZERFR
years inclusive 780 54 780 - (EFEEEME)
— after the fifth year 3,510 780 - 780 - HEHE
4,923 ___1_,_5__2_9; ____11,41-@1 1 4-:92_
13,148 14,635 8,752 11,633
24 Deferred Taxation 24 REHRIR
' Group %85
inwkS million 2001 2000 LpHEETAE
At 1 January 237 254 —A—HZHE
Exchange adjustments (10) (9) g
Acquisition of a subsidiary company 4 - W EWELR
Net written back for the year (Note 6) (16) (8) FRNIBENFRE (st e)
At 31 December 215 237 tZAZt+—HZER
Provided in the accounts in respect of: BRE Pz BETHRR
Accelerated depreciation allowances 215 237 EAELRE

Potential deferred tax liability has not heen quantified for the surplus on the revalued R EGEER EYEZ A RIE R AT
investment properties in Hong Kong as this does not constitute a timing difference for ~ S AW Z - BAT 83 B2 REHIEE

deferred taxation purposes. BEARTEE -
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g 25 Assels and Liabilities by Segments 25 SEZERBE

An analysis of the Group’s segment assets and liabilities by business segment is as T BEHEFER BN LB EEERE
follows: BT

Segment Investments in Segment

Assers Associaied Companies Liahitiies Toral

§ HEEE BELIRE PERE 25

g inik$millon 2001 2000 2001 2000 2001 2000 2001 000 wEwsgisg
: Marketing & Distribution $E R

: Motors vehicles and

z telated services 1,503 1.358 79 51 (436) (484) 1,146 925 RENATRE
Trading 1878 1546 g7 T ey G 13 1106 HB

, Power and Civil Infrastructure 10,351 10,496 1,074 1,005 (24) B4) 11,601 11447 BERERZE
Avation - ST 13466 - - BT 1466 hE

Property 8173 8312 8216 9,649 (83)  (43) 17364 17818 %

f Industrial Manufacturing 3,078 3,111 - - (590) (781) 2,488 2330 TEEE

i Communications 4,007 2,548 1,264 1,186 (3,223)  (1,364) 2,048 2350 fFE¥

| TS 255 3083 . S6e (M 2460 380 Hik

7

Segment assets/ (liabilities) 31,723 31,304 25,027 25434 (5.068) (3.504) 51,684 53284 AHEER/ (B

T

Corporate 4073 494 (1.994)  (14692)  (7.921)  (.M7) LS
% Provision for taxation (141) (119) HEERE
E Deferred taxation ‘ (215) (237) EEHE

43,407 43.181

An analysis of the Group’s segment assets by geographical area is as follows: DTAZAEEEN 2 EEIREE
SH

kS mdllion 2001 2000 LS EE T E
s Hong Kong 14,701 15,170  Fik
Mainland China 16,304 15,007 HEAKE
s Japan 517 706 BHE
Others 203 471 Hfte

31,725 31.354
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26 Capital Commitments 26 BLikiE

Group £
inHKS million 2001 2000 VBB E T E
Authorised but not contracted for (note) 584 21 EHUEERZS (M)
Contracted but not provided for (note) 2,160 1,597 EF4EREE D

note:

The capiral commitments of authorised but not contracted for and contracted but not provided for in respect of
plant, property and equipment amount to HK$8 million (2000: vk 821 million) and nx$1,524 million (2000:
HKS 1,560 million) respectively.

27 Operaling Lease Commitments
The future aggregate minimum lease pavments under non-cancellable operating leases

of the Group at 31 December are as follows:

it
EHEEESHREBHEEBH L EEFB YL
B MERES  SHBREAFET (CTEE
F RS T—EAT) RN EE-TOERT
(CRETE BT ERATET) -

27 BRBURE
BYZA=+—H  AEEAEAEZFATH
HZ BRI REEOMTERNT

Group %8
ik million 2001 2000 LuENTETHE
Properties commitments EFR
- Within 1 year 124 120 - —%m&
- After 1 year but within 5 years 185 185 - —F#&ELER
- After 5 years 92 89 -HEHK
Aot 3%
Other commitments HAtksE
- Within 1 year 51 15 -—%mR/
— After 1 year but within 5 years 60 - —FRELER
- After 5 years 18 19 -n#F#E
129 40
330 434
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NOUES L@ Line ACCGQUNLS

28 GContingent Liabilities

@ The Company together with other beneficial shareholders of Western Harbour
Tunnel Company Limited (“wHTcL”) have agreed jointly and severally to guarantee the
Government of the Hong Kong Special Administrative Region that wHTcL will complete
the Western Harbour Crossing (“Crossing”) within budget of approximately HK$ 7.5
billion including repair costs to be incurred after the operation date of the Crossing
but before the issuance of the Maintenance Certificate. The Crossing was completed in
April 1997 with total cost of approximately HK$6.8 billion, pending the issuance of the

Maintenance Certificate.

The beneficial shareholders of wHTCL have agreed that in relation to any claim made or
asserted under the aforesaid guarantee, as between themselves, the total of all liabilities
in respect of a claim thereunder and of all costs, charges and expenses suffered or
incurred by any of them resulting therefrom or artributable thereto shall be shared by

them in proportion to their respective ultimate ownership in WHTCL.

® The Company has provided a guarantee to The Export-Import Bank of the United
States (“Eximbank”™) for an export credit to a co-operative joint venture company,
Jiangsu Ligang Electric Power Company, Limited (*Ligang”) pursuant to an
agreement dated 3 July 1995 between Ligang, the Company and Eximbank, by which
Eximbank established a credit not exceeding us$ 134 million in favour of Ligang for a
period of 15 years, repayable by 24 semi-annual instalments beginning 15 October
1998 at an interest rate of 5.95% per annum and the Company guaranteed the
repavment of the amounts outstanding under such contract. As of the financial vear
end date, the outstanding amount has been reduced 1o us$86.3 million. Each equity
participant in Ligang has agreed to share in financial assistance to Ligang in

proportion to their equity interest in Ligang.

¢ The Company has provided a guarantee to Kreditanstalt fur Wiederaufbau, a
German state-owned bank, for an export credit up to a maximum of us$20.5 million

granted to a subsidiary company, Jiangyin Xingcheng Special Steel Works Co., Lid.

@ The Company has provided a several guarantee up to a maximum amount of
approximately Hk$ 1,477 million to support a loan facility of Hk$2,400 million granted

by a group of financial institutions to an associated company, Treasure Trove Limited.

@ The Company has provided a guarantee on the Us$450 million Guaranteed Notes

issued by a wholly owned subsidiary of the Company.
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a ARAEREFEARBEERLA
(TR EfERBERELRRERAE
AT HBEEFRAEE AR
fEYt T RETZ BEEREATE REEE
R RN EEEERE
REEPE 2R ECERR - BER—
ANEEME TR > BRAEHBEEATA
fEr (MERLREERE -

AR DR IR TR L 2 R E > T
HaRE RS B RERETE 2 R 55
B H AR EEE RS R LA
Rz~ A - BRAR -

b RER-NILEFLA=ZHhEHES
BRFAILEMERENERAA (FiE) &
AR REBUER QST (MEHORIT) B
T2 AN R AFERES ORTRH
A EEER - RG> ELOETA
BRI SETEENAZR—E=ZTEE
EETZEE BREEE L A—LL
NETATLEERG Z+USEE - 7
E55.95%  ALFEERNAREREERH
BHZ  RMEERGED - (EFEEH
ENTABZTEET - MEZBHRRER
& BRI AR D] TER s SRR -

c FLFAREMEBAFILEREESER
HERAEEEREE 2 B ERRRRT
BREERA _TERTEETZHOGE
fEdi R -

d  ARFHEEEENT Treasure
Limited 2 —JB#% _ P04 TR B 2R 1
EEXASERTNELTLEELZEA
PR
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e FrAAE—HMEEMBAFA®RTZ
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f  The Company has provided a several guarantee up to 80% of the liability of a
subsidiary company of the Company, under the lease agreement for leasing certain
equipment from 1BM Leasing Company Limited at the contract sum of approximately
us$15.5 million. The guarantee was released in February 2002 upon the sale of
interest in the optical fibre network to China International Trust & Investment

Corporation Hong Kong (Holdings) Limited (“Ciric HK™).

@  The Company has provided a several guarantee of up to 80% to support loan
facilities of RMBS00 million granted by a bank to several subsidiaries of the Company
involving in optical fibre network. The guarantee was released in February 2002 upon

the sale of interest in the optical fibre network to CiTiC HK.

v The Company has provided guarantees to support standby letter of credit facilities
to further support up to 80% of the k8500 million loan facility granted by a bank to
several subsidiaries of the Company involving in oprical fibre network. The guarantees
were released in February 2002 upon the sale of interest in the optical fibre network to

CITIC HK.

i The Company has provided a guarantee to Commerzbank Aktiengesellschaft,
Hong Kong Branch for a credit facility of up to rM100 million granted to a wholly

owned subsidiary of the Company.

29 Subsequent Events

On 21 December 2001, the Company entered into agreements to acquire interests in
two Shanghai properties together with the related shareholders loans (“the Purchases
Agreements™) from a substantial shareholder, CiTic HK, at a maximum total

consideration of HK$2,770 million.

On 14 January 2002, the Company entered into an agreement to sell its 80% interests
in the China Express No. 1 Backbone Network (“the Network™) to Citic 1K (“the Sale
Agreement”) at a maximum consideration of approximately Hk$ 1,645 million.
Conditional upon the completion of the Sale Agreement, CITIC HK agreed to grant the
Company at a consideration of HK$ 10 a conditional call option to acquire CITIC HK’S
entire interest in the telecommunications business in the prC derived from the

investment by Citic nx of the 80% interest in the Network acquired under

the Sale Agreement.
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29 Subsequent Events cndnued
The Purchases Agreements and the Sale Agreement were completed on 22 January
2002 and 27 February 2002 respectively. Details of the transactions are disclosed in

the circulars to shareholders.

30 Comparative Figures
Comparative figures have been adjusted to conform with the current presentation as
© required under new or revised Hong Kong Statements of Standard Accounting Practice

implemented in 2001.

31 Approval of Accounts
The accounts were approved by the Board of Directors on 14 March 2002.
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32 Principal Subsidiary Companies

The following are the principal subsidiary companies of the Group which in the opinion of the directors, principally affect the results

and net assets of the Group. To give details of other subsidiary companies would in the opinion of the directors result in particulars

of excessive length.

Partculars of Interest in equity
Place of incorporation/ issued shares# shares held by
Principal place of operation No. of Par Company Subsidiary
Name * Kind of legalentiry shares value % % Principalactivities
Aviation
Collinson Company Limited Republic of 498 - 100 - lnvestment holding
Liberia/Bermuda
Custain Limited Hong Kong 2 HKS 10 - 100 Investment holding
Easerich Investments Inc. British Virgin 1 us$1 - 100 Investment holding
Islands/Bermuda
Hilldun Limited Hong Kong 3 HKS 10 - 100 Investment holding
Jade Wonder Limited British Virgin Islands 1 us$1 - 100 Investment holding
Motive Link Holdings Inc. British Virgin 1 usS1 - 100 Tnvestment holding
Islands/Bermuda
Sidewinder Holdings Limited British Virgin 1 us$l - 100 Investment holding
Islands/Bermuda
Smooth Tone Investments Lid. British Virgin 1 us$1 - 100 Investment holding
Islands/Bermuda
Communications
asa Internet Limited Hong Kong 2 HK$ 1 - 100 Provision of internet
(Date of acquisition: services and
29 September 2001) advertising agency
Bright Generation Holdings Inc. British Virgin Islands 1 us$ 1 - 80  Investmentholding
Citic 1616 Data Limited Hong Kong 2 HK$ 1 - 100 Provision ol data
ransmission services
Crric Pacific Communications Bermuda 100,000 HKS1 - 100 Investment holding
Limited
Citic Telecom 1616 Limited Hong Kong 2 HKS 1 - 100 Provision of intcrnational
telecommunications
scrvices
Data Communication Services Hong Keng 1,000 HKS1 - 100 Provision of
Limited 38.000,000* HKS1 telccommunications
equipment
Direct Access Development Corp. British Virgin Islands 1 us$ 1 - 80  Investment holding
Dynamic Power Investments Lud. British Virgin Islands 10 us$ 1 - 80  Investment holding
Essential Elements Holdings Corp. British Virgin Islands 1 us$l - 80  Investment holding
Forever Glory International Lid. British Virgin Islands t us$1 - 80 Investment holding
Glamorous Way Enterprises Ltd. British Virgin Islands I us$1 - 100 Investment holding
Global Link Information Services Hong Kong 300,000 HKS$ 10 - 100 Provision of internet
Limited services
(Date of acquisition:
29 September 2001)
Glorious Style Enterprises Lid. British Virgin Islands 1 us$1 - 80  Investment holding
Happy Land Enterprises Corp. British Virgin Islands 1 us$1 - 80 Investment holding
Konik Inc. British Virgin Islands 1 Us$1 - 80 Investment holding
Lucky Zone Enterprises Inc. British Virgin Islands 10 us$1 - 80 Investment holding
Oracle Link Holdings Inc. British Virgin Islands 1 Uss] - 80 Investment holding
Power Point Enterprises Corp. British Virgin Islands 1 usS 1 - 80 Investment holding
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32 Principal Subsidiary Companies conunued

Particulars of Interest in equity

Place of incorporation/ issued shares# shares held by
Principal place of operation No.of Far Company Subsidiary
Name * Kindof legalentity shares value % % Princpalactiviries
psiNet Hong Kong Limited Hong Kong 394,866,986 HES 1 - 100 Provision of internet
(renamed as crenet Hong Kong services
Limited on 15 February 2002)
(Date of acquisition: 29 September
2001)
Super Worth Investments Inc. British Virgin Islands 1 us$ 1 - 100 Investment holding
Supreme Magic Enterprises Ltd. British Virgin Islands 1 us$l - 80 Investment holding
Vanderburg Inc. British Virgin Islands 10 us$1 - 80 Investment holding
Vision Network Limited Hong Kong 2,250,000 HKS1 - 100 Provision of internet
| (Date of acquisition: services
29 September 2001)
World Navigation Limited Hong Kong 1,000 HKS 1 - 100 Provision of international
2,000,000 HK$ 1 telecommunications
i scrvices
i
j Power Generation
i Classabove Holdings Limited Hong Kong 2 Hk$1 - 100 TInvestment holding
% Daybreak Holdings Limited Hong Kong 2 1S 1 - 100 Tavestment holding
{ Kong Yuen Investments Limited Hong Kong 2 HKS1 - 100 Investment holding
§ Master Port Tovestment Ltd. British Virgin Islands 1 us$ 1 - 100 Investment holding
? Premier Gold Holdings Corp. British Virgin Islands 1 us$1 - 100 Investment holding
‘: Revnolds Holdings Limited Hong Kong 2 HKS1 - 100 Investment holding
éj Rising Star Enterprises Corp. British Virgin Islands 1 us$l - 100 Investment holding
4‘ Sterling Lake Limited British Virgin Islands 1 us$1 - 100 Investment holding
Sunspark Power Investment Hong Kong 10,000 HKS1 - 100 Tnvestment holding
‘ Company Limited
: Roads, Bridges and Tunnels
! Adwood Company Limited Hong Kong 10 HK$ 10 20 50 Investment holding
: Avon Pacific Limited British Virgin Islands 1 uss1 - 100 Investment holding
i Bloomingshire Investment Limited British Virgin Islands 1 us$1 - 100 Investment holding
?- Cinta Company Limited British Virgin Islands 1 usl - 100 Investment holding
i' Crystalime Company Limited Hong Kong 2 HK$10 - 100 Investment holding
s Express Link Holdings Ltd. British Virgin Islands 1 uss1 - 100 Investment holding
i Gradius Company Limited British Virgin [slands 1 us$ 1 - 100 Iovestment holding
i New Hong Kong Tunnel Company Hong Kong 75.000,000 HKS 10 - 69.38  Tunnel operation
x Limited
E Newly Bright Investment Limited British Virgin Islands 1 Us$ 1 - 100 Investment holding
‘ Prime Star Enterprises Limited British Virgin Islands 1 us$1 - 100 lovestmentholding
%; Rich Creation Investments Lid. British Virgin Islands 1 us$ ! - 100 Investment holding
l Yan Wing Investments Limited Hong Kong 2 HkS$1 - 100 Investment holding
i Environment
‘ Athens [nvestments. Inc. British Virgin [slands 1 us$1 - 100 Investment holding
; Estoril Corp. British Virgin Islands 1 us$ 1 - 100 Investment holding
E Unitex Holdings Corp. British Virgin Islands 1 us$ 1 - 100 Investment holding
X Marketing & Distribution
; Adachi Trading Company Limited Japan 250 1pv50,000 - 100 Trader of motor vehicle
1 spare parts
% Botanitown Pharmaceuticals Limited Hong Kong 2 Hk$ 1 - 62 Investmentin

;
i
;
3
;
i
i
i
é,
i
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Particulars of Incerest in equity
Place of incorporation/ issued shares# shares held by
Principal place of operation No. of Par Company Subsidiary
Name * Kind of legalentity shares value % % Prncipalactivites
Beijing Botanitown Biotechnologies People’s Republic of China N/A N/A - 62 Research and
Limired *Wholly foreign-owned development in
enterprise pharmaceutical products
Confidence Motors Limited Hong Kong 1,000 HK$100 - 100 Motor vehicle distributor
Consolidated Parts & Accessories Hong Kong 1,000 HK$100 - 100 Trader of motor vehicle
Sales Centre Limited spare parts
Dah Chong Hong (Canada) Ltd. Canada 650,000 - - 100 General import/export
and investment holding
Dah Chong Hong (China) Limited Hong Kong 1.000 HKS 100 - 100 lovestment holding
Dah Chong Hong - Dragonair Airport Hong Kong 10,000 HE$1 - 70 Provision of airport
GSE Service Limited ground support
equipment maintenance
services
Dah Chong Hong (Engineering) Hong Kong 10,000 1K$ 100 - 100 Engineering services
Limited
Dah Chong Hong Holdings Limited Hong Kong 21,031,837 HKS$ 10 - 100 Investment holding
Dah Chong Hong, Limited Hong Kong 50,000 Hx$1,000 - 100 Investment holding:
general importers,
retailers and exporters
dealing in foodstuffs,
electrical appliances
and other products
Dah Chong Hong (Japan) Limited Japan 480,000 1pY1,000 - 100 Importer and exporter of
foodstutfs, motor
vehicles and garments;
property investment
and investment holding
Dah Chong Hong Motors (China) Hong Kong 20,000 Hk$ 100 - 100 Investment holding
Limited -
Dah Chong Hong (Motor Leasing) Hong Kong 10.000 1k$10 - 100 Motor leasing
Limited
Dah Chong Hong (Motor Service Hong Kong 2,000 HKk$ 100 - 100 Motor vehicle repairing
Centre) Limited and servicing
Dah Chong Hong Motors (Nissan- Hong Kong 2 Hk$10 - 100 Motor vehicle distributor
China) Limited
Duh Chong Hong Trading Singaporc 3.500.000 s$1 - 100 Investment holding and
(Singapore) Pre. Lid. trading of foodstuffs
DAs Aviation Support Limited Hong Kong 10.000 HKS1 - 70 Distributor of air cargo
cquipment and refaved
spare parts
Das Nordisk Limited Hong Kong 10,000 HKS1 - 49 Repairs and mainicnance
services for air cargo
containers and sale of
related spare parts
pcH Food Industries Limited Hong Kong 2 Hk$10 - 100 Investment holding
pcH Healtheare Products Limited Hong Kong 100,000 HK$100 - 100 Distribution and retailing
of healtheare and
pharmaceutical products
pcr Motors (Bentley) Limited Hong Kong 2 HKS1 - 100 Motor vehicle distributor
pcH Motors Lid. Canada 100 cav$l - 100 Motor vehicle distributor
Excellent Way lnternational Lid. British Virgin Islands 1 us$1 - 100 Investment holding
Gentech Vehicle Engineering Hong Kong 166,000 HK$1 - 100 Trading of special

Limited

function vehicles
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32 Principal Subsidiary Companies conunued

FParticudars of

RIR e PV R

Interest in equity

Place of incorporation/ issued shares# shares held by
Principal place of operation No. of Par Company Subsidiary
Name * Kind of legal entiy shares valie % % Principalactivizies
Guangdong Jing Yun Distribution People’s Republic of China N/A N/A - 90  Distribution
Co., Lid. *Sino-foreign equity joint
(Date of acquisition: venture
28 February 2001)
Harmony Motors Limited Hong Kong 1.000 HK$100 - 100 Motor vehicle distributor
Honest Motors, Limited Hong Kong 3,000 HK$ 1,000 - 100 Motor vehicle distributor
Japan Auto Parts Company Limited Hong Kong 1,000 Hx$100 - 100 Trader of motor vehicle
SpAre parts
Premium Motors Limited Hong Kong 2 HKS 1 - 100 Motor vehicle distributor
Regal Motors, Limited Hong Kong 2,000 Hk$100 ~ 100 Motor vehicle distributor
Reliance Motors, Limited Hong Kong 3,000 1k$ 1,000 - 100 Maotor vehicle distributor
Sims (China) Limited Hong Kong 2 HK$ 10 - 100 Markering co-ordination
(Date of acquisition: services
28 February 2001)
Sims (Guangdong) Limited Hong Kong 2 HKS1 - 100 Investment holding
(Darc of acquisition:
28 February 2001)
Sims Trading Company Limited Hong Kong 3.000 HK$ 100 - 100 Wholesaling
(Date of acquisition:
28 February 2001)
Shanghai pcr Feod Industries Lid. People’s Republic of China N/A N/A - 100 Food processing and
*Wholly foreign-owned trading
enterprise
Shanghai pch Jiangnanfeng Co., Lid. People’s Republic of China N/A N/A - 46.06  Production and selling
*Sino-foreign equity joint of chickens and related
venture food products
Shanghai pcut Shuanghui e Co., Lid. People’s Republic of China N/A N/A - 38.5  Production and selling
*Sino-foreign equity joint of meat and related
venture food products
Shanghat rFci Restaurant Co.. Lid. People’s Republic of China N/A N/A - 90 Provision of food,
*Sino-foreign co-operative beverage and retail sales
joint venture of rainforest-theme
souvenir merchandise
Triangle Auto Pre Lid Singapore 3.000.000 s§1 - 100 Motor vehicle distributar
Triangle Motors Limited Hong Kong 30.000 Hk§100 - 100 Motor vehicle distributor
Triangle Motors (China) Limited Hong Kong 2 Hk$ 10 ~ 100 Investment holding and
trading of motor
Twin Tiger International Limited Hong Kong 2 HES1 - 100 Trading
(Date of acquisition:
28 February 2001)
Winway Investments Holdings Corp. British Virgin Islands 100 us$l - 62 Investmentin
pharmaccutical business
WINREDRESERLF People’s Republic of China N/A N/A - 100 Provision of logistics
*Wholly foreign-owned services
enterprise
ERKRETHEBERAT People’s Republic of China N/A N/A - 90 Provision of food,
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Particulars of Interest in equity
Place of incorporation/ issued shares# stares hetd by
Principal place of operation No. of FPar Comparny Subsidiary
Name * Kindof legalentity shares value % % Principalacivites
Property
Admarch Limited Hong Kong 2 HKS 10 - 100 Property investment
Admarch Property Management Hong Kong 2 HKS1 - 100 Property management
Company, Limited
Baylink Investments Limited British Virgin Islands 1 Uss1 - 100 Tnvestment holding
Borgia Limited Hong Kong 2 HK$10 - 100 Property investment
Broadway Centre Property Hong Kong HK$ 1 - 100 Property management
Management Company Limited
Campbellton Development Limited Hong Kong 2 HKS1 - 100 Property development
Famous Land Limited Hong Kong 2 HKS1 - 100 Property investment
Glenridge Company Limited Hong Kong 2 HK$ 10 - 100 Property investment
Goldenburg Properties Limited Hong Kong 1,000 HKS$10 - 70 Property investment
Hang Luen Chong Investment Hong Kong 80,000 HK$ 100 - 100 Property investment
Company, Limited
Hang Luen Chong Property Hong Kong 2 HKS1 - 100 Property management
Management Company, Limited
Hang Wah Chong Investment Hong Kong 50,000 Hk$100 - 100 Property investment
Company Limited
Jewril Limited Hong Kong 2 HK$1 - 100 Investment holding
Kendorm Corporation Republic of 1 - - 100 Investment holding
Liberia/Bermuda
Kimble Investment Limited British Virgin Islands 1 us$1 - 100 Investment holding
Kaowill Investments Inc. British Virgin Islands 1 UsS1 - 100 Investment holding
Lindenford Limited Hong Kong 2 HK$10 - 100 Property investment
Neostar Investment Limited Hong Kong 2 HKS1 - 100 Property investment
Newmarket Holdings Limited British Virgin 2 us$1 - 100 Investment holding
Islands/Bermuda
Pacific Grace Limited Hong Kong 2 HKS$1 - 100 Property investment
Sun King Fung Development Hong Kong 152,343,165 Hx$0.10 100 - Investment holding
Limired
Supreme Luck Investments Lid. British Virgin Islands 1 us§1 - 100 Investment holding
Tendo Limited Hong Kong 2 Hk$10 - 100 Property investment
Yee Lim Godown & Cold Storage Hong Kong 1,000,000 HKS1 - 100 Operate adry and cold
Limited storage godown
Finance
Balgonic Limited Hong Kong 2 HK$ 1 100 - Financing
Ciric Pacific Finance (2001) Limited British Virgin Istands 1,000 us$1 100 - Financing
Idealand Investment Inc. Republic of Panama 100 us$1 - 100 Financing
Top Trend Investments Holdings Corp. British Virgin 1 us$1 100 - Financing
Islands/Bermuda
Industrial Manufacturing
Crown Sky Investment Limited British Virgin Islands 1 Us$1 - 100 Investment holding
Jiangyin Xingcheng Special Steel People’s Republic of China N/A N/A - 55 Steel making
Works Co.. Ltd. *Sino-foreign equity joint
venture
Jiangvin Xingcheng Steel Products People’s Republic of China N/A N/A - 55 Steel making
Co., Lid. *Sino-foreign equity joint
venture
Jiangsu cp Xingcheng Special Steel People’s Republic of China 390,000,000 Bl - 54.72  Sieel making

Co.. Lid.

*Foreign investment stock

comparny
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32 Principal Subsidiary Companies convnued

*Wholly foreign-owned
enterprise

E Particulars of Interest in equity

; Place of incorporation/ issued shares# shares held by

i Principal place of operation No.of Par Company Subsidiary

§. Name * Kind of legalentity shares value % % Principalactiviies
|

b Joyce Court Holdings Limited British Virgin Islands 1 Us$1 - 100 Investment holding
% Maxy Rich Investments Limited British Virgin Islands 1 uss1 - 100 Investment holding
i *Shine Mass Holdings Ltd. British Virgin Islands 1 us$1 - 100 Investment holding
Q{V Wuxi Huada Motors Co., Ltd. People’s Republic of China N/A N/A - 55 Industrial motors

{ *Sino-foreign equity joint manufacturing

: venture

!

; Qthers

f Ciric Pacific China Holdings Limited People’s Republic of China N/A N/A - 100 Investment holding

# Represented ordinary shares, unless otherwise stated.

* Non-voting deferred shares - the rights, privileges and restrictions of which are set out in the Articles of Association of the respective company.

note:
During the year, the Group acquired 100% interests in Sims Trading Company Limited and crcver Hong Kong Limited and their subsidiary companies for Wx§601 million

cash and a payable of WS 73 million. As a resuly, the Group s profu for the year and net assets as at the year end have both been increased by WkS2 million.
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Collinson Company Limited FlLL HESAEEAE 498 - 100 - RE%K
Custain Limited Fi 2 10T - 100 REHEMK
Easerich Investments Inc. ERELES /BRE 1 13ET - 100 HEER
Hilldun Limized HFiE 3 W 10T - 106 BEER
Jade Wonder Limited LRELES 1 | £ - 100  REEK
Motive Link Holdings Inc. RERLER RS 1 1 %% - 100  HEER
Sidewinder Holdings Limited ERELER /BRE 1 1370 - 100 #EER
Smooth Tone Investments Ltd. EREARE/BRE 1 1%T - 100  HEER
BE#
aaa Internet Limited it 2 BT - 100 RETHERE

(EEH: —FF—F KSR

NAZFTRE)
AR AT EBELES 1 1 £5T - 80 REER
5 1616 HAARAA i 2 BY LT - 100 REEEHEYE
FEREZEREETRAE BRE 100,000 LT - 100 BEER
FEEM 1616 HRAF Eit 2 1T - 100 BEREEARE
Data Communication Services Limited B 1,000 ki - 100 RHERRE

38,000,000 BT

EERREERAA ERELER 1 1 %7 - 80  HEZR
Dynamic Power Investments Lid. KEELER 10 1ExT - 80  HEHER
EERARAT EBEZER 1 1%7% - 80 REER
EEEBARLE KRELER 1 1 %5t - 80 HEER
EHAEERAA HREZEE 1 1 %7 - 100 HEHEH
HABEMERARALA HE 300,000 w1000 - 100 REEHERE

(BBl —FE—F

AAZFE)
Glorious Style Enterprises Lid. HBELES 1 1 %50 - 80 HWHEER
BECEFRLA ABELRES 1 1E7 - 80 HREER
Konik Inc. EREXESL 1 1 %% - 80  HEHR
E b EERAF ERELEE 10 | 7T - 80 HEBR
Oracle Link Holdings Inc. EEELEE 1 1 #5T - 80 HESEK
EHEEFRLT EREZER 1 1%57T - 80 &R
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psinet Hong Kong Limited Tt 394,866,986 BT - 100 REEEBERE

(RZFZZF-RTRERLE

crenet Hong Kong Limited)

(WHEHS  —FT—&F

AAZTAE)
Super Worth Investments Inc. EEELER 1 I - 100 BEEE
R RERERRAE EERLEE 1 1 £ - 80  BEHER
Vanderhurg Inc. EBELER 10 1 E5T - 80  HEER
FEREERAF Eit 2,250,000 WL T - 100 SREE BN

(REEE: —FF—F

AAZ+E)
BEMERAT Ei 1,000 BT - 100 RUEEERMRE

2,000,000 HERE T

Eige)
BUERFRAF i 2 T - 100 HEZER
BB RAERAF T 2 BT - 100 REER
TR EHRAA B 2 LT - 100 #REER
BEREERRLR EEETER 1 1 %X - 100 #ELR
Premier Gold Holdings Corp. RERTER 1 1 &3¢ - 100 HEHR
BREERERAT T 2 BT - 100 REBR
Rising Star Enterprises Corp. EBEETER 1 1 £ - 100 BEER
WHHRAR KBELCER 1 =S - 100 BEER
HEENRAERAA i 10,000 BT - 100 REZER
2 RRERBEE
Adwood Company Limited B 10 B 10T 20 50 HEER
Avon Pacific Limited LBELER 1 1% - 100 #EZER
Bloomingshire Investment Limited EEETER 1 1% - 100  HEZK
Cinta Company Limited EEEZER 1 1 &3 - 100 #REER
& A RA R Eit 2 ¥ 10T - 100 HEZR
Express Link Holdings Ltd. EBELES 1 1 %7 - 100  HEZER
Gradius Company Limited ERELER 1 1 %T - 100 BREER
MBI R i 75.000.000 #H10T - 69.38  REEAE
HAREARA RRELES 1 LET - 100 #EER
Prime Star Enterprises Limited EREZES 1 1 7T - 00 HBEZEK
Rich Creation Investments Lid. EEEZES | 1 %71 - 100 BEZER
MR EFRAA T 2 LT - 100 HELER
BRIGRE
Athens Investments, Inc. EBELES 1 1 Ex - 100 HEER
Estoril Corp. EBELER 1 1 &5 - 100 HBEER
Unitex Holdings Corp. EBELES 1 1ET - 100 HEER
HERANH
ZEHSHAFH Hz& 250 50,000 HE - 100 KEEZHES
HREFARALF i 2 BT - 62 REWERH
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EERREEYRMERAT FEARLME AEF i - 62 ESEERRT R BI%E 5
: HEBELE 2
BIEHERELA i 1,000 ¥ 100 7T - 100 KELHH 95
KEAZHHEERLERAT FiE 1,000 B 100 7T - 00 KEEHES
KEBET (MEX) BRAH mEX © 630,000 - - 100 —RELORLEER &
KERHT (hE) HRAF i 1,000 W 100 TT - 100 REER &
KE-EEESREREIFERAR Fi 10,060 #E 1T - 0 RERSNHEHRS &
#
. HEBRE
KEBGHIBRERAF EHE 10,000 HER 100 T - 100 TRE%
KEBSTERFRAF i 21,031,837 L - 100 HEER
KEESHTARALH FiE 50,000 B 1,000 T - 100 HREERELDOREE
a8 BEREL
REMWES
BRAEHKEESIT HA 480.000 1,000 HE - 100 B& - KERRENRD ;
: YEE R G
KEZBTRE (FE) BRALF HiE 20,000 B 100 T - 100 HEHEE
KET (REMERYE) ARLA ik 10,000 B0 - 100 HREME
KEEHITREREFLHBAF HE 2,000 B 100 7T - 100 REHEBRE
KEBFARE (BE-HE) ARLAA F# 2 B 10T - 100 REEHE
KEBET (k) LAFREH i 3,500,000 | BT - 100 BEEREERES
KB - EEMMZBEARAF Eit 10,000 BT - 0 CERHEREH
F T
RE-EETERHARAT i 10,000 BT - 49  EEEEEEEERYE
RERZEHE
KETEFGTEERLT B 2 B0 T - 100 HRELR
KETRBEZERLT FiE 100,000 HERE 100 T8 - 100 SHREERE
LBHEER
KEBESTRE (EF) ARAF i 2 g e - 100 KEBHEH
per Motors Lid. PIE-WN 100 piik T - 100 RELHEE
Excellent Way International Ltd. EBETEE 1 1% - 100 #BEZER
i R B PR A T 166,000 T - 100 HEFBARKE
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B B17
MR e, He1n EA # R
FEEEME N7} it & 28]
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BREEYRARAH A RILHE R A A - 90 e
(RBEE: —_2F—F N EERERE
ZHZTAE
AEREEERAR i 1.000 % 100 7T - 100 RESHERE
BHRERRAR FiE 3,000 1,000 T - 100 REZHERE
RERBEEETERAET Fi 1,000 B 100 T - 100 KEZHES
AHRERRAA Fi 2 = - 100 HEZHERE
RERBEERLA Fi 2,000 % 100 7T ~ 100 KELEHE
EHAERRAA Fis 3,000 1,000 7T - 100 REGHHE \
HE (FE) FRAR Fik 2 VR 10 7T - 100  TWESERE i
(EOE: B4 [
ZRZTAH)
HE (BER) ARAF i 2 w1 T - 100  HEZR
(WAl —“FF—&F
—ZAZ+AR)
HEHRAHE i 3,000 100 T - 100 #tE
(RBEE: _FE—F
ZAZtAH)
THERETERIERARAT HEEAREE KA A - 100 B‘BERNLRES
“HEBELE
FEXRELIHEARAT A RILHE REH N - 46.06 AEREEER
S ERERE RAWER
THERBEELEERAR HEARKLME REA RE A - 385 LERMERE
A ERERE RAEHES
FEREFRBEHEERAT i AREHE REHA AEA - 90  RHEKRE
HSNERERAE REFLUSETF
BEBEZESE
AREBERLAFRAHE N 3,000,000 1 FmsE T - 100 HEZHE
SREEARLE ¥ 30,000 100 T - 100 REEREH
EFRE (T ARAFA HiE 2 R0 T - 100 REFERREEES
£ REBERAT R 2 LT - 0 £5
(UM HE : ER &
—AZ+AR)
EEREERARAT ERELEE 100 1 %% - 62 HEBHEER
mLNREMRESHRLF i NRATE ES Y TEA - 100 REGERSE
YIEBERE
EEKREFHEEFRAF FEARME FEA REH - 90  REERREREERU
A RRERE HEWHATE
Z28ER
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ICHRRAE Hi 2 B 10 T - 100 #ERE Z
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Baylink Investments Limited LBEXES 1 17 - 100 HEER
Borgia Limited & 2 10T - 100 WENE &
B LT A R i 2 1T - 100 HEEE &
LRBRERAT B 2 B - 100 HEEE g
HWAERAT B 2 BT - 100 YERE
Glenridge Company Limited e 2 B0 - 100 YERE
Goldenburg Properties Limited FE 1,000 BRI0T - 0 YEEER
EREEERRLAR B 80,000 100 T - 100 HERE
B EYETRERAT B 2 w1 - 100 MEEH
EEEEERRALT i 50,000 100 T - 100 HERE
Jewril Limited T 2 LT - 100 HEZR
Kendorm Corporation Rl BRI, EAE 1 - - 100 HEZER
Kimble Investment Limited EREZER | 1¥71 - 100 WEE
Kowill Investments Inc. HERLER 1 | €T - 00  HELE
Lindenford Limited Fi 2 W10 T - 100 HEHRE
EEREERAT Ei 2 i T - 100  EHRE
Newmarket Holdings Limited EBELERHEE 2 1 %7 - 100 BEER
BEERAH i 2 - - 100 PEHRE
FRUBRARAT B 152,343,165 W 0.10 T 100 - HEER
Supreme Luck Investments Lid. HREELES 1 1 £ - 100 ®WEER
Tendo Limited FiE 2 EE 10T - 100  4%ERE
BHREEHREGRAT i 1,000,000 EHIT - 100 KERFEEE
g )
Balgonie Limited & 2 R T 100 - BEEH
Crtic Pacific Finance (2001) Limited EERLZED 1,000 1#7T 100 - BEZH
ldealand Investment [ne. BEEHAE 100 1E3T — 100 B THE
Top Trend Investments Holdings Corp. REBELER/ARE 1 17T 100 - BEZH
TGS
BREEERAHE ERELEE 1 LET - 100 HREER
TRARSEREGERAE LRk PN R )G RE A - 55 HHEE
S EEEAE
TRERANARAR GiEINET e AHEH TEA - 55  HEEtE
CHSAEREERE
TERERBSHRERD A RAEAE 390.000,000 AE® 1T - 5472 SEAE
ARAHE * S R
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33 Principal Asseciated Companies
The following are the principal associated companies of the Group which in the opinion of the directors, principally affect the results
and net assets of the Group. To give details of other associated companies would in the opinion of the directors result in particulars

of excessive length.

Place of Growup equity
Name ncomporation/operation interest % Principal activities
Aviation
Cathay Pacific Airways Limited (note) Hong Kong 25.81 Airlines and related services
Hong Kong Dragon Airlines Limited Hong Kong 28.50 Aviation
Swire Aviation Limited Hong Kong 33.33 . Investment holding in
’ Hong Kong Air Cargo
Terminals Limited
Communications
Citic Guoan Co., Ltd. People’s Republic of 50 Investment holding
China
Companhia de Telecomunicacoes Macau 20 Telecommunications services
de Macau s.A.R.L.
Tunnels
Eastern Harbour Crossing Company Hong Kong 50 Tunnel operation
Limited =~
Hong Kong Tunnels and Highways Hong Kong 35 Management, operation
Management Company Limited and maintenance of the
Cross Harbour Tunne]
Western Harbour Tunnel Hong Kong 35 Franchise to construct
Company Limited and operate the Western
Harbour Crossing
Environment
Ecoserve Limited Hong Kong 50 Design, construction
and operation of refuse
transfer station
Enviropa:ce Limited Hong Kong 20 Design, construction,
operation and management of
chemical waste treatment plant
Green Valley Landfill, Limited Hong Kong 30 Landfill construction
and operation
South China Transfer Limited Hong Kong 30 Design, construction and

operation of transfer station
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33 Principal Assoclated Companies cnunued

AR =Pl =C

Place of Group equiry

Name incorporation/operation interest % Principal activities

Preperty

Cheer First Limited Hong Kong 40 Financing

Cimic Tower Property Management Hong Kong 40 Property management
Company Limited

Danton Investment Limited British Virgin Islands/ 40 Investment holding

Hong Kong

Festival Walk Holdings Limited Hong Kong 50 Property investment

Goldon Investment Limited Hong Kong 40 Property investment

Hong Kong Resort Company Limited Hong Kong 20 Property development

Kido Profits Limited British Virgin Islands/ 15 Property development

Hong Kong

Shinta Limited Hong Kong 20 Property investment

Sun Kong Investment Company, Hong Kong 40 Property development
Limited

Treasure Trove Limited Hong Kong 50 Financing

Others

Shiseido Dah Chong Hong Cosmetics Hong Kong 20 Trading in cosmetic products
Limited

‘Way Chong Finance Limited Hong Kong 50 Provision of hire purchase and

Note: Extract from the published accounts of Cathay FPacific Airways Limited, a significant associated company of the Group, is shown on pages 126 and 127,
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33 EEBEAT

THNEEERRIEMBAERAEREEFECARRIERELT - BEHER AN HHBHEE AT ZHHE L ARFENITE -

At oL

£ A HEHIFEZRIE % FEEH
nz
BURAT AR AR (BitRL) & 25.81 % BA B R
EEMZERRLA BE 28.50 MZE T
Swire Aviation Limited Tk 33.33 FEREEZEREARARIZRE
T
HIFHZERAF FEEARALME 50 REEK
BMENERLH s 20 ENERARE
B
Eastern Harbour Crossing Company Limited HiE 30 BRE R
BERERRE L BREHEERAA FiE 35 B HERREEERE
FHEEERERRAR FiE 35 LEgE B REEERE
IRIRRE
R EYEE A TR FiE 50 ARET - R RS B
mRL R R RAF Hik 20 RaET - B RERERLEER

i 22
RETEARAHA &k 30 B R RBYHHE
FHEEYHERTRAR i 30 At - BE R RBEYEEY
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33 ZEHEAT #

SR = PR

R A

£ B EE EEFAZRES FTEXH
e

Cheer First Limited Tk 40 )53
HEREEEFRAE B 40 YR
Danton Investment Limited EBETRE /T 40 REHR
X— A R E] &k 50 YERET
SRBEARAA Fik 40 WERR
EHEERRAF i 50 YIS
Kido Profits Limited KRELEE FiE 15 IES 95
REEZERALF B 20 E 318
HEEEFRARA Tk 40 YIRERE
Treasure Trove Limited I 50 REZH
d ]

EEERETCHAFRLHE ik 50 fLsi g5
&2 RAF Fik 50 RUERIEERE

Bzt FEBZTERELAEEREFRAAZENMIEEHRRRF 126 X 127K -
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34 Principal Co-operative Joint Ventures

The following are the principal co-operative joint ventures of the Group, which in the
opinion of the directors, principally affect the results and net assets of the Group. To
give details of other co-operative joint ventures would in the opinion of the directors
result in particulars of excessive length. All of the principal co-operative joint ventures

have their place of incorporation and operations in the People’s Republic of China.

Co-operative

3¢ FBEHEELE
TARES R LENEFEALLHR
GEFEZARBIEAFLEAT - BE

ERATHEMSEEELRALHEESAH
REBUILR - TR ERAFEEELFL
FEEARIEAE M R E s -

2 & STATUTORY REPORTS

Jfoint venture Growp equity Principal
Name period interest % Activives ”
L7 BIESH 2 MR EAHEZ S % EEEH
Jiangsu Ligang Electric Power (note a) 56.31 Electric power plant construction
Company Limited (“Ligang”) and operation
ILERFIEE A RAF ([FE ] (HEE 2) BRMRERLE
Shanghai Citic Tunnel Development 31 years from 50 Tunnel construction, management

7 October 1993
—NWN=F+ACBEF=+—14F

Co., Ltd. (note ¢)
LT ERERREARAR (Mo
Shanghai Huang Pu River Tunnel 20 years from
and Bridges Development Co., Ltd. 1 January 1995
(note ¢)
LHITHRBERERAR (MEo —ANEFE A~ R 14
Shanghai Jian Tai Co., Ltd.
(note ¢)

LigRBRARAE (Mo

20 years from
1 January 1996
—AIAE—A—REF T

20 years from
1 July 1996
—NARELA—HEF ZTF

Shanghai Xupu Bridge Development
Co., Lid. (note ¢)
LERHABREAMRLR (Mo

Zhengzhou Xinli Electric Power {(note b)
Co., Lid. (“Xinli”)
EHFT B NERAE ATHAD (Fft5E b)

nate:
a  Ligang Phase { and I are accounted for as investments of the Group as the Group’s interests therein will
revert to the joint venture partners in the People’s Republic of China afier fificen years and twenty years

respectively from the date on which the electricity generators became operational. Accordingly their resulis are

accounted for to the extent of dividends received and receivable, less amounts amortised.

b Xinliis acconnted for as invesiment of the Croup as the Group s interest therein will revert 1o the joint
venture partners in the Peoples Republic of China dfier fificen years from the date on which the electricity
generators became operational. Accordingly its results are accounted for to the extent of dividends received and

recetvable, less amounts amortised.

¢ The Croup is guaranteed a fived return on the invesiment amount of the co-operative joint ventures. Upon
the expiration of the co-operation period, all the Group s interests in Shanghai Citic Tunnel Development Co.,
Lid. will revert to Shanghai People s Government and all the Group’s interests in the assets of the other co-

operative joint tentures witl revere to the joint venture partners in the People’s Republic of China.

45

45

45

and operation

BERE  TEREE

Tunnel and bridges management
and operation

HEERZEERER

Toll road management

and operation

WENBZEBEREE

Bridge management
and operation
Bz EERRE

Electric power plant construction
and operation

REWBRENLE

e

a FEZF-HBREBHERTEBZREA
B EARESREURERS AR T EFR T
EE FEAN GG REZEEREHETEA
RARMBZ EBHETE Ut ZEREFEHZ
EAEHECURERRE - HBHHH

b FIERKEBZREAR BEBRZTHE
HREETTEBHE  FEARGEAZERN
CHEBTEARANBZ e EBHETH 2l - ¥
HEERZ #AEFH O REE - B -

¢ FEBEGRESRAAELAZEERED
BZWE - GIEHERE  FEBER LETREREY
BRERLAZ — QBN EEELETAREN
BE MAEBRREMSFEELAETEEL—
BB EEBrEIARLAAZ G EB#
B o
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Auditors’ Report to the Shareholders of Cimic Pacific Limited
(tncorporated in Hong Kong with limited liability)

We have audited the accounts on pages 62 to 123 which have been prepared in
accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in Hong Kong, save as

explained in accounting policy Note 1p on page 76.

Respective responsibilities of directors and auditors

The Hong Kong Companies Ordinance requires the directors to prepare accounts
which give a true and fair view. In preparing accounts which give a true and fair view
it is fundamental that appropriate accounting policies are selected and

applied consistently.

[tis our responsibility to form an independent opinion, based on our audit, on those

accounts and to report our opinion to you.

Basis of opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with Statements of Auditing Standards issued
by the Hong Kong Society of Accountants. An audit includes examination, on a test
basis, of evidence relevant to the amounts and disclosures in the accounts. It also

includes an assessment of the significant estimares and judgements made by the

directors in the preparation of the accounts, and of whether the accounting policies are

appropriate to the circumstances of the Company and the Group, consistently applied

and adequately disclosed.

We planned and performed our audit so as to obtain all the information and

explanations which we considered necessary in order to provide us with sufficient

evidence to give reasonable assurance as to whether the accounts are free from material

misstatement. In forming our opinion we also evaluated the overall adequacy of the
presentation of information in the accounts. We believe that our audit provides a

reasonable basis for our opinion.
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HpEREERLT
(REEEME L ZERNA)
eRRE

BB 7 RFRE 62 25 123 RHHH
B ZEBERENEREFELRRANE
SRRRR (MRHT6R 2 R BURMEES
1p R&RSH) -

BEEREHMEENEET
FRATGIHEEEAGRATTROLTH
MERE - EREZER TR T ER
& ERULARMEENEHEN > B
ERERZSEFEE -

FEBMNEEERBESR ISR - HEM
BREFEHBIBER  TrfoiRis -

ERMER

AREMOEREEEHmAGR RN
BEMBETHER LS - ERERAEUME
THEGAMER ST REE RN ESER
WHeiEE > TEEFFESRERRMBFRSE
BEBTE M E RS EH ST > BRI E S
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Opinion Z2R

In our opinion, the accounts give a true and fair view of the state of affairs of the AREWRA > LEMBRERLUAEREL

Company and the Group as at 31 December 2001 and of the profit and cash flows of FEr BARHE BEER_FEF

the Group for the year then ended and have been properly prepared in accordance with ~ FZA =+ —HEBEBHMBERL - &k &

the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance. EEEEZOLEENEF AT SRE I
EREEAARAZARER -

STATUTORY REPORTS

W
i
%

PricewaterhouseCoopers BERMESHENERR

Ceritfied Public Accountants HECH AT

Hong Kong, 14 March 2002 ik ZEF_F=ATEH
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[EXaciitoniBublishealiceonntoncath ayRaciicninrayuinited

B ot =l

a Consolidated Profit and Loss Account

Jor the vear ended 31 December 200/

a2 FEEBER
RE=ET—F+= S+ AU FE

i vk mdllzon 2001 2000 #EgHET
Turnover g

Passenger services 20,580 22,878 EERY

Cargo services 8,343 10.136 HERH

Catering and other services 1,513 1,509 i 2 R B LA AR
Total turnover 30,436 34,523 ERAH
Expenses M=

Staff (7,482) BT

Route (6,698) (6,756) s

Fuel (5,313) (5,770) BARL

Ajrcraft maintenance (3,234) (2,920) RBHE

Depreciation and operating leascs (4,968) (4.244)  HEREEEER

Commissions (339) (719) s

Others (1,223} (1,343) Hip
Operating exXpenses _(29,604)  (29.234) BHER
Operating profit 832 5,289 BBEiEH

Finance charges (2,668) (2,731) g Sl

Finance income 2,097 2.364 BARE A
Net finance charges (571) (367) BEIHEHE
Profit on sale of investments 452 - LEREZEHF
Share of profits of associated companies 188 279 FEILEBUEAFIRA
Profit before taxation 901 5,201 RRBRERN
Taxation (202) (110) ®IA
Profit after taxation 699 5.091 RRBERN
Minority interests (42) (86) LEiHRELR
Profit attributable to sharcholders 657 5,005 IRERFE(GEEH
Dividends (1,915) (1,585) HKE
Retained (loss)/profit for the year (1,258) 3.420 ZFEERE (BE) /&
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Extract from Published Accounts of Galthay Paeclfic Alrways Limited

b Consolidated Balance Sheet
At 31 December 2001

iy

BRNEARASIEAHRE ZRE

il

b HEEERRER
TEFEFEf A —HEE

inukS mitlion 2001 2000 EREE T
ASSETS AND LIABILITIES BERER
Non-current assets and llabilities ERBEERBE
Fixed assets 51,660 48,548 BETEE
Intangible assets 454 411 E\EEE
Investments in associated companies 1,590 1,532 WEEBELFZEE
Other long-term receivables and investments 1,575 2,224 HRHABUHCERLE
_______ 35,279 92715
Long-term liabilities (39.208) (36,863) RHERE
Related pledged security deposits 17,194 17,808  HMBEHEMETLK
Net long-term liabilities (22,014 (19,055) RHEETHE
Deferred taxation (7.836) (7.146) EIEHIE
. (29.850)  (26,201)
Net non-current assets 25,429 26,514 HRBAETE
Current assets and liabilities RBEEREE
Stock 587 647 ¥
Trade and other receivables 4,778 5,006 g5 REMBIEIE
Liquid funds 9,764 11.040 ##E%&ES
_______ 15,129 16,693
Current portion of long-term liabilities (3,241) (2,918) RHABEZREHT
Related pledged security deposits 1,231 1135 EHCERFHR
Net current portion of long-term liabilities (2.010) (1,783) RHEEZAEHTFHE
Trade and other payables (4,556) (5,619) E5HREMABENTE
Unearned transportation revenues (1,9653) (2,254) FEEHLE
Taxation (626) (620) #IE
9057 (10,276)
Net current assets 5972 6,417 RBEETE
Total assets less current and
nen-current liabilities 31,401 32,931 EELHEERRBHRERDEE
Minority interests (93) (99) DERFERELR
Net assels 31,308 32.832 BEBE
CARITAL AND RESERVES B Rt
Share capital 666 670 FA
Reserves 30,642 32,162 fEfk
Shareholders® funds 31,308 32,832 MHEES
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1992 1993 1994 1995 1996 1997 1998 1999 2000 200t
At year end (WkSmillion): FR(BEEEL) -
Shareholders’ funds - 10258 21,608 25426 26971 36912 40538 42032 38240 41304 41.637 REEE-
per share (k) 8.16 11.94 12.61 13.40 17.30 19.06 19.76 17.98 18.81  19.01 Bt (B¥T)
Debt - AfE-
debt less bank deposits 172 2856 8951 9.092  9.649 22592 21175 10,519 10,508 16,008 ERESTHER
net debt/sharcholders’
funds 2% 13% 35% 34% 26% 56% 50% 28% 25% 24% BREEMRES
net debt/stockmarket
value 1% 6% 24% 17% 10% 34% 60% 17% 17% 26% FEERIETE
interest cover (mes) 16 33 9 10 19 6 4 4 3 6 FEEE (f5)
Capital emploved 11,373 25119 35173 36.677 47,135 63,840 64,107 56,803 57013 56,276 HLEH
Fited assets 5097 5951  8.884 9045 9929 10472 11765 11916  13.433 14,702 EEEE
Associated companies 4.176 16,167 19,997  20.529 26,166 39,645 39,604 22334 25434 25,027 BEAT
fnvestments 224 1,054 4330 5670 9208 1196 11574 14,560 9479 8,449 #E
Stockmarket capitalization 17224 46,130 38,000  53.000 95800 65520 35530 62230 60,720 37,993 Wiff
AEEFELE  BE TER
ERITDA 1,341 2272 1975 4040 4321 5706 4739 4763 5240 3,769 BHZEREF
For the year (i Smillion): FE GEEREET)
Barnings - BH -
Farnings 945 1,792 977 2963 6,769 7201 2628 2735 3291 2,110 BF
per share - (HKS) 0.79 1.03 0.50 1.47 3.18 3.38 1.24 1.29 1.49 0.96 BR- BT
Dividends - 5 -
per share - fHKS) Bt~ (#¥T)
regulas 0.30 0.38 0.48 0.55 0.62 0.70 0.70 0.75 0.85 0.80 L@
special - - - - 0.30 0.30 - 2.00 - - il
cover (times) 2.6 2.7 1.0 2.7 2.7 2.7 1.8 1.7 1.8 1.2 B8 ()
Number of shareholders 10,151 6.794 7,256 6,545 6,215 8,642 14,987 13,500 9.808 11,044 MRS
Number of employees 5000 10000 10,000 11300 1L750 11,800 11,871 10490 11,354 11,733 ET&H
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Terms: FEE -
Capital Employed Capital employed represents shareholders” funds B2ER EeERNRERRESM LE
plus total borrowings e84
Cash Contributed Cash inflow to CiTI¢ Pacific Lid. from TA%TZ TREEEARAFARITANE
From All Business all its subsidiary companies, associated companies ~ H&EEE NEBELAFTREMREZH
and other investments EWA
Total Debt Short term and long term loans, notes and bonds AR B ARBER FRIES
Net Debt Total debt less cash and bank deposits FRE BREHE G RFTAX
Shareholders” Equity Shareholders’ funds + unimpaired goodwill written R4 FRES H g IR MET
off to reserves for accounting purposes RE WA EEMH
Total Capital Shareholders’ equity + net debt HEARBE oL - FRE
EBITDA Profit for the year less interest expense, taxation, FBITDA AEEFE S BUR 178 R
depreciation and amortisation B Z FRER
Contribution Net income from each business before amortisation  E# E i R RFAZEHBEH FERE
of goodwill, and interest and overheads paid by AR ERLE B EH IR B
Ciric Pacific Lid. BRI 2 Bl
Ratios: P :
, Profit attributable to shareholders SR I A i A
Earnings Per Share = FREF] = -
Weighted average number of shares FRERTRIZ
(by days) in issue for the year IR B (% H)
Shareholders’ Shareholders’ equity RS
arehiolders - 1 s T il
Equity Per Share Total issued and fully paid shares at FRCBTESZ LG
end of the year B
Net debt HaE
Leverage = BELR = .
Total captial EAME
Cash contributed from all business REFEEHZREER
Cashflow Per Share = BRBELHEE =
Total issued and fully paid shares FREBTIEHERE
at end of the year 2
TaEME S FE
EBITDA I R 2 R
Interest Cover = HEEE =
[nterest expense FEZ
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VieTer EPreperiies hald by (he @reup

as at 31 December 2001

Major Properties Held For Investment

*eacluding a petrolfilling station on the ground floor with an ancillary storage tank in part of the basement and a storeroom on the first floor

Major Properties Held For Development

Leasehold Croup’s Approximare Gross
Address / Lot No. Lapiry Interest % Floor Area (sq. i) Lxisnng Use
* 1. Skvway House, 3 Sham Mong Road, Kowloon 2041 100 294.158 Commercial
2604,/2700th shares of KIL, No. 9706 & the extension thereto

! 2. Block C of Yee Lim Industrial Centre, 2-28 Kwai Lok Street, and 2047 100 320,195 Cold Storage &
2-6 Kwai Hei Street, Kwai Chung Godown
4000/9000th shares of KCTL No. 333

: 3. Honest Motors Building, 9-11, Leighton Road, Causeway Bay, 2880 100 47487 Commercial
Hong Kong IL No. 5431 and 5432

: 4. Wyler Centre 1, Basement 1 & 2 and Parking Spaces Nos P50 and 2047 100 393,488 Industrial
P51 on 2nd Floor of Wiler Centre 2, 192-210 Tai Lin Pai Road,

Kwai Chung, New Territories

5779/11152th shares of and in the Remaining Portion of Kwai Chung Town

Lot No. 130 and the extension thereto

5. Broadway Cenire, No. 93 Kwai Fuk Road. Kwai Chung, 2047 100 343,000 Godown
New Territories KCTL No. 435

6. DCH Commercial Centre, No. 25, Westlands Road, 2047 100 389,000 Commercial
Quarry Bay, Hong Kong I1L8854

7. CITIC Tower, No. 1 Tim Mei Avenue, Central, Hong Kong IL No. 8822 2047 40 562.000 Commercial
8.  TFestival Walk, Tat Chee Avenue, Yau Yat Tsuen, Kowloon NKIL No. 6181 2047 50 1,200,000 Commercial
9. Hiro-o Garden Hills, West Hill 1-1204, Hiro-o 4-chome, Frechold 100 873 Residential
; Shibuva-ku, Tokyo, Japan

10. Hiro-o Garden Hills, Centre Hill H-1403, Hiro-o 4-chome, Freehold 100 2,012 Residential
Shibuya-ku. Tokyo. Japan

‘ 11. Hiro-o Garden Hills, South Hill D-507, Hiro-o 4-chome, Frechold 100 2,264 Residennal
{ Shibuya-ku, Tokyo, Japan

b 12. Dah Chong No. 1 Building, 12-6, Roppongi, 3-chome. Frechold 100 34,528 Commercial &
{j § Minato-ku, Tokyo, Japan Restaurants, ete.
B 13. Dah Chong No. 2 Building. B1/F-4/F, 18-2, Roppongi, 5-chome, Freehold 100 13,067 Commercial &
l ] Minato-ku, Tokyo, Japan Restaurants, cte.
%. ] 14. Toriizaka House 14-19, Roppongi, 5-chome, Minato-ku., Tokyo, Japan Freehold 100 7352 Residential & Office
]

H

Subsections 1 and 2 and the Remaining Portion of Section D of KIL No. 2657

Fstmared - Approximate  Approximate

+ Stageof  Complenon Leasehold Groups Siredrea  Gross Floor

‘ Locawion / Lot No. Complerion Date  Classification Eapiry Interest % (g.fi)  Area (g fi)  Fabung Use
J 1. LotNos. 390Rp. 394Rp. 395. 396. 397, 399, 400, N/A N/A N/A 2047 100 193,652 N/A  Construction
i 401, 402. 405. 406, 407, 409, 410Rp, 412Rp, Site
i 413Rp. 414Rp, 416. 417, 418,419 and 424 in

i D.D. No. 121 and Lot Nos. 274Rp, 278Rp. 279Rp,

E- 282Rp. 283Rp, 284, 285, 286sB Rp, 286sB ssl and

| 286Rpin D.D. No. 127 Yuen Long, New Territories

;V 2. LotNo, 3723 sD RpinD.D. No. 104 and Lot N/A N/A N/A 2047 40 2449517 N/A  Agricultural
b Nos. 43A and 50 in D.D. No. 101 and Lot Nos. 1266Rp, Land
+ 1267 and 1268 in D.D. No. 105, Yuen Long,

ff_ New Territories

1 3. No. 500 and 502, Tung Chau Street, Cheung Sha Wan. N/A N/A N/A 2047 100 20,258 N/A  Construction
,L;:‘; Kowloon Site
I NKIL No. 4751 & 4752

I

3? Major Properties Held For Sale

%_ Leasehotd Groups Approximare Cross

i Address / Lot No. Fapiry Interest % Floor Area (sq. fi.) Laisting Use
H

; Grand Court. 109-135 Kadoorie Avenue, Kowloon 2006 100 135.340 Residential
l]

:
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Z8¥-4£+ZFE=+—-0ER

TEREYE
bz il
HEL e Mz E R EEEZ % (FFR) HeHn
1. NEFTEIEEERE 2041 100 294,158 fEES
JLEENH B O7065E REB G700/ 2 260418
2. RN 8 HEEA MR T ERLCE 2047 100 320,195 KHEERKE
T HE S 3339890001 2 400017
3. BBHBEEEE- 115 2880 100 47,487 [EES
AHMAERE A543 R54328
4. BRFERKAEEEI92-20%ET LS 2047 100 393,488 T¥%
B OB A R E R UEE P50 KPS I EE (L
FEMHEREI0FREMERRZHRE1115202577964
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6. BFHEEABEERLFRETEEFL 2047 100 389.000 [HES
R B 258854 %F
7. BEPRBRFEIGFRERE QL8225 2047 40 562,000 [SES
C X MEZ BN A LR R E1815E 2047 50 1.200.000 [
9. Hiro-o Carden Hills, West Hill I-1204, Hiro-0 4-chome. A EEHE 100 873 £
Shibuya-ku, Tokvo, Japan
10. Hirc-0 Garden Hills, Centre Hill H-1403. Hiro-o 4-chome, KAERE 100 2,012 =
Shibuva-ku, Tekvo, Japan
11. Hiro-o Garden Hills, South Hill D-507. Hiro-o 4-chome, KNERE 100 2.264 =
Shibuya-ku, Tokyo, Japan
12. Dah Chong No. 1 Building. 12-6. Roppongi. 3-chome, AN 100 34,528 WEREES
Minato-ku, Tokvo, Japan
13. Dah Chong No. 2 Building, B1/F-4/F, 18-2. Roppongi, 3-chome, KA 100 13,067 [HE &3 2
Minato-ku, Tokyo, Japan
14. Toriizaka House 14-19, Roppongi. 5-chome, K AEHE 100 7,352 FERBTH
Minato-ku, Tokyo, Japan
BT Z BRI ER G HE AL R Y ES
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400401402~ 405406 407> 409 *
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416~ 417~ 418~ 41952424551 B R SL B A0y
EITHERITAI B L BB
BB E T BRE 27O Er Y R B
28255 B Y BREE 983 8F B T SR B
284°285-286 9B EL 2 BR B
206 EBEE — T B RS I86 S M EL 2 R B
2. HAILEA R REF A 2047 40 2,449.517 A Bt
F1045 L B MEITIFHEDERZ BB F1015
L EAMEAIARS 0P ER R 1055 L B4
12669 MER Y BB 1267 R 126855 10 Bt
3. JLERWEEMNES00K502% N A A A 2047 100 20,258 TER BEmR
BN R ERF 47515 R 4T525
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BB R
W HEEH e EEER % (FrR) TS H#
NREFEERIE109- 135 ERRE 2006 100 135,340 T

NERBEESTHEDRE I B BRRRE
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Corporatelinformation

BEEE

Headgquarters and Registered Office
32nd Floor, Citic Tower, 1 Tim Mei Avenue, Central, Hong Kong

Contact
www.citicpacific.com
Telephone: 2820 2111 Fax: 2877 2771

Email: contact@eciticpacific.com

Security Information
Crmic Pacific Lid. is listed on the Stock Exchange of Hong Kong.

American Depositary Receipts are traded over the counter in the United States.

Bloomberg: 267 HK EQUITY
Reuters: 0267. HK  ADR: CTPCY

Auditors

PricewaterhouseCoopers, 22nd Floor, Prince’s Building, Central, Hong Kong

Registrars
Tengis Limited, 4th Floor, Hutchison House, 10 Harcourt Road, Hong Kong
Telephone: 2846 9666  Fax: 2810 8185

Company Secretary
Alice Tso Mun Wai

Investor Relations
Holly Chen, Investor Relations Manager
Telephone: 2820 2004  Fax: 2104 6632

Email: investor.relations@citicpacific.com

Key Dates
Closure of Register: 3 May 2002 to 9 May 2002
Annual General Meeting: 9 May 2002, 10:30 a.m.
Island Ballroom, Level 5
Island Shangri-La
Two Pacific Place
Supreme Court Road
Hong Kong
Final Dividend payable: 15 May 2002
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